
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the Board of the London Legacy Development Corporation 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday 17 March 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: LLDC meeting rooms 1 and 2, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet 

 
 
Members of the Board of the London Legacy Development Corporation are hereby notified 
and requested to attend the meeting of the Board at 10.00 am on Tuesday 17 March 2020 
to transact the business set out below. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being 
discussed as noted on the agenda. A guide for the press and public on attending and 
reporting meetings of local government bodies, including the use of film, photography, 
social media and other means is available at   
 
www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/openness-in-meetings.pdf 
 
 
 
Board Members: 
 
Sir Peter Hendy CBE (Chair) 
Philip Lewis (Deputy Chair) 
Pam Alexander OBE 
Sonita Alleyne OBE 
Shanika Amarasekara 
Cllr. Rachel Blake 
Simon Blanchflower CBE 
Cllr. Clare Coghill 
Nicky Dunn OBE 
Keith Edelman 
Mayor Rokhsana Fiaz OBE 
Mayor Philip Glanville 
Baroness Tanni Grey-Thompson DBE 
Sukhvinder Kaur Stubbs 
Jules Pipe CBE 
Geoff Thompson MBE 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/openness-in-meetings.pdf


 

2 
 

1 Apologies for absence   
 

2 Declarations of interest   
 

 Members are reminded that any interests in a matter under discussion must be 
declared at the start of the meeting, or at the commencement of the item of 
business. 
 

3 Minutes of previous meeting held on 4 February 2020   
(Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 The Board is asked to agree the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020.   
 

4 Matters arising and action list   
(Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the actions arising from previous meetings. 
 

5 Chief Executive's Report   
(Pages 15 - 54) 
 

6 Report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held on 25 February 2020 
(Pages 55 - 56) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report of the meeting held on 25 February 2020. 
 

7 Report of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 5 March 2020  
(Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report of the meeting held on 5 March 2020 and 
approve the 2020/21 Internal Audit plan. 
 

8 Report of the meeting of the Chair's Committee held on 5 March 2020  
(Pages 61 - 62) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report of the meeting held on 5 March 2020. 
 

9 Report of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Security Committee held on 5 
March 2020   
(Pages 63 - 64) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report of the meeting held on 5 March 2020. 
 

10 Report of the meeting of the Regeneration and Communities Committee held 
on 16 March 2020   
(Pages 65 - 66) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report of the meeting held on 16 March 2020. 



 

3 
 

 

11 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21   
(Pages 67 - 118) 
 

 The Board is asked to agree the Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

12 2020/21 Budget Update   
(Pages 119 - 124) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the 2020/21 Budget. 
 

13 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction delegations   
(Pages 125 - 126) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the report on Stratford Waterfront construction 
delegations. 
 

14 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction update   
(Pages 127 - 128) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the update on Stratford Waterfront construction. 
 

15 E20 Stadium LLP update   
(Pages 129 - 130) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the update on E20 Stadium LLP. 
 

16 Member suggestions for future agenda discussions   
 

 The Board is asked to raise any suggestions for future agenda items.  
 

17 Any other business the Chairman considers urgent   
 

 The Chairman will state the reason for urgency of any item taken. 
 

18 Date of next meeting   
 

 The next meeting of the London Legacy Development Corporation Board is due to 
be held on 19 May 2020 at 2.00pm. 
 

19 Exclusion of the press and public   
 

 The Board is recommended to agree to exclude the public and press from the 
meeting, in accordance with Part 1, paragrapsh 3 and 5 Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in order to consider the following 
items of business.  
 



 

4 
 

20 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 4 February 2020 that contain exempt 
information   
(Pages 131 - 136) 
 

 The Board is asked to agree the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020 
that contain exempt information. 
 

21 Matters arising and action list containing exempt information   
(Pages 137 - 140) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the actions arising from the previous meeting that 
contain exempt information. 
 

22 Chief Executive's Report - Exempt information relating to item on Part 1 - 
Appendix 2 and 3 - Commercial update, corporate dashboard   
(Pages 141 - 158) 
 

 The Board is asked to note the commercial update and the corporate dashboard 
that contain exempt information.  
 

23 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction delegations - Exempt 
information relating to item on Part 1 - TO FOLLOW   
 

 The Board is asked to agree the recommendations relating to Stratford Waterfront 
construction delegations containing exempt information. 
 

24 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction update - Exempt information 
relating to item on Part 1 - TO FOLLOW   
 

 The Board is asked to note the update on Stratford Waterfront construction 
containing exempt information. 
 

25 E20 Stadium LLP - Exempt information relating to item on Part 1   
(Pages 159 - 164) 
 

 The Board is asked to agree the recommendations in the report on E20 Stadium 
LLP containing exempt information. 
 

26 Any urgent business containing exempt information.   
 

 The Chair will state the reason for urgency of any item taken. 
 

27 Close of meeting   
 

 
    



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of the London Legacy Development 
Corporation 
 

Date: Tuesday 4 February 2020 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: LLDC meeting rooms 1 and 2, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, 
Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ 

 

 
Present: Sir Peter Hendy CBE (Chair) 

Philip Lewis (Deputy Chair) 
Pam Alexander OBE 
Shanika Amarasekara 
Cllr. Rachel Blake 
Simon Blanchflower CBE 
Cllr. Clare Coghill 
Nicky Dunn OBE 
Mayor Rokhsana Fiaz OBE 
Mayor Philip Glanville 
Baroness Tanni Grey-Thompson DBE 
Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs 
Jules Pipe CBE (by phone)) 
Geoff Thompson MBE 
 

In Attendance: Gerry Murphy, Deputy Chief Executive 
Colin Naish, Executive Director of Construction 
Rosanna Lawes, Executive Director of Development 
Mark Camley, Executive Director of Park Operations and Venue 
Dr Paul Brickell, Executive Director of Regeneration and 
Community Partnerships 
Anthony Hollingsworth, Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 
Ed Stearns, Executive Director of Communications, Marketing and 
Strategy 
Sarah Perry, Director of HR 
Charles Ritchie, TfL Legal 
Baroness Lola Young, Co-Chair, Foundation for FutureLondon (until 
item 24) 
Kishan Patel, Legacy Youth Board  
Sage Patel, Our Time programme  
Rachel Massey, LLDC Secretariat 
Rebecca Arnold, GLA Secretariat 

  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

1   Apologies for absence 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received on behalf of: Keith Edelman; Sonita Alleyne 
OBE; the Chief Executive, Lyn Garner; and David Bell, Co-Chair of Foundation 
FutureLondon (FFL). 

   
1.2 A member of the Legacy Youth Board, Kishan Patel, and Sage Patel, a participant 

in the Our Time programme, were welcomed to the meeting as observers. 
 
1.3 The Board noted that Philip Lewis had chaired his last meeting of the Planning 

Decisions Committee on 28 January 2020. The Board thanked Philip Lewis for his 
service as Chair. It was noted that Philip Lewis would also be standing down as a 
member of the Board in March 2020. 

 
1.4 The Board congratulated Pam Alexander OBE on receiving a 2020 Royal Institute 

of British Architects Honorary Fellowship. 
 
2   Declarations of interest 

 
2.1 The Chair noted that Members had declared registrable interests in line with the 

relevant Standing Orders and asked Members to confirm if they had any interests 
or additional interests to be declared related to matters listed on the agenda other 
than those already made and included in the register. 

2.2 The Chair, Sir Peter Hendy CBE, declared an interest in relation to the Carpenters 
Land Bridge arising from his role as Chair of Network Rail. He explained that he 
had therefore received a version of the minutes included at Part II of the Agenda 
which had been redacted to omit the discussion in relation to that matter. 

2.3 Baroness Lola Young declared an interest in Agenda Item 24 (Foundation for 
FutureLondon loan repayment – Exempt information relating to Item on Part I) 
arising from her role as Co-Chair of FFL. She had not received the Agenda paper 
in relation to that item and left the room for the duration of the discussion, taking 

no part in the decision. 

2.4 Gerry Murphy, Deputy Chief Executive, declared an interest in Agenda Item 24 
(Foundation for FutureLondon loan repayment – Exempt information relating to 
Item on Part I) arising from her role as London Legacy Development Corporation 
(LLDC) appointed Trustee of FFL. She did not take part in the discussion on that 

item.  

 
3   Minutes of previous meeting held on 19 November 2019 

 
3.1 It was agreed that the minutes of the meeting of the LLDC Board held on 19 

November 2019 be signed by the Chair as a correct record, subject to the 

minutes reflecting that Pam Alexander OBE had joined the meeting by 

phone. 

 
 

Page 2



 
3 

 

4   Matters arising and action list 
 

4.1 The Board received the list of outstanding actions arising from previous 

Board meetings and noted the updates set out. 

4.2 In response to a query raised, the Executive Director of Regeneration and 
Community Partnerships confirmed that the session for Board Members on 
accessible travel and sustainability in the Park (Action 6.5, 23 July 2019 meeting) 
would cover accessibility, sustainable travel and accessible and public transport for 
all modal users. 

 
5   Chief Executive's Report 

 
5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive introduced the report, which provided an update on 

activities of LLDC since the last Board meeting.  

5.2 Key highlights included: the successful installation on Christmas day of the 
Carpenters Land Bridge which would link East Bank with the International Quarter 
London; completion of phase 2 of Chobham Manor construction and sale of all 
homes in that phase, commencement of sales of phase 3 homes, commencement 
of construction of phase 4, and the agreement of an affordable housing increase 
for the development; the attendance of 150 young people and stakeholders at 
LLDC’s first ever youth conference at the Park; the launch of the next round of 
Shared Training and Employment programme (STEP); and STEP winning the Arts 
and Culture award at the 2019 Children and Young People Now awards.  

 
5.3 The Board additionally noted that West Ham United Football Club were currently in 

the relegation zone. Prior to the West Ham v Everton match at the London 
Stadium on 18 January 2020 it had been agreed, in conjunction with the police and 
the club, that one of the fan groups could hold a static protest in the Park. The 18 
January match had additionally been reclassified from a category A to a category 
B match, therefore involving increased numbers of police and stewards and 
incurring associated costs.  At the Liverpool match on 29 January 2020, a fan 
threw a coin that cracked a window of the Liverpool players’ bus.. 

 
5.4 Cllr Rachel Blake explained that she had observed some incidents of anti-social 

behaviour on Wick Lane on a recent match day, including use of laughing gas and 
public urination. She queried whether stewards were able to operate in the wider 
area to assist egress of fans and also whether data was collected regarding travel 
patterns. In response, it was explained that stewards did not operate in the wider 
area around the Stadium. It was agreed to provide Cllr Blake with the travel data 

collected.  
[Action: Executive Director of Park Operations and Venues] 

  
5.5 In response to a query from Baroness Young about whether the recent youth 

conference had promoted job opportunities arising from the East Bank 
development, Board Members who had attended the event explained that the 
discussion had focused on employment opportunities more generally but had 
included East Bank. It was noted that the feedback about the event from attendees 
had been very positive. Kishan Patel confirmed that the Legacy Youth Board 

Page 3



 
4 

 

would be discussing at its next meeting how to take forward the issues raised at 
the event. An event summary would be circulated to Board Members.   

[Action: Executive Regeneration of Community and Partnerships] 
 
5.6 In response to a query from Mayor Rokhsana Fiaz OBE regarding how the Legacy 

Youth Board would engage and interact with the youth infrastructure in the legacy 
boroughs in order to ensure strategic alignment with local youth councils/forums 
and local youth plans, the Executive Regeneration of Community and Partnerships 
explained that as the Board was relatively new the arrangements were still 
evolving and solidifying; he suggested discussing further outside of the meeting. 

[Action: Executive Regeneration of Community and Partnerships] 
 
5.7 In response to a query about the grant funding used to underpin the deal to 

increase affordable housing at the Chobham Manor site, the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions confirmed that LLDC was content that state aid rules had 
been complied with and the value for money test met. Benchmarking had also 
been undertaken with the GLA on value for money on similar developments. He 
explained that not all of the money arising from the Cherry Park development had 
been used at Chobham Manor; some would be used at the Guinness development 
at Bromley-by-Bow.  The London Borough of Newham would be invited to bid for a 
separate amount of affordable housing funding available from specific planning 
permissions granted by the Thames gateway Development Corporation. 

 
5.8 The Board noted the update set out at paragraph 7.3 of the report in relation to the 

monitoring of construction traffic and related issues. It was noted that the next 
meeting of the Health and Safety Committee would specifically focus on 
construction including road safety issues. 

 
5.9 Finally, Members requested that the session for Board members on 

accessible/sustainable travel incorporate work on e-scooters and the cycling report 
referred to at paragraph 14.4 of the report. 

[Action: Executive Regeneration of Community and Partnerships] 
 
5.10 The Board noted the report and its appendices, together with the actions 

recorded above. 
 
6   Report of the meetings of the Planning Decisions Committee held on 18 

December 2019 and 28 January 2020 
 

6.1 The Board received the report of the meetings of the Planning Decisions 

Committee held on 18 December 2019 and 28 January 2020. 

 
6.2 The Board noted the report 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
5 

 

7   Report of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 18 November 2019 
 

7.1 The Board received the report of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 18 

November 2019. 

 
7.2 The Board noted the report and approved the revised Audit Committee 

Terms of Reference as set out at Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
8   Report of the meeting of the Chair's Committee held on 19 November 2019 

 
8.1 The Board received the report of the meeting of the Chair’s Committee held on 19 

November 2019. 

8.2 Further to a query raised, it was agreed to recirculate the report previously 
submitted to the Board regarding including diversity and inclusion responsibilities 
within each committee’s terms of reference. 

[Action: LLDC Secretariat] 
 
8.3 The Board noted the report and the Inclusion and Diversity Strategy set out 

at Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
9   Report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held on 10 December 

2019 
 

9.1 The Board received the report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held on 
10 December 2019. 

 
9.2 In response to a query raised, the Executive Director of Development agreed to 

provide Board members with an update regarding Hackney Wick Station 
underpass.  

[Action: Executive Director of Development] 
 
9.3 The Board noted the report. 
 
10   Planning Decisions Committee Membership 

 
10.1 The Board received the report, which sought approval to the appointment of a new 

member of the Planning Decisions Committee. The paper also set out the use of 
the urgent action provision to appoint a new Chair and reappoint three 
independent members of the Committee. 

 
10.2 The Board: 
 

10.2.1 Noted the Chair’s recent use of the urgent action provision set out in 
the Corporation’s Scheme of Delegation; and 

 
10.2.2 Approved the appointment of the LLDC Board member, Geoff 

Thompson, as a member of the Planning Decisions Committee. 
 

Page 5



 
6 

 

11   High Level Transition Strategy 
 

11.1 The Board received the report, which provided an update on the high level 

Transition Strategy. 

 
11.2 The Board noted the report. 

 
12   East Bank - UAL MEP Contract Award 

 
12.1 The Board received the report, which provided an updated on the UAL 

Mechanical, Electrical and Public Health (MEP) contract. 
 
12.2 The Board noted the report. 

 
13   Foundation for FutureLondon Loan Repayment 

 
13.1 The Board received the report, which related to the repayment of a loan made by 

the London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC) to FFL. 
 
13.2 The Board noted the position regarding repayment of a £1million loan made 

by the London Legacy Development Corporation to Foundation for 

FutureLondon. 

13.3 The Chair varied the order of business to take Agenda Items 15-17 before Agenda 
Item 14.   

 
14   Member suggestions for future agenda discussions 

 
14.1 There were no suggestions for future agenda items. 
 
15   Date of next meeting 

 
15.1 The Board noted that its next meeting was due to be held on 17 March 2020. 
 
16   Any other business the Chair considers urgent 

 
16.1 There was no urgent business. 
 

[Note: At 2.40pm the Chair adjourned the meeting for ten minutes, pending the 
arrival of representatives from the London College of Fashion who were attending 
the meeting to provide a presentation. The meeting reconvened at 2.50pm.] 

 
17   East Bank - UAL's London College of Fashion Update  

 
17.1 The Board received a presentation from Anna Jobson, Director of Change, London 

College of Fashion (LCF) and Laura Gander-Howe, Director for Public 
Engagement and Culture, LCF on the LCF’s planned activity at its new facilities in 
Stratford Waterfront and its contribution to delivering East Bank’s strategic 

Page 6



 
7 

 

objectives. 
 
17.2 The University of the Arts London is a world top two university for art and design 

and Europe’s largest specialist university for art and design. It was made up of six 
colleges, one of which is the LCF.  

 
17.3 The LCF had originally been comprised of trade schools and had been nurturing 

fashion talent for over 100 years. The curriculum covers the whole fashion ecology 
and is delivered 60 undergraduate and postgraduate degrees, together with 165 
short courses, through three schools: the School of Design and Technology; the 
School of Media and Communication; and the Fashion Business School. 

 
17.4 The LCF maintains a strong interest in the link between fashion and industry and a 

focus on fashion as an agitator for positive social change. 
 
17.5 The LCF is currently split across six sites, which made the college complex to run. 

In 2022 the LCF would be consolidating those premises and moving to its new 
home in East Bank. The move was being treated as a holistic change programme 
which offered the opportunity to: transform the College’s education offer; consider 
ways to ramp up the LFC’s enterprise work; and consider how the move would 
help LFC to amplify its research; and build its social responsibility activities.   

 
17.6 The guests outlined the LFC’s contribution to East Bank, including: 
 

 Creative programming, in and beyond the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park and 

cutting-edge research and innovation; 

 Building meaningful creative partnerships with East Bank partners and other 
local organisations, to grow opportunities for the local community, disrupt the 
education system to prepare people for creative jobs, and broaden opportunities 
for LFC students to deliver projects with real world impact. Examples included 
Open Doors, Great Get Together, Summer schools, East Education, Sadler's 

Wells & LCF: Young Associates, and Street Style; 

 Plans to bring as much of LFC’s exhibition content to East Bank as possible, in 

order that east Londoners could benefit from access to it; 

 Transforming life chances and empowering local people through social 
responsibility work and projects such as Poplar Works and Making for Change 

with the London Borough of Waltham Forest; and 

 Driving local economic growth and prosperity through programmes such as East 

Education. 

 
17.7 The Board heard about four case studies of ongoing work: 
 

 Poplar Works: Part funded by the GLA, this site utilised disused garages on the 
A12 for design studios, a garment manufacturing unit, a ‘makery’ for up-cycling, 
local artisan-style businesses and a showcase and cafe space. Newham 
College were also a key partner, providing the accreditation for the courses 

Page 7



 
8 

 

available at Poplar Works; 

 LCF East School Engagement – Fashion Clubs:  As part of early engagement 
with east London partner schools, the LCF has established two 10-week Key 
Stage 3 after-school clubs piloted with Chobham Academy and Plashet School. 
These introduced students to a range of fashion-related disciplines aligned to 
national curriculum themes and are aimed at developing confidence, aspiration 
and awareness of creative careers and pathways, from fashion journalism and 

fashion business to window dressing; 

 Making for Change – Waltham Forest: This was a programme of community 
engagement and educational and design research, grounded in the themes of 
makers, fellowships and radicals. It was delivered in partnership with the 
London Borough of Waltham Forest Council as part of their work as London 
Borough of Culture 2019, with and the GLA. The programme had been co-
designed with manufacturers and the community and had given LFC excellent 

insight into ward-level specificity; and 

 The Fashion District: This was a hub in east London for fashion innovation, 
delivered with a number of partners. It had arisen from work jointly 
commissioned by UAL and the GLA which had identified barriers to growth of 
the fashion business in London, including access to funding and a lack of 

investment in fashion skills. 

 
17.8 The Board welcomed the presentation and the exciting projects already underway. 

Members thanked LCF for their proactive approach to engaging with all four 
boroughs to date and forging relationships with the political leaders of those 
boroughs. They also referred to the potential of the education projects to fill the 
void in careers advice and of the skills-building programmes to make a material 
impact on the financial well-being and quality of life of local residents. Baroness 
Young suggested that FFL could work with LCF to signpost LCF’s offer.  

 
17.9 In response to a query about what LLDC could do to help the LCF scale-up its 

activity, the guests confirmed that introductions to local partners were invaluable, 
and emphasised the importance of the LLDC’s role in continuing to champion the 
LFC and other partners. The evaluation framework being developed with LLDC 
was also critical in checking that work had the right impact and over the coming 
months it was importance that explicit conversations took place about where 
particular partners could have the most impact, where that work could best 
undertaken alone and where partners needed to work together. The LLDC had 
usefully convened those conversations to date but partners now needed to work to 
take them forward. 

 
17.10 The LCF would ensure that invitations to future grassroots events and other events 

of interest were forwarded to Board Members so that members continued to have 
insight into LCF’s work. 

[Action: Board Secretary]   
 
17.11 The Board noted the report and the East Bank partner presentation. 
 

Page 8



 
9 

 

18   Exclusion of the press and public 
 

18.1 It was agreed that the public and press be excluded from the meeting, in 

accordance with Part 1, paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local 

Government Act 1972 (as amended), in order to consider the exempt papers. 

Each of these papers contained information relating to the financial or 

business affairs of a person or authority.  

19   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 November 2019 containing 
exempt information 
 

19.1 It was agreed that the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 19 
November 2019 containing exempt information be signed by the Chair as a 
correct record, subject to the minutes reflecting that Pam Alexander OBE 
had joined the meeting by phone. 
[Note: See also Minute 2 – Declarations of Interest.] 

20   Matters arising and action list containing exempt information 
 

20.1 The Board received the report, which related to actions arising from previous 
Board meetings. 

 
20.2 The Board noted the actions arising from the previous meeting that 

contained exempt information. 
 
21   Chief Executive's Report - Exempt information relating to item on Part 1 - 

Appendix 1 and 2 - Commercial Update and Corporate Dashboard 
 

21.1 The Board received the appendices, which set out the Commercial Update and 
Corporate Dashboard. 

 
21.2 The Board noted the appendices and oral updates provided at the meeting. 
 
22   High Level Transition Strategy - Exempt information relating to item on Part 

1 
 

22.1 The Board received the paper regarding the high-level Transition Strategy. 
 

22.2 The Board agreed the recommendations set out in the report, subject to the 
amendment reflected in the private minutes. 

 
23   East Bank - UAL MEP Contract Award - Exempt information relating to item 

on Part 1 
 

23.1 The Executive Director of Construction introduced the report. 
 

23.2 The Board agreed the recommendations set out in the paper. 
 

 

Page 9



 
10 

 

 
24   Foundation for FutureLondon loan repayment - Exempt information relating 

to item on Part 1 
 

24.1 The Executive Director of Regeneration and Community Partnerships introduced 
the paper, which related to the repayment of the loan made by the LLDC to FFL.  

 
24.2 The Board agreed the recommendations set out in the report. 

[Note: See also Minute 2 – Declarations of Interest.] 

 
25   Close of meeting 

 
25.1 The meeting closed at 5.02pm. 

 
 
  
 
 

   

Chair   Date 
 
Contact Officer: Rachel Massey, LLDC, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, 

London E20 1EJ, Tel: 020 3288 1829, Email: 
rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk  

Page 10



 

 

 
 

 
 

Board Actions List (reported to the meeting on 17 March 2020) 
 

Actions from last meeting (4 February 2020) 
 

Minute  Item/Description Action By Target Date Status/note 

5.4 Chief Executive's Report 

Provide Cllr Rachel Blake with travel data collected for fans using Hackney Wick 

station. 

Update: Most recent data (for 2017/18 season) was provided to Cllr Blake by 

email.  This shows 3.5%-4.4% of the crowd, which translates to between 1,500 

and 1,900 spectators. 

Mark Camley March 2020 Complete. See 
update in left hand 
column. 
 

5.5 Chief Executive's Report 

Circulate an event summary of the recent youth conference on the Park to 
Board Members.   

Paul Brickell March 2020 In progress. 

5.6 Chief Executive's Report 

Follow up with the London Borough of Newham on how the Legacy Youth 
Board engage and interact with the youth infrastructure in the legacy boroughs 
in order to ensure strategic alignment with local youth councils/forums and 
local youth plans. 

Paul Brickell April 2020 In progress. 

5.9 Chief Executive's Report 

Include work on e-scooters and cycling report referred to in the report (at 
paragraph) in the session for Board members on accessible/sustainable travel. 

Paul Brickell 
and Mark 
Camley 

May 2020 Scheduled for May 
meeting. 

8.2 Report of the meeting of the Chair's Committee held on 19 November 2019 

Further to a query raised, it was agreed to recirculate the report previously 
submitted to the Board regarding including diversity and inclusion 
responsibilities within each committee’s terms of reference. 

Rachel 
Massey 

March 2020 In progress. 
Update to be 
provided to the 
Board. 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



9.2 Report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held on 10 December 
2019 

Provide Board members with an update regarding Hackney Wick Station 
underpass.  

Rosanna 
Lawes 

March 2020 Complete. Update 
included in CEO’s 
part 2 report. 

17.10 East Bank - UAL's London College of Fashion Update 

Forward any invitations to future grassroots events and other events of interest 
from UAL’s London College of Fashion to Board Members so that members 
continued to have insight into LCF’s work. 

Rachel 
Massey  

March 2020 Complete. 
Invitations will 
continue to be 
forwarded. 

 
Outstanding Actions from previous meetings 
 

Minute  Item/Description Action By Target Date Status/note 

6.5 (23 
July 2019) 

Chief Executive’s report 

Hold a session for Board Members on accessible travel and sustainability in the 
Park.  

Paul Brickell  May 2020 To be scheduled in 
May, following 
discussion at the 
Regeneration and 
Communities 
Committee in 
March. 

6.7 (23 
July 2019) 

Chief Executive’s report 

Update the Board on further developments in relation to the Bow East site. 

 

Lyn Garner / 
Anthony 
Hollingsworth 

May 2019 Ongoing. Update 
included in the 
CEO report. A 
further update will 
be provided 
following 
submission of the 
planning 
application for Bow 
East (due in May). 

9.2 (29 
January 
2019) 

Report of the meeting of the Chair's Committee held on 4 December 2018 

Consider relevant diversity and inclusion KPIs be added to the corporate 
dashboard for future meetings.  

Lyn Garner 
and Sarah 
Perry 

July 2020 Action relating to 
KPIs in progress 
(as noted at 23 
July 2019) 
meeting. KPIs will 
be discussed with 
Chair’s Committee 
in July.  

P
age 12



10.1 (28 
February 
2017) 

New local development scheme and statement of community involvement  

Update the Board on a review of conservation areas and heritage assets.   

Update: Further work has been identified as necessary for the Three Mills 
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Guidelines and this is currently 
being undertaken. A report to Board in May is proposed on the updated draft 
Three Mills CA management Guidelines. 

Anthony 
Hollingsworth 

May 2020 Ongoing – see 
update in left hand 
column.  This report 
has now moved to 
the May meeting. 
 

13.1 (22 
November 
2016) 
18.3 (10 
March 
2016) 

Board effectiveness review 

Discuss with the GLA about undertaking an external review of Board 
effectiveness in future and implement any remaining short and long term 
recommendations from the review that were set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to 
the report. 

Peter Hendy 
 
Rachel 
Massey 

Date TBC in 
2020  

Discussions with 
GLA in progress. 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                
 
Subject: Chief Executive’s report to the LLDC Board  
Date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board  
Report of: Lyn Garner, Chief Executive 
 
 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This report provides progress updates on the activities of the London Legacy 
Development Corporation since the last Board meeting.  

1.2. The quarterly corporate performance report for quarter 3 of 2019/20 is attached 
as appendix 1.  

1.3. A further commercial update on projects and the corporate dashboard is provided 
at appendices 2 and 3 (exempt information). 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report and the appendices. 

 

3. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OVERVIEW  

3.1. Since the last update, key highlights of activity include: 

(a) 180 local schoolchildren experienced a taste of civil engineering at Here East 
as part of the Bridges to Schools programme; 

(b) commencement of procurement process to select a developer for Hackney 
Wick Central; and 

(c) planning permission granted for the QEOP Training Association Training 
Centre.  

 

4. EAST BANK  

4.1. On site work at Stratford Waterfront has continued with minor delays but no 
onward impact to the construction programme. Procurement has continued, in 
January 2020 contract awards were made for three packages and one ITT was 
launched.  

4.2. Enabling works at UCL East’s Marshgate site have completed and piling is now 
underway. Good progress has been made on wind mitigation measures.  

  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



5. LONDON STADIUM 

5.1. In the last report, we noted that Joanna Adams had taken up her post as E20’s 
Chief Commercial Officer. As has been reported in the media, Joanna has 
agreed to take a post as Chief Executive at UK Athletics. Joanna has added real 
value during her time with us and left us in great shape to take the work on the 
commercial strategy forward, and we are working with Joanna to ensure a 
comprehensive handover before she takes up her new post. UK Athletics are a 
key partner for LLDC and we look forward to maintaining our good relationship 
with Joanna when she takes up post.  

 

6. NEW NEIGHBOURHOODS AND DEVELOPMENTS 

6.1 Construction work has progressed on the latest phases of housing at Chobham 
Manor and East Wick and Sweetwater. Phase 1 of Chobham Manor has now 
completed. The first block of the second phase of homes is complete and mostly 
occupied; the rest of Phase 2 has been completed and all units have been sold. 
Construction works for Phase 3 are on programme for completion in summer 
2020 and marketing of the homes commenced with a number of units already 
reserved. Construction for Phase 4 on the development continued on 
programme. 

6.2 Construction for the East Wick and Sweetwater development continued in this 
period. Related infrastructure works for the site are underway, with the Monier 
Road (H14) bridge being lifted out and hoardings erected around the area, 
construction of the new bridge is due to complete early in the new financial year. 
Ongoing work on the North South Highway is due to complete later in 2020, this 
has been delayed due to utility obstructions. Construction continued for the 
Makeshift interim use for opening scheduled in Autumn 2022.  

6.3 Procurement to select a develop for Hackney Wick Central commenced on 31 
January, as part of the plan to deliver a new neighbourhood centre around 
Hackney Wick Station, with 50% affordable homes. Selection of the developer is 
due to be made by the end of 2020 and is being undertaken through the GLA’s 
London Development Panel 2 (LDP2). 

 

7. PLANNING UPDATE  

7.1. Local plan review: Following the public hearings that form a part of the 
independent examination of the revised Local Plan in September 2019, we have 
received a limited number of main modifications that the Inspector is 
recommending in order to make the Plan sound. These principally relate to the 
site allocation for Carpenters Estate (reference to the final number of dwellings 
proposed as part of the consultative process currently being undertaken by LB 
Newham with estate residents) and activities within allocated Strategic Industrial 
Land. These main modifications are subject to public consultation which will 
conclude on 24 February, with adoption of the Plan still scheduled for Spring 
2020. 

7.2. The Greater Carpenters Neighbourhood Plan examination is underway and a 
preliminary report has been issued for comment. is likely to conclude by the end 
of March 2020 when next steps will be agreed. 

7.3. Development Management: On MSG Sphere London, a second round of 
public consultation on the proposal commenced in early December 2019 
following receipt of the additional environmental and other information requested 
by PPDT. The period for public consultation expired at the end of January 2020. 
Following consideration of the material received and responses received as a 

Page 16



result of the additional public consultation, PPDT officers will then report the 
application for determination by the Planning Decisions Committee.  

7.4. On Construction Issues in Hackney Wick and Fish Island, the construction 
management group met in mid-January 2020 and agreed to increase the number 
of visits to monitor vehicle parking and safe pedestrian access in particular 
around Wallis Road. LLDC has agreed to fund these additional enforcement 
visits. Further joint working with the Boroughs was also agreed on permanent 
highway safety enhancement measures on Wallis Road as it narrows under the 
railway over-bridge.  

7.5. On the Telford Homes site, decontamination works were temporarily suspended 
in mid-December at the request of PPDT due to the release of odour. A revised 
way of working has subsequently been agreed with PPDT’s advisors (Arup), with 
works were temporarily suspended but have since recommenced, with continued 
monitoring to ensure compliance with the agreed way of working.  

7.6. A follow up meeting was held with Telford Homes and a representative of local 
residents about construction management issues including breaches relating to 
parking and work during school pick up and drop off times. It was agreed that a 
follow up meeting would be arranged including local authorities and LLDC.  

7.7. Work has continued with landowners at Bow East relating to the concrete 
batching plant. A Planning Application has been delayed until May 2020 and 
PPDT will undertake public consultations once the application is received. We are 
continuing to hold discussions with Network Rail and Homes England on the 
long-term master planning of the site.  

 

8. EAST EDUCATION 

8.1 180 primary school children from Newham, Tower Hamlets, Hackney and 
Waltham Forest experienced a taste of civil engineering at Here East as part of 
the Bridges to Schools programme. The students used their heads (and their 
hands) to work out how to build a 13-metre model cable-stayed bridge, while 
kitted out in hard hats, high-vis vests, gloves and goggles. After the bridge was 
built, each child got the chance to walk across the bridge to test how good their 
engineering skills were. 

8.2 This event, led by LLDC, the Institution of Civil Engineers and infrastructure 
group Balfour Beatty, aims to raise awareness of the exciting careers that 
engineering and the built environment can offer young people. The pupils learnt 
about the importance of safe working practices and collaboration as well as the 
engineering principles and techniques involved in building a bridge including: 
counter weights, towers in compression and cables in tension. Each session was 
presented by members of the Institution of Civil Engineers, who took questions 
about what it is like to work in the field. 

 

Page 17



 

9. JOBS AND SKILLS 

9.1. The development of the QEOP Training Association (TA) has continued with a 
number of steps taken to use the Park’s long-term development pipeline to 
increase diversity and equality in the sector. The TA brings together the Park’s 4 
leading contractors to design and commission fit for purpose construction training 
linked to their developments and to work together to increase number of local 
apprentices. Key activities include a shared apprenticeship service function and a 
Training Centre, a physical resource to support the initiative. The TA’s work is 
shaped by: its focus on increasing opportunities for under-represented groups to 
access the sector; apprenticeships; and delivering fit-for-purpose training 
designed by employers. We are planning to open the Training Centre in spring 
2020. Designs have been finalised and Planning Application was approved in 
February 2020.  

9.2. Hobs Training Academy: this is an LLDC funded initiative to address under - 
representation in the 3D, Virtual Reality and Artificial Intelligence sectors 
particularly for women and BAME people, and is the first of its kind. It is a 
bespoke course designed by and for the sector with Ravensbourne University 
London aimed at young people with some background in related disciplines. A 
12-week pilot has commenced which will culminate in a Level 4 qualification in 
3D skills and an industry placement for successful learners. The Academy was 
launched with prospective employers at an event at Hobs Academy in October 
2019. Twenty-two have started the course with good representation from women, 
BAME groups and underemployed graduates. 

 

10. PARK OPERATIONS, VENUES AND EVENTS 

10.1. Activities on the Park since the last report included the Call of Duty League – 
London; Royal Ravens on 8 and 9 February 2020. The Queen Elizabeth Olympic 
Park Marathon, scheduled for 16 February 2020, was postponed due to Storm 
Dennis.  

10.2. Events scheduled in the coming months include: Race the Thames indoor rowing 
challenge on 28 February 2020, European Road To Tokyo Olympic boxing 
qualifiers on 14-24 March 2020; and the FINA Diving World Series on 27-29 
March 2020; the British Swimming Championships 2020 on 14-19 April 2020; and 
the Street League Skateboarding World Championship on 22-24 May 2020.   

10.3. Our focus for 2020 is on the Year of Sport in the Park to align with the Tokyo 
2020 Olympics and other summer sporting events. This includes four Olympic 
qualifying events taking place on the Park.  

 

11. HACKNEY WICK AND FISH ISLAND CONSTRUCTION TRANSPORT 
MANAGEMENT GROUP  

11.1. The group met on 7 January 2020 and has commissioned a road safety review to 
look at how to address road safety issues around Hackney Wick and Fish Island: 
the report is being drafted for completion in March 2020. The group also agreed 
that there should be closer coordination between the Boroughs and LLDC on 
enforcement.  

 

12. WAYFINDING AND CYCLING 

12.1. New maps were installed across the Park in January 2020 reflecting the changed 
routes and developing construction projects. Additional temporary wayfinding will 

Page 18



be added to hoardings around the Sweetwater plots this spring. Discussions 
continue with Westfield on directing visitors through the shopping centre to the 
Park. 

12.2. The initial draft of the Cycling Audit has been received, and further clarity is being 
sought on a number of points raised. 

 

 

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY 

13.1. LLDC’s health, safety and security is overseen by its Health, Safety and Security 
Committee. The Board receives a report back from each Health, Safety and 
Security Committee meeting which meets at least three times a year, the last 
meeting was on 5 March 2020.  

13.2. This standing item in the Chief Executive’s Report to Board focusses on a 
summary of accidents and any major incidents, with more detailed information 
provided through the Committee as appropriate.  

13.3. The January 2020 period from saw four major event days in Stadium and various 
other smaller events in the public realm. Accidents remained low across the 
month, proportionate to the visitor numbers. There have been no major incidents 
to report. 

13.4. There were a number of issues caused by Storm Ciara in February 2020.  

13.4.1. A wind sail attached to part of a tower crane at East Bank fell to the 
ground, the site closed, although it would have been too windy to work in 
any case, and an investigation is underway.  

13.4.2. The mass guard on Montfichet Rd which LS185 maintains collapsed in 
the high winds. There were no injuries or damage to vehicles. This also 
collapsed during the subsequent Storm Dennis.  

13.4.3. The storm caused a number of items on the Park, including bins, to be 
blown out of place.  

13.5. In the last report a number a number of health and safety incidents at East Wick 
and Sweetwater were noted. Investigations about these incidents have been 
satisfactorily concluded and the reports have been shared with LLDC. A high 
level meeting was held with EWS and Balfour Beatty’s senior H&S team at which 
LLDC shared frustrations over communication. A revised protocol is being 
developed with identified single points of contact and greater clarity over LLDC 
requirements 

13.6. A small section of the ceiling at one of the studios at 3 Mills Studios fell down. 
Nobody was injured but repairs were required. The studio, and three other 
studios which were closed as a precaution, have since re-opened.  

13.7. We have been considering our potential response should a there be an outbreak 
of the Corona virus. For LLDC the plan would mainly be that employees would 
work from home with only essential staff attending the office. For the Park, this 
would largely be left open and self-managed. For the venues, this would be dealt 
with on an event-by-event basis but could include closure. A weekly meeting of 
our senior team has been established to monitor and agree actions.  

13.8. Following the static protest by a West Ham United fan group in January 2020, a 
further protest by fan groups took place on 29 February 2020 without major 
incident. This will be based on a march along the Greenway to gate 1 of the 
Stadium through the Park. LLDC and LS185 are working closely with the 
Metropolitan Police Service and London Borough of Newham and other relevant 
partners to ensure this is managed as safely as possible. We have made clear to 
organisers that the demonstration does not have our explicit support and 

Page 19



although they have declined to follow our procedures that does not allow them to 
abdicate responsibility for any incidents that take place.  

13.9. There was one safeguarding incident to report in January: a football supporter at 
the West Ham United v Everton match at the London Stadium was intoxicated 
and was ejected from the Stadium, leaving children under 10 years old 
unattended. West Ham’s safeguarding team dealt with the situation and the 
police also attended. 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix 1:Quarterly Corporate Report for Q3 2019/20 

Appendix 2: Commercial update (exempt information) 

Appendix 3: Corporate dashboard (exempt information) 

 

List of Background Papers 

Ten Year Plan (approved March 2016) 

 

 

Report originators: Oliver Shepherd, Lyn Garner 
Telephone: 020 3288 1828, 020 3288 1848 
Email: olivershepherd@londonlegacy.co.uk 
 lyngarner@londonlegacy.co.uk  

Page 20

mailto:olivershepherd@londonlegacy.co.uk
mailto:lyngarner@londonlegacy.co.uk


CORPORATE 
PERFORMANCE
OCT–DEC 2019
QUARTER 3

Appendix 1

Page 21



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

2

CONTENTS

1

2

3

4

5
Deliver excellent value for money, and 
champion new models and standards 
which advance the wider cause of 
regeneration, in line with LLDC’s core 
values: Ambition, Responsibility, 
Collaboration, Excellence, Accessibility, 
and Sustainability

Progress against DELIVER milestones 29

Commentary on key projects 32

Key risks 33

DELIVER

INSPIRE

VISIT

WORK

LIVE

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

Establish a 21st century district 
promoting cross-sector innovation, 
education, culture, sport, aspiration 
and participation in east London

Progress against major INSPIRE milestones 24

Commentary on INSPIRE milestones 27

Key risks 28

Create a diverse, unique, successful 
and financially sustainable visitor 
destination

Progress against major VISIT milestones 19

Commentary on VISIT activities 22

Key risks 23

Retain, attract and grow a diverse 
range of high quality businesses and 
employers, and maximise employment 
opportunities for local people

Progress against major WORK measures 13

Commentary on key WORK projects 16

Key risks 18

Establish successful and integrated 
neighbourhoods, where people want 
to live, work and play

Progress against major LIVE milestones 8

Commentary on key LIVE projects 11

Key risks and issues 12

Purpose of the document 3

Summary of progress in Q3 4

Financial Performance Summary 5

Page 22



3

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

INTRODUCTION 
AND SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT

This is a quarterly report that provides an 
update on progress in the work areas and 
against the milestones in the London Legacy 
Development Corporation’s (LLDC, the Legacy 
Corporation) 10 Year Plan, approved March 2016 
queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/ 
the-legacy-corporation/business-plan and the 
Corporation’s 2019/20 budget. It also sets out 
information about the Legacy Corporation’s 
financial performance https://www.london.gov.uk/
sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.
pdf 

The first section provides information about 
financial performance. Subsequent sections are 
grouped by the Legacy Corporation’s strategic 
objectives as set out in the five year strategy: 
Live, Work, Visit, Inspire and Deliver. Each section 
includes progress against milestones, commentary 
on major projects and key risks. Where relevant 
the sections also include monitoring information 
about the Legacy Corporation’s performance 
against targets; the measurement of targets 
commences as projects start to be delivered.

Page 23

https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/the-legacy-corporation/business-plan
https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/the-legacy-corporation/business-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf


LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

4

SUMMARY OF PROGRESS IN THE QUARTER OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2019

LLDC’s major achievements during this period 
are set out below. Further details can be found in 
the body of the report:

• Successful installation of Carpenters Land 
Bridge which will link East Bank with the 
International Quarter London. Continued East 
Bank construction, procurement and design 
works

• Completion of phase 2 of Chobham Manor 
construction and sale of all homes in this 
phase; commenced sales of phase 3 homes. 
Commencement of construction for phase 4. 
Affordable housing increase agreed for the 
development.

• Announcement that Green Day would play 
a concert at the London Stadium in summer 
2020.  

• 150 young people and stakeholders attended 
LLDC’s first ever youth conference on the 
Park.

• The STEP training and employment 
programme was launched. STEP also won the 
Arts and Culture Award at the 2019 Children 
and Young People Now awards.

• Launch of the Hobs Studios training academy 
at Here East

• Copper Box Arena plays hosted the British 
Fasts All-Starts Netball Championship 
on and the British Basketball All-Starts 
Championship.

• Hosted the community focused Family Fun 
Day at the Podium café on 23 October

• Piloted a controlled descent abseil activity at 
the ArcelorMittal Orbit

• E20 Chief Commercial Officer took up post

• Completion of the examination phase for the 
Local Plan.

• Completion of public consultation on the 
plans for the neighbourhood at Pudding Mill 
Lane

• Budget submission for 2020/21 made to the 
GLA.

• Unqualified 2018/19 accounts published for 
E20 Stadium LLP and LS185.

• 2018/19 Annual Environmental Sustainability 
report published

AIMS FOR NEXT PERIOD
• Commence procurement to select a develop 

for Hackney Wick Neighbourhood centre

• Continue construction on Chobham Manor 
and East Wick and Sweetwater sites

• Continued East Bank construction, 
procurement and design works

• Hold events including the Vitality Netball 
Nations Cup, European Olympic boxing 
qualifiers and FIINA Diving World Series

• Planning permission granted for the QEOP 
Training Association training centre.

• Commence construction of the High Ropes 
attraction

• Smart Mobility test bed launched on the 
Park.

• Meet Park visitor estimates for 2019/20

• Conclusion of Local Plan examination

Page 24



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

5

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Oct-Dec 19 31 Dec 19 Full Year 2019/20

Actual
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Actual
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Forecast
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Capital Income

Development (15,724) (6,027) (9,697) (22,180) (30,498) 8,318 (30,502) (32,268) 1,766

East Bank (3,531) 0 (3,531) (10,648) (5,769) (4,879) (53,378) (56,878) 3,500

Park Operations and Venues – excl Trading (5) (20) 15 (15) (45) 29 (652) (52) (600)

Total Capital Income (19,260) (6,047) (13,213) (32,843) (36,312) 3,469 (84,532) (89,198) 4,666

Capital Expenditure

Construction 1,663 1,001 662 5,198 6,437 (1,239) 6,939 6,526 413

Development 2,842 2,227 615 9,279 14,451 (5,172) 14,979 22,854 (7,875)

Executive Office 46 19 27 149 209 (60) 173 228 (55)

Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services 573 679 (106) 2,968 2,165 803 4,332 5,620 (1,288)

East Bank 16,085 23,951 (7,881) 42,282 56,134 (13,852) 62,743 86,842 (24,099)

Park Operations and Venues – excl Trading 265 3,451 (3,186) 2,055 6,926 (4,871) 4,657 10,396 (5,739)

Regeneration and Community Partnerships 32 196 (165) 170 498 (328) 219 695 (476)

Stadium 3,442 5,702 (2,260) 18,352 25,387 (7,035) 24,327 29,945 (5,618)

Capital Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,619 8,444 (2,825)

Total Capital Expenditure 24,947 37,226 (12,295) 80,453 112,207 (31,754) 123,987 171,550 (47,563)

Net Capital Expenditure 5,687 31,180 (25,508) 47,610 75,896 (28,286) 39,455 82,353 (42,898)

Revenue Income

East Bank (15) 0 (15) (15) 0 (15) (15) 0 (15)

Executive Office (7) (6) (1) (22) (23) 1 (29) (29) 0

Development (60) 0 (60) (60) 0 (60) (120) (120) 0

Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services (56) (75) 19 (229) (225) (4) (303) (303) 0

Park Operations and Venues – excl Trading (1,009) (947) (62) (2,671) (2,842) 171 (3,548) (3,791) 243

Park Operations and Venues – Trading (2,225) (1,711) (514) (6,273) (5,261) (1,012) (7,810) (7,502) (308)

Planning Policy & Decisions (560) (400) (160) (1,770) (1,200) (570) (2,502) (1,600) (902)

Total Revenue Income (3,933) (3,139) (794) (11,040) (9,551) (1,489) (14,327) (13,345) (982)

Revenue Expenditure

Communication, Marketing and Strategy 403 423 (20) 1,224 1,245 (21) 1,671 1,726 (55)

Development (11) 0 (11) 5 0 5 118 118 0

Executive Office 543 637 (94) 1,663 1,913 (250) 2,419 2,551 (132)

Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services 1,457 1,567 (109) 4,308 4,699 (390) 5,881 6,266 (385)

Park Operations and Venues – excl Trading 2,208 2,245 (37) 6,375 6,730 (355) 9,102 8,968 134

Park Operations and Venues – Trading 2,101 2,239 (137) 6,354 6,714 (359) 9,010 8,953 57

Planning Policy & Decisions 931 629 302 2,503 1,886 617 3,385 2,515 870

Regeneration and Community 
Partnerships

743 929 (186) 1,628 2,054 (426) 2,585 3,289 (704)

Stadium (29) 0 (29) 6 0 6 0 0 0

Revenue Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 0 559 972 (413)

Total Revenue Expenditure 8,346 8,668 (322) 24,066 25,240 (1,174) 34,730 35,358 (628)

Net Revenue Expenditure 4,414 5,529 (1,115) 13,026 15,689 (2,663) 20,403 22,013 (1,610)

Note: Negative figures within tables represent 
income, underspends and surplusses.

Page 25



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

6

Oct-Dec 19 31 Dec 19 Full Year 2019/20

Actual
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Actual
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Forecast
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Trading

Timber Lodge Café (14) 1 (14) (8) 3 (10) (36) 3 (39)

ArcelorMittal Orbit (AMO) 45 (63) 108 (20) (190) 170 (5) (252) 247

Kiosks 0 (12) 12 (9) (37) 28 (50) (50) 0

The Podium (33) (26) (7) (69) (79) 10 (111) (105) (6)

London Aquatics Centre 424 444 (20) 1,321 1,217 103 1,280 1,324 (44)

Copper Box Arena 190 218 (28) 574 639 (64) 781 810 (29)

3 Mills Studio (577) 0 (577) (1,595) 0 (1,595) (600) 0 (600)

Other Trading Income 0 (31) 31 (44) (91) 47 (121) (265) 144

On  Park Properties (165) (105) (60) (221) (315) 94 (317) (420) 103

Off Park Properties 6 102 (96) 151 305 (154) 379 406 (27)

Total Trading Net (Surplus)/Deficit (124) 528 (652) 81 1,453 (1,371) 1,200 1,451 (251)

S106 & OPTEMS balance (£000) 34,901

CIL balance (£000) 12,199

Opening 
balance

Year to  
date

Forecast  
in-year

Forecast  
closing 

Headroom 
operational

Headroom 
authorised

Borrowings from GLA (£000) 319,566 49,127 57,344 376,910 101,005 111,005

Page 26



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

7

CAPITAL
• The East Bank Agreements for Lease with V&A, Sadler’s Wells and UAL are expected to become 

unconditional in the final quarter of this financial year. On execution of the UAL lease, LLDC will 
receive a lease premium and contributions towards the cost of their building from UAL.

• Expenditure on East Bank is expected to be lower than budget for the year, primarily due to delays 
in executing some package contracts. However, works are well-progressed with a series of significant 
packages about to commence. Any underspend will be carried forward into the next financial year.

• Capital expenditure on the Stadium has been re-phased, with some works now due to take place in 
the next financial year.

• In respect of LLDC’s residential projects (within Development), spend on East Wick and Sweetwater 
infrastructure works and Pudding Mill Lane design and master-planning has also been re-profiled into 
2020/21.

• There are currently £2.8m of net draws on capital contingency, including £0.9m for 3 Mills Studios 
roof repairs (net of £0.3m return to contingency) and £1.4m for 3 Mills Studios river wall obstruction 
costs. 

REVENUE
• Trading performance is significantly ahead of budget for the year-to-date. This is driven primarily 

by higher than anticipated income from 3 Mills Studios, where income targets are expected to be 
exceeded due to a strong order book and despite ongoing major capital works.

• Planning income has also been higher than budget, due to several substantial planning applications 
and Community Infrastructure Levy administration fees. However, this is largely offset by increased 
expenditure on consultancy and other external support to review these submissions.

• There is an anticipated underspend on staffing revenue expenditure for the year, driven largely by 
unfilled vacancies.

• There are currently £0.4m of draws on revenue contingency including a £0.2m drawdown for funding 
for the Good Growth Hub project.

Page 27



8

1. LIVE

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

Establish successful and integrated neighbourhoods, 
where people want to live, work and play

Demand for new housing in London is very high, 
especially in east London. The growth boroughs 
have a particular need for high-quality family 
homes and affordable housing, to keep people 
living in the area for longer which in turn helps 
to build sustainable communities. 

The vision for the Queen Elizabeth Olympic 
Park programme demands that new 
neighbourhoods are not islands of prosperity 
and excellence but properly knitted into the 
existing and developing communities. It also 

requires that neighbourhoods are developed 
in a way that meets high standards of design, 
sustainability and accessibility, delivers all the 
social infrastructure required (schools, health, 
community centres), and includes evidence-
based projects to develop — at pace — the things 
that make communities function effectively. 
Successful neighbourhoods will be vibrant, 
engaged and connected, exemplifying the future 
while also preserving the best of the local 
heritage.

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Chobham Manor phase 2 construction complete 
and phase 3 continues on schedule.

Phase 2 has completed and construction works 
for Phase 3 are underway and on programme. 
Phase 4 construction commenced in this period. 
Marketing of phase 2 homes commenced in this 
period, with a number of units already reserved.

Page 28



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

9

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Progress development strategy for Bromley by
Bow.

LLDC is working alongside key stakeholders in 
the area including local landowners and as a 
result the first two planning applications have 
been approved. These sites have since been 
acquired by The Guinness Partnership who have 
increased the percentage of affordable homes to 
be built to 50% and will begin construction 
shortly.

Dialogue also ongoing with the remaining 
landowners for the north of the Bromley by Bow 
area, which will come forward following TfL 
junction works to the A12.

Progress master planning for Pudding Mill Lane. Design teams have produced initial designs on 
both sites. Public consultation on the designs 
completed in this period.

East Wick and Sweetwater construction 
continues on schedule, including commencement 
of phase 2.

Construction of Phase 1 and Site-wide 
infrastructure works for East Wick and 
Sweetwater development continued in this 
period. In discussions with the Developer about 
the start date of construction of phase 2.

Agree delivery approach for Rick Roberts Way 
with LB Newham and GLA.

Work continues with joint landowners LB 
Newham and with the GLA to reach agreement 
on a delivery strategy and programme. 

Page 29



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

10

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Commence Stratford Waterfront Residential 
Developer Procurement.

The Stratford Waterfront site’s hybrid planning 
application was approved by the Planning 
Decisions Committee in April 2019, with the GLA 
confirming approval for Stage 2 in June.
Procurement of a developer is expected to 
commence in 2020.

Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre 
development partner procurement complete.

The procurement strategy to select a 
development partner was approved by LLDC’s 
Investment Committee in June 2017.
Following GLA planning approval, and the 
completion of soft market testing, the aim is to 
commence procurement in the next period.

3 Mills river walls repair work completed. Construction is well-progressed on the river wall 
repair works, which are scheduled to complete 
in 2020.

Page 30



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

11

Agreement has been made with the Mayor of 
London on a portfolio approach to affordable 
housing across all future housing developments, 
which would see 50% affordable across Hackney 
Wick Central, Pudding Mill Lane and Rick Roberts 
Way. Discussions are ongoing in relation to 
funding and delivering these developments.

CHOBHAM MANOR 
Construction work has progressed on the latest 
phases of housing at the Chobham Manor. 
Phase 1 of Chobham Manor has now completed. 
The first block of the second phase of homes 
is complete and mostly occupied; the rest of 
Phase 2 has completed and all units have been 
sold. Construction works for Phase 3 are on 
programme for completion in summer 2020 
and marketing of the homes commenced, with a 
number of units already reserved.  Construction 
for phase 4 on the development commenced in 
this period.

A deal to increase affordable housing at 
Chobham Manor was announced, providing 
an additional 62 affordable homes at the site 
and bringing the overall level of affordable 
housing from 28% to 35%. this deal will take the 
percentage of affordable homes across Chobham 
Manor from 28% to circa 35% on completion. 
The new homes will be a mix of London Living 
Rent and London Affordable Rent. Importantly, 
a significant proportion (92%) of the new homes 
will be three-bed family sized units. The deal 
sees £22m of grant funding provided from 
LLDC to L&Q, the housing association delivering 
Chobham Manor through a joint venture with 
Taylor Wimpey.   

EAST WICK AND SWEETWATER  
Work has continued to create new 
neighbourhoods, including up to 1,500 new 
homes in East Wick and Sweetwater.

Construction for phase 1 of the East Wick and 
Sweetwater development continued in this 
period. Related infrastructure works for the site 
are underway, with the Monier Road (H14) bridge 
being lifted out and hoardings erected around 
the area, construction of the new bridge is due to 
complete early in the new financial year. Ongoing 
work on North South Highway is due to complete 
later in 2020, this has been delayed due to utility 
obstructions. Construction continued for the 
Makeshift interim use for opening scheduled in 
Autumn 2022.  An unidentified object was found 
on site in this period, there were some media 
reports that this was unexploded ordnance but 
on investigation it was found that this item was 
not ordnance and not a risk 

HACKNEY WICK CENTRAL 
The Planning Decisions Committee resolved to 
grant planning permission for Hackney Wick 
Central in April 2017, the masterplan covering 
the area around Hackney Wick Station. Outline 
planning permission for the Hackney Wick 
masterplan was issued in this period following 
GLA stage 2 sign-off. The procurement strategy 
was approved by LLDC’s Investment Committee 
in June 2017, with the aim to commence 
procurement in the next period. 

PUDDING MILL LANE  
Consultation on the plans for the neighbourhood 
at Pudding Mill Lane commenced in September 
2019. Pudding Mill is comprised of two sites: 
Pudding Mill Lane and Bridgewater which 
together will deliver around 1,500 new homes 
and workspace for around 2,000 people.

Design teams have produced initial designs on 
both sites. Public consultation on the designs 
completed in this period. The comments received 
during the consultation will help shape the 
proposals before a planning application is 
submitted by late 2020. Plans for Pudding Mill 
include new homes to meet the needs of families, 
a new neighbourhood centre around Pudding 
Mill Lane DLR station, creation of new workspace 
and improving connections between Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park to Stratford High Street 
and beyond.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 
COLLECTION AND ALLOCATION 
The Legacy Corporation is required to prepare a 
report for any financial year in which it collects 
CIL. The charging authority must publish the 
report on its website no later than 31 December 
following the end of the reported year. Updates 
will continue to be made quarterly through this 
report.

LLDC  started charging its CIL on the 6 April 
2015.

In Quarter 3 2019/20 two LLDC CIL payments 
were received.      

Date received Amount received

August 2019 £0       

September 2019 £ 0       

Total £1,296,919.88

The Legacy Corporation has continued to 
collect Mayoral CIL: during Quarter 3 2019/20 
£1,864,677.24 was collected. This will be 
transferred to Transport for London (less a 4% 
administration charge retained by LLDC).

COMMENTARY ON KEY LIVE PROJECTS

Page 31



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

12

KEY RISKS AND ISSUES

RAGSUMMARY MITIGATIONIMPACT

Risk relating to future 
housing development 
delivery.

Close working with GLA in 
particular on affordable 
housing, agreeing housing 
strategy, ensure attractive 
propositions to market.

Financial and 
reputational 
impacts. R

Risk relating to the 
success of off-Park 
developments.

Local Plan approved and being 
implemented. Work ongoing on 
development opportunities 
including Hackney Wick,
Pudding Mill Lane, Bromley by 
Bow.

Financial and 
reputational 
impacts. A

Electric capacity requires
reinforcement.

Energy strategy commissioned, 
review and implement findings.

Financial impacts.

Risk relating to current 
housing development 
delivery.

Close work with development 
partners, close economic and 
financial monitoring.

Financial and 
reputational 
impacts. R

Risk relating to impact of 
construction on residents 
and visitors.

Deliver a clear communication 
plan which manages 
expectations and explains the 
reasons for the construction 
work and communicates future 
developments.

Reputational and 
financial impacts.

A

A

Page 32



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

13

2. WORK

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

Retain, attract and grow a diverse range of high quality 
businesses and employers, and maximise employment 
opportunities for local people

London has a growing economy: the GLA projects 
that the number of jobs in London could grow by 
750,000 between 2010 and 2031 across a diverse 
range of sectors. Nearly half (48 per cent) of 
employment growth in this period is expected to 
happen outside central London and businesses are 
looking east for space to grow. Queen Elizabeth 
Olympic Park is perfectly positioned to support 
this trend, with excellent transport links, space for 
office and workshop accommodation at Here East, 
and with housing and leisure on the doorstep. 
The surrounding area includes business districts 
including International Quarter London (IQL), 
Westfield, Stratford town centre, Hackney Wick 
and Here East.

Transport for London (TfL) and Financial Conduct 
Authority (FCA) have re-located into IQL. Other 
organisations such as Cancer Research UK, the 
British Council and Unicef UK will re-locate to 
IQL and it is hoped they will be joined by major 
commercial companies. Westfield (Europe’s largest 
urban shopping centre), Stratford town centre and 
the developing Hackney Wick Neighbourhood 
Centre all have existing and potential thriving 
business communities including a wide range 
of SMEs. The Here East development in the 
former Press and Broadcast Centre buildings 
on the Park is emerging as an important area 
for innovation with major tenants such as UCL, 
V&A, Loughborough University London, BT Sport, 

Studio Wayne McGregor, Hobs Studio and Sports 
Interactive already in place, and significant 
activity is emerging in the key modern industrial 
sectors of digital technology, creative, culture 
and fashion, and the automotive industry. The 
Park is becoming an innovation cluster with a 
global presence to stimulate economic growth 
benefiting people across the four boroughs. This 
has to be done in a way that complements and 
boosts existing local businesses (including SMEs), 
and which makes connections between businesses 
(big and small) that benefit them both and LLDC 
is actively encouraging the development of this 
network. Similarly, over the next five years, LLDC 
needs to support the development of effective 
links between the growing higher education 
presence on the Park and local businesses. The 
Legacy Corporation will use the higher education 
presence to support existing businesses and 
attract and generate new enterprises, an approach 
that should reach its full potential through East 
Bank (formerly the Culture and Education District).

A fundamental plank of LLDC’s strategy is to use 
its remit as a regeneration agency to ensure that 
business growth, development and construction 
generate job opportunities for local people, and 
that local people are supported to access these 
jobs and develop the appropriate skills, through 
apprenticeships and other forms of vocational 
training.

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Continue to deliver the QEOP ‘East Works’ jobs 
and skills programme.

Highlights in this period include the launch of 
the 2019/20 STEP training and employment 
programme, with 15 young people selected from 
over 180 applicants. All East Bank partners were 
involved in the recruitment process and are all 
employing local young people in the programme.

Page 33



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

14

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Continuing the development of the QEOP 
Training Association, delivering the centrally 
commissioned construction training programme.

Delivering the Design…Engineer…Construct (DEC) 
Building Information Modelling (BIM) curriculum 
in five local schools.

Six schools have adopted the curriculum to date. 
Continuing to work with the Black Training and 
Enterprise Group to support DEC candidates who 
have been placed into work. Engagement plan 
with industry to tailor employers’ work with 
individual schools.

In this period, the lease was finalised for the 
Training Centre and Planning application has 
been submitted with determination expected in 
January 2020. 

Delivering the Hobs Studios training academy at 
Here East.

Ravensbourne University London has been 
appointed as training partner and the Academy 
was launched with prospective employers at an 
event at Hobs in in October 2019. Course 
content has been developed and initial phase of 
testing with employers and recruitment of 
learners has launched.

Holding the annual East Works awards. As the Park enters a new phase of development, 
LLDC is reviewing the most effective mechanism 
for celebrating the key role local communities 
and employers have played and will continue to 
play in the construction and management of the 
Park. As a result, it was agreed that the East 
Works awards would not be held this year and 
are unlikely to be held in future years.

Page 34



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

15

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MEASURES

TARGETS

Construction 
•  28% of the workforce have permanent 

residency in Host Boroughs
•  25% of the workforce are from BAME groups
•  5% of the workforce are women
•  3% of the workforce are disabled people
•  3% of the workforce are apprentices

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

The most recent construction figures available 
are to end of November2019
• 31% of construction employees working on the 

Park are Host Borough residents
• 76% of the workforce are from BAME groups
• 6% of the workforce are women
• 3% of the workforce are disabled people
• 4% of the workforce are apprentices

End-use 
•  25–85% of the workforce are from Host 

Boroughs
•  25% are from BAME groups
•  50% are women
•  3–5% are disabled people
• 5% are apprentices

Copper Box Arena and London Aquatics Centre 
Workforce performance as of April 2019 (these 
figures are reported annually):

• 67% workforce Host Borough residents
• 47% workforce are from BAME groups
• 55% workforce are women
• 4% workforce are disabled people
• There are 6 apprentices across the two sites

Estates and Facilities

Workforce performance as of September 2019:

• 60% workforce Host Borough residents
• 60% workforce are from BAME groups
• 30% workforce are women*
• 8% workforce are disabled people
• 10 apprentices on site

* Against contractural target of 30 – 42%.

Page 35



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

16

LLDC continues to work with its partners to 
deliver jobs, training and support to businesses 
through its East Works programme. Key 
highlights include:

The development of the QEOP Training 
Association has continued. The association 
is recommending a Park-wide shared 
apprenticeship framework. This will standardise 
construction contractors’ approach to 
apprenticeship recruitment, payrates and 
conditions and allow for more collaborative 
working. This approach aims to help overcome 
the difficulties some contractors have found in 
meeting apprenticeship targets. 

One of the Training Association’s agreed 
objectives is to support under-representation 
across employment and training opportunities in 
construction. A programme of pre-employability 
training delivered by Capital City College with 
Women into Construction for women that are 
both new to the industry and those with some 
existing experience is currently being delivered 
through CITB-CSF funding. In this period, the 
lease was finalised for the Training Centre and 
the Planning application has been submitted with 
determination expected in January 2020.   

LLDC is working on the development of a  
Good Growth Hub, a physical facility to 
consolidate and scale the East Works programme 
at Clarnico Quay. This will maximise employment 
opportunities for local people and under- 
represented groups. It will expand and scale 
the East Works programme to enable LLDC to 
fully respond to the unprecedented levels of 
employment growth in and around the Park. It 
will establish the Park as an exemplar in the 
design and delivery of high-quality technical 
skills; as the place to access a diverse talent 
pipeline and; as an Innovation District renowned 
for the delivery of ‘Good Growth’.

The Good Growth Hub will connect local people 
from diverse communities and those under- 
represented in the workforce to the employment 
and business opportunities being generated by 
growth in the Cultural, Creative, Fashion and 
Technology industries. Commercial agreement 
with Make Shift signed to secure an 8-year 
lease and fit-out the space to establish the Good 
Growth Hub at Clarnico Quay in autumn 2020.

The 2019/20 STEP training and employment 
programme launched, with 15 young people 
selected from over 180 applicants. All East 
Bank partners were involved in the recruitment 
process and are all employing local young people 
in the programme. The STEP celebration event for 
the 2018/19 cohort was held at Sadler’s Wells 
Theatre. STEP also won the Arts and Culture 
Award at the 2019 Children and Young People 
Now awards. 

Hobs Training Academy: Ravensbourne 
University London has been appointed as 
training partner and the Academy was launched 
with prospective employers at an event at 
Hobs in in October 2019. Course content has 
been developed and initial phase of testing 
with employers and recruitment of learners has 
launched.

LLDC have partnered with the Trampery on a 
Sustainable Fashion Accelerator which aims 
to support growth stage fashion businesses 
based at Fish Island Village and more widely 
across east London. The programme focuses on 
addressing specific barriers to growth as well 
as tackling industry-wide challenges around 
sustainable practise. Alongside this, a Good 
Work Standard for Fashion is being produced to 
support businesses develop fair and inclusive 
work practices and policies. We will be launching 
the programme and showcasing the successes of 
the first cohort at an event at Fish Island Village 
in November 2019. 

Four young people graduated with Masters 
degrees from Loughborough University London 
through LLDC’s Inspiring Success programme. 
40 young people who live around the Park have 
now had their degrees funded by the programme. 
It is targeted at local graduates who attended 
schools in the 4 Boroughs. Applications have now 
opened for the 2020 intake.

COMMENTARY ON KEY WORK PROJECTS

Page 36



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

17

KEY RISKS

RAGSUMMARY MITIGATIONIMPACT

Risk relating to meeting 
priority theme targets and 
wider regeneration 
aspirations.

A strong set of targets agreed 
through procurement and 
contracts; close working with 
partners.

Reputational 
impacts. G

Page 37



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

18

3. VISIT

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

Create a diverse, unique, successful and financially 
sustainable visitor destination

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park opened fully 
to the public in April 2014 and from the 
outset offered ‘something for everyone’ with 
new parklands and playgrounds, world-class 
sporting facilities open for public use, and a 
varied programme of public sporting, cultural 
and community events in the venues and open 
spaces. Nearly four million visitors came in the 
first full year — well above expectations.

The Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park brand 
already competes well against other destination 
hubs, and has a broad profile that is felt to be 
‘different’ to existing offers.

LLDC’s objective in the next five years is that 
visitor numbers should be maintained at least 
at current levels, and that as the Park develops 
the numbers of visitors should increase in line 
with that development. The Stadium brings over 
a million spectators per year and raises the 
profile of the Park through a global TV audience 

of millions. A growing number of people view 
the Park as their local leisure space as the new 
residential developments and workspaces are 
occupied, and the spaces and activities in the 
Park should be a vital component in joining new 
and existing communities together. Attracting 
visitors to the Park is important because it 
ensures the financial sustainability of the venues 
and the upkeep of the Park, brings people in who 
will spend in the local economy (contributing 
to local jobs and wellbeing), and contributes a 
critical mass of people to metropolitan Stratford. 
While increasing the national and international 
appeal of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, LLDC’s 
visitor strategy will also ensure that it is still 
viewed — and used — positively by the local 
community, and maintains its reputation as 
somewhere different and exciting. It will support 
the GLA’s cultural tourism vision, promoting 
authentic cultural opportunities outside central 
London.

Page 38



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

19

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR VISIT MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 ESTIMATED DATE AND COMMENTARY

Support the delivery of a programme of major 
sporting events (including the Diving World 
Series), music festivals and community events.

In this period, the British Fast Fives Netball 
Championship and the British Basketball All-
Starts Championship were held in the Copper 
Box Arena.

Maintain Green Flag status for the Park.

For the sixth year in a row, the Park was 
awarded the Green Flag Award Scheme as one of 
the best parks in the world.

High ropes attraction opens. Delayed due to the investor completing Planning 
requirements.  Construction is due to commence 
in the next quarter for completion early in the 
2020/21 financial year.  

Continue Stadium operations including football, 
summer athletics and Major League Baseball.

The prestigious Muller Anniversary Games was 
held in the London Stadium on 20 and 21 July 
2019. 40,000 spectators attended over the two 
days. Major League Baseball held in the Stadium 
in June. The Stadium successfully moved back to 
football mode for the start of West Ham United’s 
2019/20 season.  

COMPLETE

Page 39



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

20

TARGETS PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Achieve 6.2m visitors to the Park in the context 
of less event space and more construction work.

Visitor numbers to the Park for April to 
December 2019 are estimated at over 5.3 m.

London Aquatics Centre throughput of 1m. Visitor numbers for the London Aquatics Centre 
for April to December 2019 are over 767,000.

Copper Box Arena throughput of 445,000. Visitor numbers for the Copper Box Arena for 
April to December 2019 are over 264,000.   
Whilst attendance is lower than forecast, the 
strong event schedule means the venue is ahead 
of its income target.

ArcelorMittal Orbit throughput of 180,000. Visitor numbers for the ArcelorMittal Orbit for 
April to December 2019 are over 106,000 
visitors, and is forecasting 130,000 visitors by 
year end.  

* Note: The Park figures for 2019/20 are estimates. The camera based approach to collecting visitor numbers was becoming 
increasingly less definitive (e.g. eight cameras but over 20 entrances) and an increasing reliance on estimates. Therefore, the means 
of collecting visitor numbers on the park was revised during 2018 from the camera based system to a wi-fi based approach. While 
the basis of the wi-fi figures is being refined, the park estimates for 2019/20 have been extrapolated using historical park visitor 
numbers and current venue figures.

Page 40



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

21

The Legacy Corporation, on behalf of E20 
Stadium LLP, has completed its work to transform 
the London Stadium in the Park into a year-
round multi- use venue to deliver a permanent 
sporting, cultural and community legacy in east 
London. LLDC took control of the London Stadium 
operator, LS185, through the acquisition by E20 
Stadium LLP of the company.

E20 and LS185’s parent company Vinci came to 
the agreement so both businesses could move 
forward in the direction that matches their 
priorities. This ends a 25-year contract – that 
had 21 years to run – which was proving difficult 
for both parties as it did not deliver the right 
incentives for any party to maximise returns. The 
deal was completed and announced in January 
2019.

Outcomes of the impact event study carried out 
on the economic benefits of the Major League 
Baseball series (MLB) at the Stadium in summer 
2019 were made public in December, generating 
coverage in the Evening Standard and trade 
press. The study, conducted by YouGov, found 
that MLB contributed nearly £47m to the UK 
economy, with close to £37m of this to London’s 
economy. 

The study also highlighted the success of the 
event as a visitor experience: the average 
event satisfaction score as 8.77 out of 10; 59% 
of attendees thought the series was better 
than other sporting events they have been 
to in the past; and 79% of visitors said they 
would now recommend people to visit London. 
MLB also went down well with residents, with 
87% agreeing that the event made a positive 
contribution to the image, appearance and 
reputation of London

It was also announced that Green Day would play 
the London Stadium on 26 June 2020, along with 
Fall Out Boy and Weezer as part of the Hella 
Mega tour.  

Activities on the Park since the last report 
included 5km and 10km runs on 21 September, 
the Memory walk on 29 September, the Great 
Willy Waddle on 26 September; Chase the 
Moon 5km and 10km runs on 9 October and the 
Ovarian Cancer Walk on 12 October; Team GB 
Hockey at Lee Valley VeloPark; Xbox 2019 at 
the Copper Box Arena, International Swimming 
League at the London Aquatics Centre, a sleepout 
for Centrepoint in the north of the Park

COMMENTARY ON VISIT ACTIVITIES

Page 41



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

22

Four art installations from UCL researchers were 
on the Park close to The Last Drop café in October, 
as part of the Trellis Public Art project ahead of 
the opening of UCL East. The Copper Box Arena 
hosted the British Fast Fives Netball Championship 
on 12 October and the British Basketball All-Starts 
Championship on 13 October.  Half Term events 
included Aqua Splash and the Short Swim and 
Diving Courses at the London Aquatics Centre, Six 
Day Cycle at the Lee Valley VeloPark, the London 
Lions at the Copper Box Arena and our community 
focused Family Fun Day at the Podium café on 23 
October.

For one week between 20-27 October the 
ArcelorMittal Orbit promoted a controlled descent 
abseil activity; sales were low, partly because 
of the poor weather, and partly because it was 
not sufficiently dissimilar to the existing abseil 
proposition.

Events scheduled in the next quarter include the 
Vitality Netball Nations Cup is scheduled to take 
place on 25 and 26 January Call of Duty League 
– London Royal Ravens on 8 and 9 February 
2020, the Queen Elizabeth Park Marathon on 
16 February 2020, the Race the Thames indoor 
rowing challenge on 28 February 2020, European 
Olympic boxing qualifiers on 14-24 March 2020 
and the FINA Diving World Series on 29-29 March 
2020. 

Our focus for 2020 is on the Year of Sport in the 
Park to align with the Tokyo 2020 Olympics and 
other summer sporting events. This includes 6 
Olympic qualifying events taking place on the Park. 

Wayfinding continues to develop across the 
estate.  Whilst 82% of respondents to LLDC’s recent 
Visitor Research agreed with the statement that it 
‘is easy to find your way around the Park’, work 
has continued with stakeholders in surrounding 
areas to help people reach the Park through their 
estates.

New signs and maps have been installed on the 
newly opened section of the Greenway and in 
the Pudding Mill area, and an agreement is being 
reached with DLR/TFL for improved wayfinding 
at the Pudding Mill Lane station.  Improved 
Park signage outside the Northern Ticket Hall at 
Stratford Station has been proposed to Westfield, 
and a response is being pursued.  Conversations 
continue with Lend Lease for improved Park venue 
wayfinding on the International Quarter entrance 
to the Park.

On the Park, the approved wayfinding scheme 
continues to evolve with the Park, and new maps 
are to be installed across the site in January 
reflecting the new north/south highway and other 
Park changes.  A project reviewing the integration 
of the East Bank sites into the existing scheme will 
commence in 2020.

Page 42



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

23

KEY RISKS AND ISSUES

RAGSUMMARY MITIGATIONIMPACT

Risk relating to security 
on the Park and the threat 
level.

Monitoring threat levels across 
the Park ensuring appropriate 
security resource and 
implementation of new 
initiatives.

Reputational, 
operational and 
financial 
implications.

R

Risk of unauthorised 
climbers at ArcelorMittal 
Orbit.

Close working with operator,
review of security measures.

Financial and 
reputational 
impacts.

A

Risk that the Stadium 
restructuring will not 
sufficiently improve the 
financial position of the 
Stadium. 

E20 Stadium LLP Board and 
funders considering commercial 
options. Stadium operations 
brought in house.

Financial and 
reputational 
impacts. R

Page 43



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

24

The initial legacy priority was to establish a 
viable future for the Park as somewhere to live, 
work and visit, and the key ingredients of this 
success were laid down early on. This created 
space to review the plans and seek to secure 
an even greater benefit for the surrounding 
community. 

The ambitious vision for East Bank (formerly the 
Culture and Education District) was developed 
with the Mayor of London and the East Bank 
partners, and secured government funding 
following approval of the Full Business Case 
in 2018. The plans have attracted prestigious 
institutions and businesses to the site to foster 
collaboration and innovation, generating a 
projected 2,500 jobs in the Park and an extra 
£2.8 billion of economic value from the area. 

East Bank will create new visitor attractions and 
will seek to attract knowledge-based industries 
to the Stratford site, linking to Tech City, Here 
East and beyond. Building on and working closely 
with the existing thriving arts and culture offer 
in Stratford and Hackney Wick, it will showcase 
London at its cultural and academic best.

Over the coming years, University College 
London will establish a campus with academic 
facilities, student and staff accommodation. 
On Stratford Waterfront, University of the Arts 
London’s College of Fashion, the Victoria and 
Albert Museum collaborating with Smithsonian 
Institution and Sadler’s Wells are key partners 
in the development of a culture and education 
district.

4. INSPIRE

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

Establish a 21st century district promoting cross-sector innovation, 
education, culture, sport, aspiration and participation in east London

Page 44



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

25

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR INSPIRE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Progress EAST Education, an education 
engagement programme with East Bank 
partners.

EAST Education programme being implemented, 
monthly working group ongoing. Collective 
narrative developed.
EAST Summer School planning underway for 
2020

Continue to work with East Bank partners to 
ensure delivery of the East Bank strategic 
objectives and to maximise the value of the 
cluster.

The East Bank Benefits Delivery Plan was 
approved by all partners in this period. 

Stratford Waterfront town planning approved.

The Stratford Waterfront site’s hybrid planning 
application was approved by the Planning 
Decisions Committee in April 2019, with the GLA 
confirming approval for Stage 2 in June.

Stratford Waterfront: start on site construction 
of cultural and educational buildings.

On site work has continued in this period. A 
major milestone was met in December with the 
installation of Carpenters Land Bridge which will 
link East Bank with the International Quarter 
London.

COMPLETE

UCL start on site constructing their new 
university campus, UCL East (undertaken by 
UCL).

Enabling works at UCL East’s Marshgate site 
have completed and piling is now underway. 
Good progress has been made on wind 
mitigation measures. 

Deliver environmental engagement events e.g. 
World Environment Day, Climate Week.

As part of 2019 Earth Hour the lights at the 
ArcelorMittal Orbit were switched off for an 
hour on 30 March.

Deliver the QEOP Smart Sustainable District 
programme.

The trail of the Capri project on the Park, using 
autonomous pods on paths in the Park, was 
undertaken in September 2019.

Page 45



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

26

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR INSPIRE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Deliver three successful community interim use 
sites on and around the Park (Hub 67, Mobile 
Garden City, Warton Road).

Planning permission granted for Clarnico Quay 
submitted including revised location and design 
for the Mobile Garden 

Deliver successful Park Champions programme, 
including obtaining Investing in volunteers’ 
status.

Park Champions volunteering programme 
achieved the Investors In Volunteering award in 
May 2018.

Deliver youth engagement programme to enable 
local young people to feed into future plans for 
the Park and connect opportunities in the Park 
to local young people in East London.

Over 150 young people and stakeholders 
attended LLDC’s first ever youth conference on 
the Park. The event was designed and delivered 
by the Legacy Youth Board and Youth Voice and 
saw young people from local schools and youth 
groups come together to discusses issues that are 
most important to them.

Ensure community plans are in place and are 
being delivered within Chobham Manor, East 
Wick and Sweetwater neighbourhoods and the 
London Stadium. Ensure mechanisms are in place 
amongst East Bank partner institutions to engage 
local communities.

Continued attendance at monthly Chobham 
Manor Residents’ Association and support in 
engaging with the developer on community 
facility.  Chobham Manor community manager 
providing support to residents to deliver their 
own events and activities, including Christmas 
party.
East Wick and Sweetwater: site relations 
underway for infrastructure works and phase 1 
construction works. Community facilities group 
established and support being provided
Monitoring deliverables within London Stadium’s 
Community Engagement Plan.

Page 46



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

27

East Bank

The Mayor of London broke ground at an event 
on 2 July to mark the start of construction on 
East Bank – the country’s new powerhouse 
of culture, education, innovation and growth. 
Work began at the new UCL East and Stratford 
Waterfront sites at Queen Elizabeth Olympic 
Park, which will become the largest culture and 
education project for a generation, helping to 
cement the capital’s reputation as a world leader 
in these fields.

On site work at Stratford Waterfront has 
continued with minor delays but no onward 
impact to the construction programme. 
Procurement has continued including the 
appointment of two contracts in September: UAL 
Frame and Site Accommodation.  RIBA Stage 4 
design work is substantially complete.  

A major milestone was met in December with 
the installation of Carpenters Land Bridge which 
will link East Bank with the International Quarter 
London. The bridge was manufactured by Briton, 
a company based in Hucknall, Nottingham, and 
transported down to London in parts, where 
it was then assembled on site and welded 
together. As it spans several live railway lines, 
the installation was undertaken over Christmas 
Day to coincide with other planned engineering 
works.  

In total, the bridge is 65 metres long, 7 metres 
wide and weighs approximately 375 tonnes, and 
was lifted into place using Self Propelled Modular 
Transporter. It’s made of corten steel, which will 
impart its trademark rust-like appearance after 
exposure to weather.

While the bridge will remain closed until 2022, 
it will become a main access route between 
International Quarter London, home to Cancer 
Research UK, the British Council, Financial 
Conduct Authority and Transport for London, and 
East Bank. This will also create a link between 
Stratford and the Park, and its position between 
UAL’s London College of Fashion and the new 
V&A building will make it even easier for people 
to visit and enjoy the East Bank buildings.

Enabling works at UCL East’s Marshgate site have 
completed and piling is now underway. Good 
progress has been made on wind mitigation 
measures. 

Community engagement

Over 150 young people and stakeholders 
attended LLDC’s first ever youth conference on 
the Park. The event was designed and delivered 
by the Legacy Youth Board and Youth Voice and 
saw young people from local schools and youth 
groups come together to discusses issues that are 
most important to them. Discussions focussed 
on: climate change, education, employment/

COMMENTARY ON INSPIRE MILESTONES

Page 47



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

28

enterprise, mental health, and social order, and 
young people got the chance to express their 
concerns and come up with ideas on how they 
would like things to be in the future. 

The key part of the evening was centred on 
a panel discussion and Q&A which included 
Mayor Glanville, Mayor Fiaz, Geoff Thompson, 
Lyn Garner and two young people; Leia from 
Spotlight Youth Empowerment Network and 
Katy from Waltham Forest Young Advisors. The 
panel were asked questions on; what they feel 
the challenges are facing young people today, 
climate change, education and studying abroad 
and the kind of future they would like to see for 
young people. The panel responded updating on 
some of the initiatives they are leading on in 
connection to these areas.  The event was hosted 
by two of our young people who injected great 
energy into the evening. Mete Coban spoke about 
the power of youth democracy and Hassan Patel 
gave an incredible speech encouraging young 
people in the room to take action and to believe 
that anything is possible. This event gave us the 
chance to collaborate with the Youth Charter, and 
Unicef who now have their headquarters on the 
Park. 

Overall this was a fantastic celebration of young 
people in the local area giving them a positive 
space to express themselves and feed into live 

debates. We will develop an event summary 
capturing some of the key themes that came out 
of the discussions, which the Youth Board will 
review in terms of what they might be able to 
take forward and we hope to run this event in 
the future. 

“They LOVED the performances, Hasan Patel, the 
fact that panellists ‘looked like them’ (i.e. Young, 
from East London, ethnic minorities etc.) and the 
kind of topics discussed. Overall, they all said 
they would come again and would recommend to 
others” Teacher, Mulberry School for Girls.

A public drop in session on emerging designs 
for the Pudding Mill Lane development was 
held on 17 October at Pudding Mill Lane DLR 
station with good local attendance. The first 
round of consultation completed on 23 October 
and feedback sessions have been held with the 
design team and the stage 1 consultation report 
completed. 

A GLA ‘Learn at Lunch’ session on EAST Education 
was held on 3 October and was well attended. 
Following a separate briefing for GLA Culture and 
Creative Industries team, GLA have been invited 
to join the East Education Working Group

The Family Fun Day was successfully delivered 
at the Podium, attended by just over 800 local 
people

KEY RISKS

RAGSUMMARY MITIGATIONIMPACT

Risk that the East Bank 
will be delayed or costs 
will be more than 
anticipated.

Effective design management 
and coordination. Cost control. 
Close work with partners, GLA 
and Government. Three lines of 
defence assurance approach.
Planning permissions in place.

Financial 
implications and 
programme delays. R

East Bank construction
interface and procurement 
risk.

Experienced and well- 
resourced project management 
partner, LLDC team and 
assurance.

Financial 
implications
and programme 
delays.

R

Risk to East Bank funding. Close working with Foundation 
for Future London.  Full 
Business Case for the project 
approved securing Government 
funding. Ensure best outcome 
from residential development.

Financial 
implications and 
programme delays. R

Page 48



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

29

5. DELIVER

LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

Deliver excellent value for money, and champion new models and standards 
which advance the wider cause of regeneration, in line with LLDC’s core values: 
Ambition, Responsibility, Collaboration, Excellence,  
Accessibility and Sustainability

Work in this area includes functions to support 
the delivery of the Legacy Corporation’s 
objectives through services including 
finance, human resources, IT and information 
management, programme management, legal 
and procurement. This section also covers 
the Communication, Marketing and Strategy 

directorate which is responsible for the external 
reputation of the Legacy Corporation and Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park, and defines the way 
we manage all of our external activity and 
relationships. In addition, it is responsible for 
shaping the long-term organisational goals and 
ambitions, through its strategy work.

PROGRESS AGAINST DELIVER MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Work towards improved financial sustainability 
Ongoing delivery of the restructuring plan of the 
Stadium.

LLDC and E20 Stadium LLP (E20) is working with 
London Stadium 185 Limited (LS185) to 
maximise the fantastic potential of the venue 
and ensure that progress continues to be made 
in getting the London Stadium on a firm financial 
footing. LLDC will seek to maximise the 
commercial opportunities from the events and 
assets and joining up the potential across all 
parts of LLDC’s offer.

Health and safety
Construction undertaken without a fatal accident 
on site; to prevent any life-changing injury or 
occupational ill-health for any individual; and to 
minimise RIDDOR reportable accidents to a rate 
below 0.17 per 100,000 hours worked.

There have been two RIDDOR reportable 
accidents at the East Wick and Sweetwater site 
which have been reported to the Health and 
Safety Executive: an operative slipping on site 
and fracturing his ankle; and a Banksman 
sustaining a double fracture to his foot/ankle 
because of a telehandler reversing. This means 
that for the East Wick and Sweetwater site the 
reportable accidents rate since the start of the 
financial year is 0.73 per 100,000 hours worked, 
above the target rate. There have been no 
reportable accidents between April and December 
2019 in any of the other construction sites.

Page 49



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

30

PROGRESS AGAINST DELIVER MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Deliver an effective and responsive planning 
service. At least 70% of applications determined 
in time.

This has been exceeded each month in this 
quarter, with 94% of applications determined in 
time in October 2019.

Develop and agree high-level LLDC Transition 
strategy.

The high-level Transition Strategy is due to 
submitted to Board in February 2020. 

Annual 
Environmental 
Sustainability 
Report
published.

The 2018/19 Annual Environment Sustainability 
Report was published in this period. 

Number of planning enforcement cases closed 
per month.

Nine enforcement case have been closed in this 
period. 31 cases are open at the end of the 
period.

Unqualified annual accounts for LLDC and E20 
for 2018/19.

Unqualified 2018/19 annual accounts have been 
published for LLDC, E20 Stadium LLP and LS185. 

Conclude finalisation of revised Local Plan. The revised Local Plan and Community 
Infrastructure Levy were submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate for examination in March 
2019.  The Public Examination hearings took 
place over four days during the week 
commencing 16 September 2019. Conclusion of 
the examination is scheduled for March 2020. 

COMPLETE

COMPLETE

Page 50



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

31

PLANNING

Local plan review: Following the independent 
examination in public of the revised Local Plan in 
August 2019, we have received a limited number 
of main modifications that the Inspector is 
recommending in order to make the Plan sound. 
These principally relate to the site allocation for 
Carpenters Estate (reference to the final number 
of dwellings proposed as part of the consultative 
process currently being undertaken by LB 
Newham with estate residents) and activities 
within allocated Strategic Industrial Land. These 
main modifications will be subject to public 
consultation in January, with adoption of the 
Plan still scheduled for spring 2020. 

Development Management: On MSG Sphere 
London, a second round of public consultation 
on the proposal commenced in early December 
2019 following receipt of the additional 
environmental and other information requested 
by PPDT. The period for public consultation 
expires at the end of January 2020. Following 
consideration of the additional material received 
and responses received as a result of the 
additional public consultation, PPDT officers will 
then report the application for determination by 
the Planning Decisions Committee. 

On Construction Issues in Hackney Wick and 
Fish Island, the construction management group 
met in mid-December and agreed to increase the 
number of visits to monitor in particular vehicle 
parking and safe pedestrian access in particular 
around Wallis Road. LLDC has agreed to fund 
these additional visits by Borough highways 
officers. Further joint working with the Boroughs 
was also agreed on permanent highway safety 
enhancement measures on Wallis Road as it 
narrows under the railway over-bridge. On the 
Telford Homes site, decontamination works were 
temporarily suspended in mid-December at the 
request of PPDT due to the release of odour. A 
revised way of working has subsequently been 
agreed with PPDT’s advisors (Arup), with works 
due to commence again in early January, with 
continued monitoring to ensure compliance with 
the agreed way of working. 

Work has continued with landowners at Bow 
East relating to the concrete batching plant. A 
Planning Application has been delayed until 
May 2020 and PPDT will undertake public 
consultations once the application is received. 
LLDC is continuing to hold discussions with 

Network Rail and Homes England on the long-
term master planning of the site.  

The bidding round for phase 2 Neighbourhood 
Priorities Fund for CIL fund concluded and 20 
bids were received for community projects 
across the area and £885,000 was awarded to 
fund 14 projects 

SUSTAINABILITY  
Smart mobility update: Capri project 
The purpose of the project is to build passenger, 
regulatory and market confidence in autonomous 
pods as a practical, safe and affordable way 
to travel. The project will achieve this by 
demonstrating an on-demand autonomous 
pod service.  The September 2019 trialling of 
connected/ autonomous pods on the Park went 
well.  The second trial was originally planned 
for January 2020, but has been moved to 
March 2020 in order to include the technical 
and operational learnings from the first trial, 
extending the route and complexity of vehicle/ 
passenger interface, with a strong (QEOP specific) 
evidence base regarding safety/ security. https://
caprimobility.com/ 

Smart Mobility Living Lab  
This aims to build the UK’s most advanced 
environment for developing future transport 
technologies, services and business models. The 
project legacy will be a permanent driverless 
vehicle test environment in the Park. The main 
focus of this project currently is the roadside 
build so the installation of the equipment 
needed to create the test bed and securing 
garage and office space on the Park, followed by 
commissioning and a small number of vehicles 
using the route. Once the test bed is operational 
it will be operated by Smart Mobility Living Lab: 
London Limited testing a whole range of use 
cases and technologies. 

The development of a commercially operated 
testbed for connected and autonomous 
vehicles is progressing well, with infrastructure 
installation and premises preparation (at Here 
East) on target for the test-bed’s launch in March 
2020.  www.smartmobility.london/ 

Environmental reporting  
The 2018/2019 Environmental Sustainability 
Report (charting progress against LLDC 
sustainability objectives) was published in this 
period: https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.
co.uk/-/media/qeop-sustainability-report-18-19-
v420-final.ashx?la=en

COMMENTARY ON KEY PROJECTS

Page 51



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

32

COMMUNICATIONS, MARKETING AND STRATEGY 
LLDC continued its marketing campaigns to 
encourage visitors to the Park and its venues, 
including the conclusion of the successful 
summer campaign which highlighted that the 
Park is free to enter through use of high impact 
platforms

The Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive 
appeared before the London Assembly’s Budget 
and Performance Committee on 18 December 
2019.  

LLDC was delighted to see that LLDC’s Board 
Member, Baroness Tanni Grey-Thompson DBE, 
was recognised with the Lifetime Achievement 
Award at the BBC’s 2019 Sports Personality of 
the Year. The award is given to someone who 
has made a major impact on the world of sport 
during their career, and was presented by the 
cyclist Sir Chris Hoy. Tanni won 16 Paralympic 
medals in total, was five times world champion 
and won the London Marathon six times. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
LLDC’s health, safety and security is overseen by 
its Health, Safety and Security Committee and led 
at the executive level by Mark Camley, Executive 
Director of Park Operations and Venues. The 
Board receives a report back from each Health, 
Safety and Security Committee meeting which 
meets at least three times a year, the next 
meeting is to be arranged. This standing item in 
the Chief Executive’s Report to Board focusses on 
a summary on accidents and any major incidents, 
with more detailed information provided through 
the Committee as appropriate.  The Health 
and Safety Policy and Safeguarding Policy are 
separate items on the agenda for this meeting.

Committee and led at the executive level by Mark 
Camley, Executive Director of Park Operations 
and Venues. The Board receives a report back 
from each Health, Safety and Security Committee 
meeting which meets at least three times a year, 
the next meeting is to be arranged. This standing 
item in the Chief Executive’s Report to Board 
focusses on a summary on accidents and any 
major incidents, with more detailed information 
provided through the Committee as appropriate.  

The period from October to December saw six 
major event days in Stadium; one major event at 
the Copper Box Arena and one major event and 
various other smaller events in the public realm. 
Accidents remained low across the three months, 
proportionate to the visitor numbers. There have 
been no major incidents to report. 

Increased theft from sites including fork lift 
truck being stolen from UCL’s Pool St site. Each 
construction site been advised to put their own 
plans in place.

There have been health and safety incidents 
at East Wick and Sweetwater. As part of the 
infrastructure works it was reported by LLDC 
security that a member of the public was struck 
by an over turned Waterfilled Universal Road 
separator barrier in December 2019 and was 
taken to hospital. A draft incident report was 
submitted to LLDC regarding the incident and 
should any further information be received 
the investigation will be reviewed and reports 
updated accordingly by Balfour Beatty.

Two RIDDOR reportable incidents have been 
reported in the Phase 1 construction works in 
December 2019. The first involved an operative 
slipping on site and fracturing his ankle. This has 
been reported to the Health and Safety Executive 
(HSE).  The second incident occurred on 12 
December 2019 which resulted in a Banksman 
sustaining a double fracture to his foot/ankle. 
The injury occurred as a result of a telehandler 
reversing and investigations are ongoing. This 
incident has also been reported to HSE. 

Following these incidents, LLDC wrote to Balfour 
Beatty on 18 December 2019 raising their grave 
concerns over the recent incidents along with an 
offer to brief Balfour Beatty staff on the recently 
rolled out LLDC Health and Safety Policy (October 
2019) to ensure clear lines of communication 
and reporting are abided by all contractors on 
the Park moving forwards should any future 
incidents occur. A meeting has been arranged to 
discuss this.   

LLDC’s 2021/21 Budget was submitted to the 
GLA in this period.  

Page 52



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

33

KEY RISKS

RAGSUMMARY MITIGATIONIMPACT

Revenue budget risk: 
generating income and 
making savings

Housing strategy, tight 
monitoring and financial 
control, savings and 
efficiencies, commercial 
opportunities, close working 
with GLA

Financial and/ or 
delivery impacts. 
Reputational 
impacts.

Capital budget risk: 
generating income and 
managing cost pressures.

Housing strategy, tight 
monitoring and financial 
control, savings and 
efficiencies, commercial 
opportunities, Stadium 
Business Plan, close working 
with GLA

Financial and/ or 
delivery impacts. 
Reputational 
impacts.

R

R

Risk about successful
implementation of the 
Local Plan including 
sufficiency of community 
infrastructure.

Progress reporting including
annual monitoring report, 
review of local plan including 
population forecasts.

Reputational 
impacts

A

Risk about the impacts of 
Health and Safety failures, 
including East Bank.

A comprehensive Health and 
Safety programme is in place, 
designed to identify and 
manage the construction risks 
and led actively by LLDC and 
its project management 
partner. Oversite through 
Health, Safety and Security 
Committee.

The possibility of 
serious injuries or 
fatalities, the 
consequences of 
which may include 
significant delays 
and reputational 
damage.

R

Risk relating to the 
potential impact of policy 
change on the 
Corporation, including 
leaving the EU.

Continue political engagement 
work and briefings. Work 
through implications of 
withdrawal from the EU.  

Programme delays,
budget impacts.

R

Page 53



LLDC Corporate Performance October – December 2019

34
Page 54



 

 

   
 
Subject: Report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held 

on 25 February 2020  
Meeting date:  17 March 2020  
Report to: Board  
Report of: Peter Hendy, Chair of the Investment Committee 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. SUMMARY  

1.1. This paper provides the formal report of the Investment Committee held on 25 
February 2020. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Board is asked to note this report. 

 

3. ISSUES DISCUSSED AT THE 25 FEBRUARY MEETING  

December 2019 Management Accounts  

3.1. The Committee noted a report on the Corporation’s Management Accounts for 
the financial year to 31 December 2019.  

Key Projects Commercial report 

3.2. The Committee received the quarterly commercial update on key projects.  

East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction update  

3.3. The Committee received a report on Stratford Waterfront construction progress. 
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a report containing further exempt information. 

East Wick and Sweetwater Update 

3.4. The Committee received a report on the East Wick and Sweetwater 
development. Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press 
and public, the Committee agreed the recommendations in the report containing 
exempt information.  

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. Legal advice for matters considered by the Committee is addressed in the 
individual committee reports. 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 

 

List of Background Papers 

Papers for the meeting of the Investment Committee on 25 February 2020 (contains exempt 

information) 

 

 
Report originator(s): Rachel Massey 
Telephone: 020 3288 1829 
Email: rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk  
 
 
 

Page 56

mailto:rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk


 

 

                                        
 
 
Subject: Report of the Audit Committee  
Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board  
Report of: Keith Edelman, Chair of the Audit Committee  
 

 
 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This paper provides an update to the Board on the meeting of the Audit 
Committee which was held on 5 March 2020.   

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report and approve the 2020/21 Internal 
Audit plan. 

 

3. ISSUES DISCUSSED ON 5 MARCH 2020 

3.1 The Committee considered the Deputy Chief Executive’s update including 
updates on finance, commercial and procurement, information governance, 
transparency, and information management.  The Committee also considered an 
update on Modern Slavery and whistleblowing disclosures and further 
appendices containing exempt information on tax and accounting, added debt 
analysis, procurement and insurance and transparency. 

3.2 The Committee received a presentation from the GLA’s Chief Investment 
Officer focusing on the GLA investment plans for 2020/21, the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and the borrowings from the GLA for capital 
purposes. 

3.3 The Committee reviewed the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy and 
recommended it for approval by the Board.  There is a separate item on the 
agenda for this meeting relating to this. 

3.4 The Committee received an update on internal audit and assurance and 
recommended the proposed 2020/21 Internal Audit plan for Board approval. This 
is attached at Appendix 1. 

3.5 The Committee also noted: 

(a) the LLDC Group External Audit Plan for 2019/20; 

(b) the LS185 2018 Audit Results report and EY’s management letter sent as 
follow up to the audit; and 

(c) an update on the LS185 risk management and internal controls improvement 
plan. 

 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. Legal advice for matters considered by the Committee is addressed in the 
individual committee reports. 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
 
Appendix 1: 2020/21 Internal Audit plan 
 

List of Background Papers 

Papers for the meeting of the Audit Committee 5 March 2020 

 

 

 

Report originator(s): Marion O’Donnell 
Telephone: 020 3288 1867 
Email: marionodonnell@londonlegacy.co.uk 

Page 58

mailto:marionodonnell@londonlegacy.co.uk


 

Appendix 1: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
 

 MOPAC Directorate Audit, Risk and Assurance are the Internal Audit provider to the LLDC 

 The number of days estimates include fieldwork and the necessary time for management and supervision in planning, liaising and closing the 
audits. 

Audit Area 
Corporate 
risks and 

issues 
Broad Scope 

Indicative 
Quarter 

Indicative 
Timing 

No. of 
Days 

Follow Ups N/A 
To assess progress made by management in the implementation of recommendations raised as part of previous 
audits: Construction Management, Procure to Pay, Contract Management, Stadium Reviews etc.  

Q1 – Q4 
Throughout 

2020/21 
10 

Income Recovery 4 & 16 
To assess the effectiveness of the income recovery framework and review the process in place for income collection. 
This review will be focused on off-site properties and fixed estate charges. 

Q1 June 2020 14 

Shared Legal Service 
(Transport for London {TfL} 

Legal) 

Various 
To provide assurance on the effectiveness of the shared legal services framework and to assess the adequacy of the 
services in place between LLDC and TfL Legal. 

Q2 August 2020 14 

East Bank – Project 
Management Partner 

(MACE) 

EB1 
To provide assurance on MACE’s processes in place for administering and monitoring contracts/packages, and to 
assess the effectiveness of the reporting framework between MACE and LLDC.  

Q3 October 2020 14 

LS185 Governance and 
Business Plan 

I.1 & 6 
To provide assurance on the processes established at LS185 to meet Business Plan objectives and targets, and to 
assess the effectiveness of the governance framework in place following in a year under LLDC’s ownership. 

Q3 
November 

2020 
15 

LLDC, E20 & LS185 Human 
Resources Policy 

6, 18 & 20 

To provide assurance on the policies in place covering key HR processes to E20, LLDC and LS185; including Anti-
bribery and Gifts and Hospitality. 

Q4 
January/ 

February 2021 
25 

LLDC, E20 & LS185 Payroll 
To assess the effectiveness of the payroll arrangements and the control framework in place for the processing of 
LLDC’s, E20 and LS185’s payroll. 

IT Post Transition to GLA 15 & 24 
To review information technology processes following the transition to the GLA and to assess the effectiveness of 
processes in place to manage the service between LLDC and GLA. 

TBC 
TBC 

(dependent on 
transition) 

10 

Audit Committee & Contract 
Management 

N/A 
 Preparation for and attendance at Audit Committee meetings. 

Monthly contract management and contingency for ad hoc work. 
Q1 – Q4 

Throughout 
2020/21 

18 

Total Days     120 

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

    
 
 
Subject: Report of the meeting of the Chair’s Committee held on 5 March 

2020 
Meeting date:  17 March 2020  
Report to: Board  
Report of: Peter Hendy, Chair 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This paper provides the formal report of the Chair’s Committee meeting held on 5 
March 2020. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report. 

 

3. ISSUES DISCUSSED AT THE 5 MARCH MEETING 

People Strategy update 

3.1. The Committee received an update on the People Strategy including updates on 
updates on inclusion and diversity and the employee engagement survey.  
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a further report containing exempt information. 

Transition Strategy – workforce plan.  

3.2. The Committee received an update on the Transition Strategy workforce plan.  
This is one the key workstreams of the LLDC’s High Level Transition Strategy 
which was approved by the LLDC Board at its meeting on 4 February 2020.  
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a further report containing exempt information. 

Consultant/interim staff update 

3.3. The Committee received an annual update on the consultant/interim staff.  LLDC 
employs a number of workers on temporary or interim contracts to cover time 
limited projects or interim need and provide flexibility in workforce management.  
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a further appendix containing exempt information on the costs 
and time frames of their engagement.  The Committee agreed to receive updates 
every six months. 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Annual pay review 

3.4. The Committee received an update on the annual pay review and following a 
positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the Committee 
agreed the recommendation in the report containing exempt information. 

Chief Executive’s performance v objectives for 2019/20 

3.5. The Committee received an update on the performance against the overarching 
2019/20 objective for the Chief Executive. Following a positive resolution to 
exclude members of the press and public, the Committee agreed the Chief 
Executive’s annual appraisal outcome in line with the performance award criteria. 

Chief Executive’s objectives for 2020/21 

3.6. The Committee received an update on the Chief Executive’s 2020/21 objectives. 
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee agreed the Chief Executive’s objectives, subject to revisions 
discussed at the meeting. 

Chief Executive’s remuneration update 

3.7. The Committee received an update on the Chief Executive’s renumeration. 
Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee agreed the recommendations in the report containing exempt 
information. 

Any other urgent business 

3.8. The Committee received an update on the LLDC’s response to the Coronavirus. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 

 

List of Background Papers 

Papers for the meeting of the Chair’s Committee on 5 March 2020 

 

 

 
Report originator(s): Rachel Massey 
Telephone: 020 3288 1829 
Email: rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk  

Page 62

mailto:rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk


 

 

   
 
Subject: Report of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Security Committee 

held on 5 March 2020 
Meeting date:  17 March 2020  
Report to: Board  
Report of: Simon Blanchflower, Chair of the Health, Safety and Security Committee 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. SUMMARY  

1.1. This paper provides the formal report of the Health, Safety and Security 
Committee meeting held on 5 March 2020. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report. 

 

3. ISSUES DISCUSSED AT THE 5 MARCH 2020 MEETING 

Executive Director’s report 

3.1. The Committee noted a report from the Executive Director which provided an 
overview of health, safety and security activities including the number of incidents 
between September 2019 and January 2020 (inclusive). There were four major 
incidents in the period; one non RIDDOR incident (the unidentified object found 
at the North-South Highway and two RIDDOR incidents at East Wick and 
Sweetwater and one at East Bank).  

3.2. The Committee were also updated on the remaining recommendations from the 
Trivandi report on Stadium health and safety when LS185 was brought in house 
in January 2019. The majority of these are scheduled to be completed by the end 
of March 2020 and a follow up review by Trivandi will be arranged for early in the 
new financial year. 

3.3. Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a further report containing exempt information including further 
detail on the three RIDDOR incidents. 

Construction related Health and Safety update 

3.4. The Committee noted a report on the LLDC’s Health and Safety wellbeing activity 
related to construction activity at housing development sites and East Bank and 
construction traffic. Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the 
press and public, the Committee noted a further report containing exempt 
information. 

 
 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



 

 

LLDC Venue Safeguarding Report  

3.5. The Committee considered a report on safeguarding for June-December 2019 as 
reported by the venues across the Park, events and Our Parklife (who run the 
Park volunteer programme). There were sixteen reported incidents in total - eight 
incidents were reported from the venues and, where relevant, referrals were 
made. There have been eight reported incidents within the Park. 

3.6. The Committee received an update on the discussions with Our Parklife about 
options for carrying out basic DBS checks on the Park volunteers in addition to 
the ID checks which already take place. The Committee recommended an option 
to progress and further discussions will take place.  

3.7. Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and public, the 
Committee noted a further report containing exempt information. 

Health, Safety and Security Risk Review 

3.8. The Committee considered a report on the major health and safety risks identified 
by LLDC. Following a positive resolution to exclude members of the press and 
public, the Committee discussed the risk heat map containing exempt 
information. 

Forward Plan 

3.9. The Committee considered a report on the key dates and consequent workplan 
for the Committee over the next 12 months.  

Any other urgent business 

3.10. The Committee received an update on the LLDC’s response to coronavirus. 

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. Legal advice for matters considered by the Committee is addressed in the 
individual committee reports. 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 

 

List of Background Papers 

Papers for the meeting of the Health, Safety and Security Committee on 5 March 2020. 

 

 

Report originator(s): Rachel Massey 
Telephone: 020 3288 1829 
Email: rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk  
 

Page 64

mailto:rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk


 

 

                                          
 

Subject: Report of the meeting of the Regeneration and Communities 
Committee to be held on 16 March 2020 

Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board  
Report of: Sonita Alleyne, Chair of the Regeneration and Communities Committee  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1. The 16 March 2020 meeting takes place after the statutory deadline for the 
dispatch of papers for the March Board meeting, a verbal update will be given at 
the meeting.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report. 

 

3. ISSUES TO BE DISCUSSED AT THE 16 MARCH 2020 MEETING 

3.1. The Regeneration and Communities Committee meeting which had been 
scheduled for 12 December 2019 did not take place because it was not quorate. 
Paper for the meeting were produced and circulated and a note was placed on 
the website before the meeting to notify members of the public that the meeting 
would not be held. All business was carried over to the next meeting on 16 March 
2020.  

3.2. The Committee is meeting on 16 March 2020 to consider the following items: 

(a) the Executive Director of Regeneration and Community Partnership’s report 
including updates on jobs and skills and Living Places; 

(b) an update on sustainability and the 2018/19 Environmental Sustainability 
Report; and 

(c) an update on the Good Growth Hub. 

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. Legal advice for matters considered by the Committee is addressed in the 
individual committee reports. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 
 

List of Background Papers 

Papers for the meeting of the Regeneration and Communities Committee on 16 March 

2020 

 

Report originator(s): Oliver Shepherd 
Telephone: 020 3288 1828 
Email: olivershepherd@londonlegacy.co.uk 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10

mailto:olivershepherd@londonlegacy.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



                     

 
Subject: Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 
Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board  
Report of: Richard Irish, Finance Director 
 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report constitutes the London Legacy Development Corporation’s (LLDC’s) 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 prepared in 
accordance with the Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of 
Practice (the Code), issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and relevant legislation. 

1.2 The Corporation’s activities within the scope of the TMSS are the investment of 
Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) balances (c£16m) via the 
GLA Group Investment Syndicate (GIS) and borrowings from the GLA for capital 
purposes (the Corporation has no other borrowings). LLDC’s day-to-day cash 
requirements are funded by the GLA based on need. This report is presented as 
templated by the GLA Treasury Group.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to approve the LLDC TMSS for 2020/21, including the 
Treasury Management Policy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, 
relevant Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Limits, Group 
Investment Syndicate Investment Strategy, and Treasury Management 
Practices (TMPs): Main Principles, set out in Appendices 1-5. 

 

3. INTRODUCTION 

3.1 The TMSS sets out the Treasury management activities of the Corporation for the 
year 2020/21. The Audit Committee reviewed the TMSS at its meeting on 5 March 
2020 and has recommended it for approval by the Board. 

3.2 This TMSS has been prepared with regard to the following legislation and 
guidance: 

(a) the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and 

Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (The Code) and associated Guidance Notes; 

(b) the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and 

associated Guidance Notes; 

(c) the Local Government Act 2003; 

(d) the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) Guidance on 

Local Government Investments; and 

(e) the DCLG Capital Finance Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



 
3.3 The Code defines treasury management activities as:  

‘The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, 
its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.’ 

3.4 This TMSS therefore considers the impact of the Corporation’s Revenue Budget, 
Medium Term Capital Programme and the Balance Sheet position and covers the 
following areas: 

(a) Economic Background; 

(b) Prospects for Interest Rates; 

(c) Forecast Treasury Management Position; 

(d) Borrowing Strategy; 

(e) Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need; 

(f) Debt Rescheduling; 

(g) Investment Strategy;  

(h) Use of External Service Providers; 

(i) Treasury Training; 

(j) Treasury Management Policy Statement (Appendix 1); 

(k) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement (Appendix 2); 

(l) Prudential Code Indicators and Treasury Management Limits (Appendix 3); 

(m) Treasury Management Practices: Main Principles (Appendix 4); and 

(n) Group Investment Syndicate (GIS) Investment Strategy including GLA Group 

Responsible Investment Statement (Appendix 5). 

3.5 In covering the above areas, as per its Treasury Management Policy Statement 
(Appendix 1), the Corporation regards the successful identification, monitoring and 
control of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will be measured. Responsibility for risk management and 
control lies within the Corporation and cannot be delegated to any outside 
organisation. 

3.6 The Treasury Management risks the Corporation is exposed to are: 

(a) Credit and counterparty risk (security of investments); 

(b) Liquidity risk (inadequate cash resources); 

(c) Interest and market risk (fluctuations in interest rate levels and thereby in the 

value of investments); 

(d) Refinancing risks (impact of debt maturing in future years); and 

(e) Legal and regulatory and fraud risk (non-compliance with statutory and 

regulatory requirements, risk of fraud). 
 

These risks are further discussed in Appendix 4 (Treasury Management Practices: 
Main Principles) 

3.7 The Corporation formally adopts the Code through the following provisions:  

I. The Corporation will create and maintain as the fundamentals for effective 

treasury management:  

 a Treasury Management Policy Statement stating the policies, objectives 

and approach to risk management of its treasury management activities 

and 

 suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMPs), setting out the way the 

Corporation will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and 

prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. 

The content of the proposed policy statement and TMPs follow the 
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to 

Page 68



 
amendment where necessary to reflect the circumstances of the 
Corporation. Such amendments do not result in the Corporation materially 
deviating from the Code’s key principles. 

II. The Corporation will receive reports on its treasury management policies, 

practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in 

advance of the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close, in 

the form prescribed in its TMPs. 

III. The Corporation delegates responsibility for oversight of the implementation 

and regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to the 

Audit Committee, and for the execution and administration of treasury 

management decisions to the Deputy Chief Executive, who will act in 

accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs. 

IV. The Corporation nominates the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring 

effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies. 

V. Should there be a need to revise the Treasury Management Strategy; the 

Treasury Management Policy Statement; the Minimum Revenue Provision 

Policy Statement; the Prudential Code Indicators and Treasury Management 

Limits; the GIS Investment Strategy and the Treasury Management Practices at 

times other than those stated above, then these updates will be distributed to 

Audit Committee members for comment and then submitted to the Board for 

approval. 

VI. Should the Deputy Chief Executive wish to depart in any material respect from 

the main principles of the Code, the reason should be disclosed, in advance, in 

a report to the Audit Committee. 

3.8 The main changes in the TMSS 2020/21 as compared to the TMSS 2019/20 are: 

(a) updated Economic Background (Section 4); 

(b) updated Interest Rate Forecasts (Section 5); and 

(c) revised Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Limits (Appendix 3) 

in line with the 2020/21 budget submission. 

4. ECONOMIC BACKGROUND 

4.1 Market volatility and forecasting uncertainty around economic growth and inflation 
remain dominant factors in the outlook relevant to treasury management. Post-
crisis monetary policy continues to be demarcated by a sustained low bank rate 
and high asset prices (and low yields). Consequently, investors are not getting a 
material return from traditional short-term cash deposits.  

4.2 The outlook for short-term cash rates remains bleak following January’s Monetary 
Policy Committee (MPC) meeting where members voted 7-2 to maintain Bank 
Rate at 0.75 per cent. Two members were sufficiently concerned to vote for an 
immediate Bank Rate cut to 0.5 per cent due to Brexit uncertainties around the 
final trade agreement between the UK and the EU.  

4.3 Gilt yields have been on a declining trend in 2019 and overall borrowing rates 
remain low by historical standards. However, PWLB borrowing rates were 
significantly impacted by Government’s decision to add 100-bps to the spread in 
October. It is now more likely that alternative providers of capital will enter the 
market. 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



 
4.4 This outlook has the following treasury management implications: 

(a) Investment returns are expected to remain low and stable in the 2020/21 

financial year but is highly dependent on a successful outcome of trade deal 

negotiations between the UK and the EU. 

(b) Borrowing rates available to the Corporation have increased following the 100-

bps rise in the PWLB margin. Thus, spreads between the cost of debt and 

short-term cash returns have widened significantly. The Corporation’s 

borrowing facility used to fund its capital programme is provided by the GLA 

and are at the 50-year PWLB loan rate set on the day loans are advanced. 

 

5. PROSPECTS FOR INTEREST RATES 

5.1 The effective management of risk around borrowing and investments and cashflow 
management decisions also includes understanding interest rate movements. 

5.2 Below is a central view for short term interest rates and longer-term fixed interest 
rates, as provided by Link Asset Services as at January 2020. The Public Works 
Loans Board (PWLB) rates shown are net of the 0.2 per cent ‘certainty rate’ 
discount. 

5.3 The general expectation for an eventual trend of gently rising gilt yields and PWLB 
rates remain unchanged. The above rates are predicated on an assumption of an 
agreement being reached on a trade deal between the UK and the EU.  

  

Page 70



 
6. FORECAST TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION AND PRUDENTIAL 

INDICATORS 

6.1 The Corporation’s forward treasury portfolio position is summarised below. The 
table shows the estimated external borrowing (the treasury management 
operations) against the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR)), highlighting any over or under borrowing. 

 

Forecast Treasury Position 
2020/21 
Estimate         

£m 

2021/22 
Estimate         

£m 

2022/23 
Estimate         

£m 

External Borrowing       

Long Term Borrowing 483.86 520.00 518.02 

Temporary Borrowing 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total External Borrowing at 31 March (A) 483.33 519.43 517.43 

        

Other Long-Term Liabilities       

PFI Liability 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Finance Lease Liability 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Other Long-Term Liabilities at 31 March (B) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

        

Total Gross Debt (A+B) 483.86 520.00 518.02 

        

Capital Financing Requirement 483.86 520.00 518.02 

Less Other Long-Term Liabilities at 31 March 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Underlying Capital Borrowing Requirement (C) 483.86 520.00 518.02 

        

Under/(Over) Borrowing (C-A) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

        

Investments at 31 March (D) 45.34 45.70 46.06 

Net Borrowing (A-D) 438.52 474.3 471.96 

 

Authorised Limit for 
External Debt 

 

2020/21 
Proposed £m 

2021/22 
Proposed £m 

2022/23 
Proposed £m 

Borrowing 520.00 520.00 520.00 

Other long-term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 520.00 520.00 520.00 

 

Operational Boundary for 
External Debt 

2020/21 
Proposed £m 

2021/22 
Proposed £m 

2022/23 
Proposed £m 

Borrowing 520.00 520.00 520.00 

Other long-term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 520.00 520.00 520.00 

 

6.2 Within the set of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Corporation operates its activities within well-defined limits. One of 
these is that the Corporation needs to ensure that its gross borrowing does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 

Page 71



 
estimates of any additional CFR for the current year and the next two financial 
years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes, except to cover 
short term cash flows. In making this comparison between gross debt and the 
CFR, CIPFA guidance provides that, if in any of these years, there is a reduction in 
the CFR, this reduction is ignored in estimating the cumulative increase in the CFR 
which is used for comparison with the gross external debt. 

6.3 The Deputy Chief Executive reports that the Corporation’s forecasts for the Gross 
Debt and Capital Financing Requirement Prudential Indicator are within CIPFA’s 
recommended limits. 

6.4 The following graph shows projections of the CFR and Borrowing, together with 
Authorised and Operational Boundary Limits. 

 

 
7. BORROWING STRATEGY  

7.1 Delegation/Authorisation 

7.1.1 The arrangements for borrowing, including the selection and the type and 
structure of debt instruments, are delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive, 
provided no decision contravenes the limits set out in the prevailing TMSS. 

7.1.2 Based on the above, the Deputy Chief Executive is: 

1. Authorised to approve borrowing by the Corporation, for the purposes of 
financing capital expenditure and subject to the necessary statutory 
provisions, provided that the Authorised Limit, determined by the Mayor 
for the Corporation, is not exceeded. 

2. Authorised to make use of cash balances to fund internal borrowing 
when it is considered advantageous, provided the Authorised Limit, 
determined by the Mayor for the Corporation, is not exceeded.  

3. Authorised to borrow temporarily within the Authorised Limit, where this 
represents prudent management of the Authority’s affairs. As an 
example, where a cash flow requirement is short-lived, the opportunity 
cost of withdrawing or otherwise liquidating investments may exceed 

Page 72



 
that of temporary borrowing. In such circumstances, borrowing may be 
the prudent action.  

4. Authorised to borrow temporarily above the Authorised Limit where, and 
only where, the amount of the increased limit represents the amount of 
any delayed payment which is due to the Corporation and has not been 
received on the due date, and such delay has not already been provided 
for in the Authorised Limit, under the provisions of Section 5 of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  

7.1.3 All borrowing decisions should be reported to the Audit Committee at the 
first opportunity within the treasury management cycle.  

7.2 Internal Borrowing Approach 

7.2.1 When using cash balances to fund internal borrowing, the Corporation 
acknowledges that this may reduce credit risk and short-term net financing 
costs. However, any decision to undertake internal borrowing will be 
tempered by the following considerations: 

1. The Corporation must maintain sufficient liquidity to be certain of meeting 
existing borrowing and other obligations 

2. The measures set out in the investment strategy below substantially 
control credit risk 

3. The materiality of such risks should be considered in the light of the long 
term financial consequences of sub-optimal borrowing decisions 

4. Agreements with central government specifying particular levels of 
borrowing 

7.3 Future of the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 

7.3.1 Following consultation, the government plans to move forward with its 
proposal to abolish the PWLB and transfer its powers to the Treasury. The 
government plans to use its powers in the Public Bodies Act 2011 to lay 
before Parliament a draft Order to implement these changes. It is not 
believed these changes will have any tangible impact on the Corporation’s 
ability to borrow and the manner that it currently does so.  

7.3.2 Please note that there has been no further update on this since the 2016 
publication and it is believed the government is still looking at ways it can 
deliver the reform. 

7.3.3 The Corporation does not have any borrowing with the PWLB. 

 
8. POLICY ON BORROWING IN ADVANCE OF NEED 

8.1 The Corporation will not borrow more than or in advance of need purely to profit 
from the investment of the surplus borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance 
will be considered carefully to ensure value for money can be demonstrated and 
that the Corporation can ensure the security of such funds. 

8.2 In determining whether borrowing will be undertaken in advance of need the 
Corporation will: 

1. Ensure the on-going revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the 

future plans and budgets are considered to be affordable and are within the 

forward approved capital financing requirement estimate; 

2. Evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and 

timing of any decision to borrow; 

Page 73



 

3. Consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding, including 

funding from revenue, leasing and private partnerships; and 

4. Consider the alternative interest rates bases available, the most appropriate 

periods to fund and repayment profiles to use. 

8.3 Over the next 12 months the economic consensus is that investment rates are 
expected to remain below borrowing rates. However, short-term avoidance of 
costs by postponing borrowing in 2020/21 will also be weighed against the 
potential for incurring additional long-term costs by having to enter into new 
external borrowing in later years, when long-term rates are expected to be higher. 

 
9. DEBT RESCHEDULING/DEBT MANAGEMENT 

9.1 Given short term borrowing rates are likely to be cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, decisions may be taken to restructure the debt portfolio, by switching 
from long term debt to short term debt through the early redemption or 
replacement of loans, so as to either increase long term affordability or adjust 
maturity profiles for the purposes of managing liquidity and interest rate risks. Such 
rescheduling decisions will be reported to the Audit Committee at the first 
opportunity within the treasury management reporting cycle. 

9.2 Officers, following an examination of the cash and borrowing balances of the 
functional bodies within the GLA Family, will consider the use of intergroup 
transactions, to offer significant savings on borrowing and/or risk management 
opportunities. Such an examination will be carried out in accordance with liability 
benchmarking techniques, as recommended by the CIPFA Treasury Risk 
Management Toolkit for Local Authorities. It should be noted that members of the 
GLA Family comprise the London Fire Commission (LFC), the Greater London 
Authority (GLA), the London Legacy and Development Corporation (LLDC), the 
London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA), the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 
(MOPAC) and Transport for London (TfL). 

 
10. INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

10.1 The Corporation maintains a low risk appetite consistent with good stewardship of 
public funds. At the forefront of its thinking is the principle of Security before 
Liquidity and Liquidity before Yield. Cash flow forecasts and prevailing market 
conditions determine the maximum possible prudent maturities for investments 
and credit considerations are used to select counterparties with whom to transact. 
Investments are managed in such a way as to make losses at the portfolio level 
extremely unlikely, while capturing the optimum return within these constraints.  

10.2 The Corporation will continually develop its investment risk methodologies with 
regard to advice from external advisors, relevant developments in the market and 
academia, benchmarking techniques and approaches employed by the Credit 
Ratings Agencies. These Agencies are currently Fitch, Moodys, and Standard and 
Poors and their credit ratings will be monitored by the GLA Group Investment 
Syndicate, through whom the Corporation invests its short-term cash balances, on 
a daily basis, with appropriate action taken when these ratings change. 

10.3 The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful 
and the Corporation will not engage in such activity. 

10.4 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decision to support the revenue budget will 
have an on-going impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each 
year from new sources (asset sales etc.). 

 

Page 74



 
 

 

10.5 Detailed in the following table are estimates of the year end investment balances: 

 

Core Funds and 
Expected Investment 
Balances 

2020/21 
Proposed 

£m 

2021/22 
Proposed 

£m 

2022/23 
Proposed 

£m 

Fund 
balances/reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Core Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Invested balances* 45.34 45.70 46.06 

Under/(over) borrowing 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Expected 
Investments 

45.34 45.70 46.06 

*Note that LLDC’s invested balance relate to monies held in relation to Section 
106, Community Infrastructure Levy and OPTEMS (Olympic Park Transport and 
Environmental Management Scheme) liabilities. 

10.6 The Corporation’s short-term cash balances are invested through the GLA Group 
Investment Syndicate (GIS). The Corporation is a participant of the GIS and the 
nature of the GIS and the GIS Investment Strategy, including creditworthiness 
policy and permitted instruments, as agreed between the Syndics, (the Deputy 
Chief Executive is the Syndic for LLDC) is attached at Appendix 5. This Strategy 
effectively constitutes the Corporation’s Annual Investment Strategy, which should 
be prepared and approved before the start of each financial year, with approval by 
the Board. This GIS Investment Strategy is currently under review by all the 
current participants of the GIS and the Board is presented with the latest version. 

10.7 GLA Treasury has set up an investment vehicle called London Strategic Reserve 
(LSR), under which long-term cash balances can be invested. This LSR is for long 
term investments and runs alongside the current GIS which is for short term 
investments. The LSR is being offered not only to existing members of the GIS, but 
also to councils outside of the current participants. The Board has previously 
delegated the power to negotiate on the behalf of the Corporation to the Deputy 
Chief Executive and to agree to any of the Corporation’s cash balances to be 
invested in the LSR, on the understanding that the Deputy Chief Executive reports 
back to the Audit Committee and Board, as part of the agreed reporting cycle. 

10.8 Where funds are placed in pooled vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMFs), 
each MMF is only an approved counterparty while the underlying investments are 
instruments of the kinds listed in Appendix 5. Variation between a MMF’s list of 
approved counterparties and the approved counterparties of the Corporation is 
permissible, at the discretion of the Deputy Chief Executive, providing the MMF’s 
own rating meets the criteria of Appendix 5. 

10.9 Additionally, the Deputy Chief Executive may from time to time instruct the Group 
Treasury team to invest sums independently of the GIS, for instance, if the 
Corporation identifies balances which are available for longer term investment, 
after proper consideration of expected future cashflows, as at the time of 
investment. It is proposed that the Corporation adopt an identical set of parameters 
for such investments as those detailed in Appendix 5, except that there shall be no 
requirement to maintain a weighted average maturity of no greater than three 
months. However, regard must always be given to the Treasury Managements 

Page 75



 
Limit ‘Limits for Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 Days’ 
(Appendix 3, section 6.2). 

10.10 The current limit for investments for periods >365 days is £10m to enable the 
Corporation to obtain improved risk adjusted returns on Section 106 and other 
long-term balances. 

10.11 One of the election pledges of the current mayoral administration was that ethical 
considerations would be included in the making of investments. As a result, a GLA 
Group Responsible Investment is included in the GIS Investment Strategy in 
Appendix 5. 

10.12 Whilst the Corporation sets its Annual Investment Strategy at the start of each 
financial year, this need not be a once-a-year event, and the initial investment 
strategy may be replaced by a revised Strategy, at any time during the year, on 
one or more occasions, subject to the approval of the Corporation. All Investment 
Strategies approved by the Corporation will be made available to the public free of 
charge, on print or online. 

11. TREASURY MANAGEMENT BUDGET 

11.1 The Table below provides a breakdown of the treasury management budget. 

Treasury Management 
Budget 

2020/21 
Proposed 

£m 

2021/22 
Proposed 

£m 

2022/23 
Proposed 

£m 

Interest payable  13.0 15.1 15.6 

Other* -13.0 -15.1 -15.6 

Interest Receivable  -0.36 -0.36 -0.36 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total -0.36 -0.36 -0.36 

*Interest on borrowings is funded by GLA grant 

11.2 Assumptions behind the 2020/21 Treasury Management Budget are: 

(a) Average rates achievable on investments will be 0.80 pet cent; 

(b) New borrowing to fund the capital programme will be financed by long term 
borrowing at a rate of 50 year PWLB debt; and 

(c) There is no Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). 

 
12. USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 

12.1 The Corporation uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external 
treasury management advisor under a joint arrangement with the Greater London 
Authority. Whilst recognising the specialist skills and resources such advisor can 
provide, the Corporation recognises that responsibility for treasury management 
decisions remains wholly with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance 
is not placed upon external service providers. LLDC monitors and maintains the 
quality of this service by regular review and assessment (as part of its role in the 
GIS). 

12.2 Barclays Plc is LLDC’s bankers and continue to provide a competitive service 
under an annual rolling contract. 

12.3 LLDC does not currently employ any external fund managers, however in the 
event of such an appointment, appointees will comply with this and subsequent 
Treasury Strategies. 

Page 76



 
12.4 The GLA Investment Manager entered into an investment management agreement 

with London Treasury Limited (LTL) so that the GLA Treasury Department can 
delegate its treasury investment activities to an entity which is authorised and 
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). This is with the intention to 
provide enhances regulatory and risk management practices. Officers manning the 
company have all been seconded from the existing GLA Investment Manager 
team.  

12.5 The GLA Investment Manager already has experience of using external fund 
managers, as the GLA Investment Manager uses two external fund managers, 
TwentyFour Asset Management and Prytania, for GLA ‘own name’ long term 
Residential Mortgage Backed Securities (RMBS) investments. Any external fund 
manager used to support GIS/LSR long term investments, such as RMBS, will be 
properly appointed. 

12.6 The GLA Investment Manager, under the GIS Investment Strategy, currently use 
State Street Bank & Trust as a custodian. The GLA’s policy is that any custodian 
(or, instead, sub-custodian) shall meet the GLA’s credit criteria for 12 month 
investments (prior to CDS or other temporary adjustments). 
 

13. TREASURY TRAINING    

13.1 The Code requires that members with responsibility for treasury management 
receive adequate training in treasury management. This especially applies to 
members responsible for scrutiny. Those charged with governance are also 
personally responsible for ensuring they have the necessary skills and training.  

13.2 A member/senior officer training handout and PowerPoint presentation has been 
developed by GLA Treasury as a ‘framework’, which can then be tailored to the 
individual needs of members/senior officers, as required. Using this presentation, 
training will be arranged as required. 

13.3 Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions, runs training events regularly which are 
attended by Treasury officers. In addition, Treasury officers attend national forums 
and practitioner user groups. 

13.4 Notwithstanding the above, the training needs of Treasury officers and committee 
members are periodically reviewed.  

 
14. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

14.1 The principal financial implications are integral to this report. 

14.2 The contribution of member towards the cost of Group Treasury arrangements 
managed by the GLA for 2020/21 is under review, the actual figure will be 
communicated when agreed by the Syndics. 

 
15. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

15.1 The TMSS is a requirement of LLDC’s reporting procedures and of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities. LLDC is required to comply with both Codes 
through Regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003. Section 
23(1)(d) and (e) of the Local Government Act 2003 provides that the functional 
bodies of the GLA are local authorities for this purpose. 

15.2 Section 3(1) of the 2003 Act provides that all local authorities are to determine and 
keep under review how much money they can borrow. Section 3(2) of the Act is 
more specific in relation to the Mayor and functional bodies by providing that the 
determination is to be made by the Mayor following consultation with the 
Assembly, in the case of the GLA, or the relevant functional body. 

Page 77



 
 

15.3 Regulations under the 2003 Act state that LLDC has a duty to make an amount of 
MRP which it considers to be “prudent”. The regulation does not itself define 
“prudent provision” however; the MRP guidance makes recommendations to 
authorities on interpretation and determination of MRP provision for the future. 

15.4 Paragraph 7 of Schedule 21 to the Localism Act 2011 allows the board of LLDC or 
any committee of the board to delegate any of its functions to staff of LLDC. 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS PAPER 
Appendix 1: Treasury Management Policy Statement  
Appendix 2: Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 
Appendix 3: CIPFA Prudential Code Indicators and Treasury Management Limits 
Appendix 4: Treasury Management Practices: Main Principles 
Appendix 5: Group Investment Syndicate Investment Strategy including GLA Group  
 Responsible Investment Statement 
 

List of Background Papers 

None 

 
Report originator(s):  Tom Gee, Financial Controller (LLDC), Feyisayo  Adekugbe, 
 Senior Group Treasury Officer (GLA)  
Telephone:  020 3288 1792, 020 7983 4923 
Email:  richardirish@londonlegacy.gov.uk,
 feyisayo.adekugbe@london.gov.uk 

Page 78

mailto:richardirish@londonlegacy.gov.uk
mailto:feyisayo.adekugbe@london.gov.uk


 
 

 

 
1 

Appendix 1: Treasury Management Policy Statement  

1. Policy Statement 

1.1 This policy statement is in the form recommended by the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public 

Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes, Section 6. 

1. The Corporation defines its treasury management activities as:  

‘The management of the Corporation’s borrowing investments and cash flows, its banking, money 

market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 

activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks’. 

2. The Corporation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be the prime 

criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be measured. 

Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 

implications for the Corporation, and any financial instruments entered into to manage those risks.  

3.  The Corporation acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support towards 

the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of 

achieving value for money in treasury management, and to employing suitable comprehensive 

performance measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 79



 
 

 

 
2 

Appendix 2: Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement  
 

MRP is the amount out of revenues set aside each year to fund capital expenditure previously financed by 
borrowing or credit arrangements. Regulation 28 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 
(England) Regulations   2003 (as amended) provides that ‘A Local Authority shall determine for the current 
financial year an amount of minimum revenue provision that it considers to be prudent’ 
 
The Corporation does not provide for Minimum Revenue Provision. 

 

  

Page 80



 
 

 

 
3 

Appendix 3: CIPFA Prudential Code Indicators  

1.0 Background 

1.1   The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA). The Prudential Code has a central role in capital finance decisions, including 

borrowing for capital investment. Its key objectives are to provide a framework for local authority 

capital finance that will ensure for individual local authorities that capital expenditure plans are 

affordable; all external borrowing and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and sustainable 

levels and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional 

practice.  

1.2       CIPFA has conducted a review of the Treasury Management Code of Practice and the Prudential 

Code.  This review particularly focuses on non-treasury investments and especially on the purchase 

of property with a view to generating income.  Such purchases could involve undertaking external 

borrowing to raise the cash to finance these purchases, or the use of existing cash balances.  Both 

actions would affect treasury management.  The new code takes effect from 2018/19. 

1.3 The Prudential Code also has the objective of being consistent with and supporting local strategic 

planning, local asset management planning and proper option appraisal. 

1.4  Any such framework for the internal control and self management of capital finance must therefore 

deal with all three of the following elements: 

 Capital expenditure and investment plans 

 External debt 

 Treasury Management   

1.4  To ensure compliance with the Prudential Code in relation to the above elements, the Corporation is 
required to set and monitor a number of Prudential Indicators. In setting or revising the prudential 
indicators, the Corporation is required to have regard to the following matters:  

 

 service objectives, eg strategic planning for the Corporation  

 stewardship of assets, eg asset management planning  

 value for money, eg option appraisal  

 prudence and sustainability, eg risk, implications for external debt and whole life costing  

 affordability, eg implications for council tax/district rates  

 practicality, eg achievability of the forward plan.  

 

1.5  Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Limits must be approved by the Corporation and 

any subsequent changes to these Indicators and Limits must also be approved by the Corporation. 

1.6  These Prudential Indicators are set out below and reviewed for compliance.  

2.0 Capital Expenditure 

2.1  Capital Expenditure 

Page 81



 
 

 

 
4 

2.1.1  Capital expenditure results from the approved capital spending plan and proposed borrowing limits. 

It is the key driver of Treasury Management activity. 

2.1.2 All capital expenditure is stated, not just that covered by borrowing.  

 Capital Expenditure 2020/21 

Estimate                             

2021/22 

Estimate                             

2022/23 

Estimate                             

Total Capital Expenditure  243.98   171.13   55.12  

2.1.3 The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are being 
financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding borrowing 
need. The Corporation’s capital expenditure is funded by loan from the GLA. 

 Financing Capital Expenditure £m 2020/21 

Estimate                             

2021/22 

Estimate                             

2022/23 

Estimate                             

Capital receipts 100.47 86.41 47.83 

Capital grants  75.80   91.10   11.34  

Capital/Revenue reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total financing    176.27      177.50        59.17  

Net financing need for the year         67.70  -        6.37  -        4.05  

Total Capital Expenditure      243.98       171.13          

55.12  
2.2.  Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

2.2.1 The capital financing requirement is an indication of the underlying need to borrow for capital 

purposes. It is the total historical outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for 

from either revenue or capital resource. 

2.2.2 Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR. 

2.2.3 The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a statutory 

annual charge which broadly reduces the borrowing in line with each asset’s life, and so charges 

the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used.  

2.2.4 The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases). Whilst these 

increase the CFR, and therefore the Corporation’s borrowing requirement, these types of scheme 

include a borrowing facility and so the Corporation is not required to separately borrow for these 

schemes. 

2.2.5 This borrowing is not associated with particular items or types of capital expenditure. 

 Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR) 

2020/21 

Estimate   

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate   

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate   

£m 

Total CFR 67.70 0.00 0.00 

3.0 External Debt Prudential Indicators 

3.1  Authorised Limit for External Debt  

3.1.1 The Authorised Limit is the expected maximum borrowing needed with some headroom for 

unexpected developments such as unusual cash movements.  

Page 82



 
 

 

 
5 

3.1.2 For the purposes of the Prudential Code borrowing is distinguished from other long term liabilities. 

3.1.3 The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit that is determined, by the Mayor in consultation with the 

Assembly, under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. It is intended to be an absolute 

ceiling which cannot be exceeded, except as provided under section 5 of the Local Government Act 

2003, where payments expected but not yet received can temporarily result in the limit being 

exceeded, provided the original setting of the limit had not taken into account any delay in receipt of 

the payment. 

Authorised Limit for External Debt  
 

  

 

2020/21 
Proposed  

£m 

2021/22 
Proposed  

£m 

2022/23 
Proposed  

£m 

Borrowing 520.00 520.00 520.00 

Other long-term 
liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 520.00 520.00 520.00 

3.2  Operational Boundary for External Debt 

3.2.1 The Operational Boundary is based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit. However, it 

reflects an estimate of the most likely prudent but not worst-case scenario. It equates to the 

maximum level of external debt under the capital spending plans approved by the Mayor and 

excludes the headroom included within the Authorised Limit. 

3.2.2 The Operational Boundary is set as a warning signal that external debt has reached a level nearing 

the Authorised limit and must be monitored carefully. It is probably not significant if the Operational 

Boundary is breached temporarily on occasions due to variations in cash flow. However, a 

sustained or regular trend above the Operational Boundary would be significant, requiring further 

investigation and action as appropriate. 

Operational Boundary for External Debt  
 

 

 

2020/21 
Proposed  

£m 

2021/22 
Proposed  

£m 

2022/23 
Proposed  

£m 

Borrowing 520.00 520.00  520.00  

Other long-term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 520.00 520.00  520.00  

3.2.4 Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 

This is a key indicator of prudence seeking to identify whether or not a Local Authority’s financial 

strategy is prudent and sustainable by measuring the extent to which a Local Authority is using 

borrowing to fund revenue expenditure in the short and medium term. Since financing costs have to 

be repaid from revenue, borrowing to fund revenue expenditure may be affordable in the short term, 

but not in the medium term. It therefore follows that in the medium term borrowing should only be 

funding capital expenditure and this indicator seeks to check that this is so, by identifying that debt 

does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the 

preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and 

next two financial years. In making this comparison between gross debt and the CFR, CIPFA 

Page 83



 
 

 

 
6 

guidance provides that, if in any of these years, there is a reduction in the CFR, this reduction is 

ignored in estimating the cumulative increase in the CFR which is used for comparison with the 

gross external debt. 

 For the purposes of the Prudential Code, gross debt refers to the sum of borrowing and other long-

term 

liabilities.  

 

 

 

 

 

4.0 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

4.1  Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  

4.1.1  This indicator compares the total principal and net interest payments on external debt to the overall 

revenue spending of the Corporation. The GLA provides funding for the Corporation’s financing 

cost, hence this ratio is nil for the Corporation. 

 Financing Costs to Net 

Revenue Stream 

2020-21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021-22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022-23 

Estimate 

£m 

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5.0  Treasury Management Prudential Indicator 

5.1 The Treasury Management Prudential Indicator requires the adoption of the latest version of the 

CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. 

5.2 The Corporation has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 

Services. 

6.0  Treasury Management Limits on Activity 

6.1 Limits for Maturity Structure of Borrowing  

6.1.1 Local Authorities are exposed to the risk of having to refinance debt at a time in the future when 

interest rates may be volatile or uncertain. The maturity structure of borrowing indicator is designed 

to assist Authorities in avoiding large concentrations of debt that has the same maturity structure 

and would therefore need to be replaced at the same time. The indicator is calculated as the 

amount of projected borrowing that is maturing in each period expressed as a percentage of total 

projected borrowing. For each maturity period an upper and lower limit is set.  

 Gross Debt and the Capital 

Financing Requirement 

2019/20 

Estimate 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

Gross Debt at 31 March  381.12 483.86 520.00 518.02 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 61.55       67.70  0.00 0.00 

Page 84



 
 

 

 
7 

6.1.2 The maturity of borrowing should be determined by reference to the earliest date on which the 

lender can require payment. Where the lender has the right to increase the interest rate payable 

without limit, such as in a LOBO loan, the maturity date will be deemed to be the next call date. 

 Limits for Maturity Structure of 

Borrowing for 2020-21 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Upper Limit   

% 

 

Lower Limit   

% 

 Under 12 months     0.00 0.00 

 
12 months and within 24 months 30.00 0.00 

24 months and within 5 years   25.00 0.00 

5 years and within 10 years   100.00 0.00 

10 years and above     50.00 0.00 

6.2  Limits for Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 & 365 days  

6.2.1   This indicator seeks to contain the risk inherent in the maturity structure of an Authority’s investment 

portfolio, since investing too much for too long could  

 adversely impact on the Authority’s liquidity and in turn its ability to meet its payment obligations 

and  

 also lead to the loss of some of its principal if it is forced to seek early repayment or redemption 

of principal sums invested. 

6.2.2 Under this indictor the Local Authority is therefore required to set an upper limit for each financial 

year period for the maturing of its long-term investments 

Limits for Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 & 365 days 

  Maximum principal sums invested >364 & 365 days 

  

2020-21                       

£m 

2021-22                       

£m 

2022-23 

£m 

Principal sums invested 

>364 & 365 days 10.00 10.00 10.00 

 

  

Page 85



 
 

 

 
8 

Appendix 4: Treasury Management Practices: Main Principles 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Treasury Management Practices (TMPs): Main Principles below set out the manner in 
which the Corporation will seek to achieve its Treasury policies and objectives. These 
TMPs: Main Principles follow the wording recommended by the latest edition of the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code.  

1.2 TMPs: Main Principles are supported by TMPs: Schedules, which provide specific details of 
the systems and routines employed and the records to be maintained to deliver the TMPs: 
Main Principles. These Schedules are maintained and updated as necessary, being 
operational procedures and forming an integral part of the Corporation’s treasury 
management manual.  

1.3 Approval and monitoring of TMPs is a matter for local decision. As such the TMPs: 
Principles will be approved by the Corporation and monitored by the Deputy Chief 
Executive and annually reviewed by the Corporation before the start of the year. 

1.4 TMPs: Schedules will be approved, monitored and annually reviewed by the Deputy Chief 
Executive. 

1.5 Scrutiny of the approval and monitoring of TMPs will be performed by the Budget and 
Performance Committee following recommendations by the Deputy Chief Executive. 

2.0  TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT   

2.1 General statement 

2.1.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the 
identification, management and control of treasury management risk, will report at least 
annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of urgency, the 
circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the Corporation’s objectives in 
this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMP6 ‘Reporting requirements 
and management information arrangements’.  

2.1.2 In respect of each of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure 
compliance with these objectives are set out in the TMPs: Schedules. 

2.2  Credit and counterparty risk management 

2.2.1 The Deputy Chief Executive regards a key objective of the Corporation’s treasury 
management activities to be the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, 
he/she will ensure that its counterparty lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards 
organisations with whom funds may be deposited, and will limit investment activities to the 
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in the TMP4 Approved instruments, 
methods and techniques and listed in the TMPs: Schedules.  The Deputy Chief Executive 
also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counterparty policy 
in respect of those organisations from which the Corporation may borrow, or with whom it 
may enter into other financing arrangements. 

Page 86



 
 

 

 
9 

 2.3  Liquidity risk management 

2.3.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure the Corporation has adequate though not excessive 
cash resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all 
times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement of 
its business /service objectives. 

2.3.2 The Corporation will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business case 
for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance future debt 
maturities. 

2.4 Interest rate risk management 

2.4.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will manage the Corporation exposure to fluctuations in interest 
rates with a view to containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in 
accordance with the amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in 
accordance with TMP6 ‘Reporting requirements and management information 
arrangements’. 

2.4.2 The Deputy Chief Executive will achieve this by the prudent use of Corporation approved 
instruments, methods, and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs 
and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take 
advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or structure of 
interest rates. This should be subject to the consideration and, if required, approval of any 
policy or budgetary implications. 

2.5  Exchange rate risk management 

2.5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, so 
as to minimise any detrimental impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels. 

2.6  Refinancing risk management 

2.6.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that Corporation borrowing, private financing and 
partnership arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity 
profile of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for 
renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the 
Corporation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions prevailing at 
the time. 

2.6.2 The Deputy Chief Executive will actively manage Corporation relationships with its 
counterparties in these transactions in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will 
avoid overreliance on any one source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the 
above. 

2.7  Legal and regulatory risk management 

2.7.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that all Corporation treasury management activities 
comply with statutory powers and regulatory requirements. He/She will demonstrate such 
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom the Corporation deals in such 

Page 87



 
 

 

 
10 

activities. In framing its credit and counterparty policy under TMP [1] ‘credit and 
counterparty risk management’, he/she will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ 
powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the 
Corporation, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged. 

2.7.2 The Deputy Chief Executive recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may 
impact on treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will 
seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the Corporation. 

2.8 Fraud, error and corruption, and contingency management 

2.8.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that he/she has identified the circumstances which 
may expose the Corporation to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other 
eventualities in its treasury management dealings. Accordingly, he/she will maintain 
effective contingency management arrangements, to these ends. 

 2.9  Market risk management 

2.9.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will seek to ensure that the Corporation’s stated treasury 
management policies and objectives will not be compromised by adverse market 
fluctuations in the value of the principal sums it invests and will accordingly seek to protect 
the Corporation from the effects of such fluctuations. 

3.0 TMP2 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

3.1 The Deputy Chief Executive is committed to the pursuit of value for money in the 
Corporation’s treasury management activities, and to the use of performance methodology 
in support of that aim, within the framework set out in the Corporation’s treasury 
management policy statement. 

3.2 Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing analysis of 
the value it adds in support of the organisation’s stated business or service objectives. It will 
be the subject of regular examination of alternative methods of service delivery, of the 
availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives, and of the scope for other potential 
improvements. The performance of the treasury management function will be measured 
using the criteria set out in the TMPs: Schedules.  

4.0 TMP3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS 

4.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will maintain full records of Corporation treasury management 
decisions, and of the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for 
the purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps were 
taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into account at the 
time. The issues to be addressed and processes and practices to be pursued in reaching 
these decisions are detailed in the TMPs: Schedules. 

  

Page 88



 
 

 

 
11 

5.0 TMP4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES 

5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will undertake Corporation treasury management activities by 
employing only those instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the schedule to this 
document, and within the limits and parameters defined in TMP1 ‘Risk management’. 

6.0 TMP5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES, AND 
DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 

6.1 The Deputy Chief Executive considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control 
and monitoring of the Corporation’s treasury management activities, for the reduction of the 
risk of fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are 
structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times a clarity 
of treasury management responsibilities. 

6.2 The principal on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged with 
setting treasury management policies and those charged with implementing and controlling 
these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the 
recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the audit and review of 
the treasury management function.  

6.3 If and when the Corporation intends, as a result of lack of resources or other 
circumstances, to depart from these principles, the Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that 
the reasons are properly reported in accordance with TMP6 ‘Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements’, and the implications properly considered and 
evaluated. 

6.4 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that there are clear written statements of the 
responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, and the arrangements for 
absence cover. The Deputy Chief Executive will also ensure that at all times those engaged 
in treasury management will follow the policies and procedures. The present arrangements 
are detailed in the TMPs: Schedules.  

6.5 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals and 
transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. The present 
arrangements are detailed in the TMPs: Schedules 

6.6 The delegations to the Deputy Chief Executive in respect of treasury management are set 
out in the TMPs: Schedules. The Deputy Chief Executive will fulfil all such responsibilities in 
accordance with the Corporation’s policy statement and TMPs and if a CIPFA member, the 
‘Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management’. 

7.0 TMP6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
ARRANGEMENTS. 

7.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered 
on the implementation of Corporation treasury management policies; on the effects of 
decisions taken and transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of 
changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or other 

Page 89



 
 

 

 
12 

factors affecting its treasury management activities; and on the performance of the treasury 
management function. 

7.2 As a minimum: 

The Corporation will receive 

 an annual report on the proposed strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year 

 a mid-year review 

 an annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on the 
effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year, and on 
any circumstances of non-compliance with the organisation’s treasury management 
policy statement and TMPs. 

7.3 The Audit Committee, as the body with responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury 
management policies and practices, will receive regular monitoring reports on treasury 
management activities and risks.  

7.4 The Audit Committee responsible for scrutiny, will have responsibility for the scrutiny of 
treasury management policies and practices. 

7.5 Local authorities should report the treasury management indicators as detailed in their 
sector-specific guidance notes. 

7.6 The present arrangements and the form of these reports are detailed in the TMPs: 
Schedules. 

8.0 TMP7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS 

8.1 The Deputy Chief Executive will prepare, and the Corporation will approve and, if 
necessary, from time to time will amend, an annual budget for treasury management, which 
will bring together all of the costs involved in running the treasury management function, 
together with associated income. The matters to be included in the budget will at minimum 
be those required by statute or regulation, together with such information as will 
demonstrate compliance with TMP1 ‘Risk management’, TMP2 ‘Performance 
measurement’, and TMP4 ‘Approved instruments, methods and techniques’.  

8.2 The Deputy Chief Executive will exercise effective controls over this budget, and will report 
upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6 ‘Reporting 
requirements and management information arrangements’. 

8.3 The Deputy Chief Executive will account for the Corporation’s treasury management 
activities, for decisions made and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate 
accounting practices and standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force 
for the time being. 

9.0 TMP8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

Page 90



 
 

 

 
13 

9.1 Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the hands of 
this Corporation will be under the control of the Deputy Chief Executive, and will be 
aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes. Cash flow projections will 
be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that 
these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with TMP1 (2.3) ‘Liquidity 
risk management’. The present arrangements for preparing cash flow projections, and their 
form are set out in the TMPs: Schedules. 

10.0 TMP9 MONEY LAUNDERING 

10.1 The Deputy Chief Executive is alert to the possibility that the Corporation may become the 
subject of an attempt to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money. 
Accordingly, it will maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of 
counterparties and reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this are 
properly trained. The present arrangements, including the name of the officer to whom 
reports should be made, are detailed in the TMPs: Schedules. 

11.0 TMP10 TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS 

11.1 The Deputy Chief Executive recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in 
the treasury management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and 
responsibilities allocated to them. He/She will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are 
both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to acquire 
and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The Deputy Chief 
Executive will recommend and implement the necessary arrangements. 

11.2 The Deputy Chief Executive will ensure that Corporation members tasked with treasury 
management responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, have access to 
training relevant to their needs and those responsibilities. 

11.3 Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure that they 
have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively. 

11.4 The present arrangements are detailed in the TMPs: Schedules. 

12.0 TMP11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 

12.1 The Corporation recognises that responsibility for the treasury management decisions 
remains with the Corporation at all times. It recognises that there may be potential value in 
employing external providers of treasury management services, in order to acquire access 
to specialist skills and resources. When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it 
does so for reasons which have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and 
benefits. It will also ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which 
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review. And it will ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers 
is used, to avoid overreliance on one or a small number of companies. Where services are 
subject to formal tender or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be 
observed. The monitoring of such arrangements rests with the Deputy Chief Executive, and 
details of the current arrangements are set out in the TMPs: Schedules. 

Page 91



 
 

 

 
14 

13.0 TMP12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

13.1 The Corporation is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout its 
businesses and services, and to establishing the principals and practices by which this can 
be achieved. Accordingly, the treasury management function and its activities will be 
undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and accountability. 

13.2 This Corporation has adopted and implemented the key principles of the TM Code. This, 
together with the other arrangements detailed in the TMPs; Schedules, are considered vital 
to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury management, and the 
Deputy Chief Executive will monitor and, if and when necessary, report upon the 
effectiveness of these arrangement. 

Page 92



APPENDIX 5 

 

Dated:  1st April 2020 

 

GIS INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2020-21 

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY 

and 

LONDON FIRE COMMISSIONER 

and 

LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

and 

MAYOR’S OFFICE FOR POLICING AND CRIME 

and 

Page 93



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 2 

LONDON PENSIONS FUND AUTHORITY 

Contents 

Limits and Compliance ...................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Risk Appetite Statement ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Permissible Investments ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Liquidity and Maturity Limits ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

Counterparty Concentration Limits .................................................................................................................................. 8 

Geo-political risk limits .................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Credit Risk Limits ............................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Deposit Facility of Last Resort ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Custody Arrangements ................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Manager Discretions ....................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Responsible Investment .................................................................................................................................................. 16 

GLA Group Responsible Investment Statement on Climate Change .............................................................................. 16 

Explanatory Notes ........................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Approved by Signatories: ................................................................................................................................................ 25 

 

Notes: 
 
The Group Investment Syndicate (GIS) is a contractual arrangement for investing collectively between local 
authorities. It is a jointly controlled operation of jointly controlled assets. Participating authorities, (the 
Participants) exercise control through a committee of their nominated representatives (the Syndics) who 
set this strategy and exercise certain decisions set out herein. 
 
Day to day implementation of the strategy (i.e. making investment decisions and monitoring the portfolio) 
is carried out by London Treasury Limited (the Manager) and/or external managers acting on the 
Manager’s instructions. 
 
The jointly controlled assets are held in the name of the Greater London Authority (GLA) which is also the 
contracting party for the Manager. The GLA is responsible for coordinating the daily investment 
requirements of the Participants and instructing the Manager to either invest or realise the relevant sum. 
All payments are handled by the GLA and transactions are recorded by the GLA’s appointed custodian. 
 
The Manager reports on performance in the first instance, with this being verified by the GLA.  

Page 94



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 3 

The GLA is responsible for maintaining records of each Participant’s percentage ownership of GIS assets. 
The custodian reports on compliance with the strategy daily to the GLA (shared simultaneously with 
Manager and the Participants); the GLA additionally holds responsibility for monitoring these reports and 
notifying the Syndics in the circumstances set our below. 
 
The Manager must consult the Syndics when exercising certain discretions or responses to exceptions to 
the strategy; it is the Manager’s responsibility to collect and record the Syndics’ views.   

Page 95



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 4 

Limits and Compliance 

1.0 All limits, unless explicitly stated otherwise, refer to the composition of the daily balance of 

the GIS; for compliance purposes, all limits will be assessed daily.   

2.0 The making of any investment which causes a breach of limits is not permitted and constitutes an active 

exception.   

3.0 Active exceptions of any size will be reported immediately upon identification by the GLA (or the 

Manager if the Manager is aware first), to the Manager, Syndics and their nominated substitutes.  

Relevant committees or boards will be notified as specified in each Participant’s TMSS.   

4.0 Additionally, daily limits may be exceeded due to changes in the GIS balance or the credit assessment of 

existing investments, including the credit status of the country of domicile. Such an occurrence 

constitutes a passive exception.  Passive exceptions will be monitored by the GLA and the Manager 

shall notify the GLA if Manager becomes aware of such an exception before the GLA.  Subsequent 

reporting will be threshold-based, as follows:  

Passive Exception Level 
(lower of) 

Temporary: ≤ 3 consecutive 
days 

Persistent: >3 days 

<5% or £25m Logged and reported quarterly 
to Syndics within 1 month of 
quarter end 

Logged and reported quarterly 
to Syndics within 1 month of 
quarter end 

5-10% or £50m Logged and reported quarterly 
to Syndics within 1 month of 
quarter end 

Reported to Syndics immediately 

>10% or £50m Reported to Syndics immediately Reported to Syndics immediately 

The percentage limits above apply to total daily balance of the GIS or the total number of days in the 

case of limits expressed as days.   

5.0 Mitigating actions for exceptions will in the first instance be taken at the discretion of the Manager.  

Such decisions must be supported by an analysis of the costs and benefits of attempting to reduce the 

overexposure in question versus tolerating it.  In all cases a file note of the decision will be retained and 

circulated to the Syndics. A majority of the Syndics may instruct alternative action, provided such action 

consistent with this strategy and applicable statutory guidance.   

Risk Appetite Statement 

6.0 Capital preservation is the primary GIS objective at the portfolio level, followed by provision of liquidity 

to meet Participants’ cash flow needs.   

Page 96



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 5 

7.0 In order to deliver best value on public funds, the Participants are prepared to take some investment risk 

to the extent outlined below, where such risk is rewarded by yields above UK government securities held 

to maturity.   

8.0 The risk of loss through default in the entire portfolio (or any subsection delegated to an external 

manager) should not exceed risk of loss through default equivalent to a 1-year exposure to a typical AA- 

rated issuer. 

9.0 No individual instrument/investment should pose a greater risk of loss through default than a 90-day 

exposure to a typical BBB issuer.   

10.0 The Participants will tolerate price volatility where there is an expectation of holding an investment to 

maturity; where the expectation is that sale before maturity is likely or where the investment is in a 

variable NAV fund, the combined risk of loss through default and crystallised falls in price should not 

exceed the risk tolerance specified in 8.0.   

11.0 This strategy sets out risk controls and limits that, in the opinion of the Participants, deliver these 

objectives.   

12.0 Alternative controls and limits, save for the overarching requirements of 12.0 – 15.0 and 18.0 – 19.0 may 

be used by external managers appointed in accordance with 16.0, if those limits are judged by the 

Syndics, on the advice of the Manager or other independent professional advice, to be appropriately 

effective.   

  

Page 97



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 6 

Permissible Investments 

13.0 All investments must be Sterling-denominated financial instruments.   

14.0 Specified Investments (i.e. ‘low risk’ instruments as defined by Statutory Guidance) shall constitute at 

least 50% of the portfolio at any time.   

15.0 Approved Specified (S) and non-Specified (NS) Investments: 

Investment type Eligibility criteria ≤ 1 year to 
maturity at 
time of 
investment 

> 1 year to 
maturity at 
time of 
investment 

Maximum 
total exposure 
as a 
proportion of 
daily balance 

Senior Unsecured 
Debt 

 UK Gilts and T-Bills 

 Deposits 

 Call Accounts 

 Notice Accounts 

 Certificates of 
Deposit 

 Loans 

 Commercial Paper 

 All other senior 
unsecured bonds 

Issuer (and security where 
separately rated) Investment 
Grade (IG) defined per 36.0 

 

OR 

 

UK Government (including the 
Debt Management Account 
Deposit Facility, Local 
Authorities and bodies eligible 
for PWLB finance) 

 

OR 

 

Issuer not meeting general 
criteria but instruments 
explicitly guaranteed by IG 
entity or sovereign national 
government meeting acceptable 
sovereign ratings per 32.0.   

S NS 100% 

Constant Net Asset 
Value Money Market 
Funds  

Fitch AAAmmf or above 

See 36.0 for equivalents from 
other agencies. 

 

Daily liquidity 

S N/A 100% 

 

Not more than 
20% per fund 

Page 98



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 7 

Investment type Eligibility criteria ≤ 1 year to 
maturity at 
time of 
investment 

> 1 year to 
maturity at 
time of 
investment 

Maximum 
total exposure 
as a 
proportion of 
daily balance 

Other Collective 
Investment Schemes 
structured as Open 
Ended Investment 
Companies (OEICs) 

Fitch AAAf  

or equivalent from other 
agencies per 36.0. 

NS Not 
permitted. 

20% 

Senior UK Prime or Buy 
to Let Residential 
Mortgage Backed 
Securities (RMBS) 

Bond rating Fitch AA+sf or 
above 

or equivalent from other 
agencies per 36.0. 

NS NS 20% 

Covered bonds  Bond rating Fitch AA+sf  

or equivalent from other 
agencies per 36.0 

 

AND 

 

Issuer rated Fitch A- or above 

or equivalent from other 
agencies per 36.0 

NS NS 20% 

Repurchase 
Agreements (Repo) 

Counterparty meets senior 
unsecured criteria AND 
proposed collateral (Min 100%) 
itself meets permitted 
investment criteria 

 

Or 

 

Collateralisation is >102% with 
UK Gilts / T-Bills  

S – UK gilts or 
T-Bills AND 

Counterparty 
meets senior 
unsecured 
criteria 

 

NS – other  

Not 
permitted. 

S – 100% 

 

NS – 20%, and 
not more than 
10% with 
counterparties 
not meeting 
senior 
unsecured 
criteria. 

 

16.0 The Manager may delegate the management of a portion, not exceeding the forecast minimum GIS 

balance for the next 12 months, of the GIS to external fund managers with majority consent of the 

Syndics.   

Page 99



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 8 

Liquidity and Maturity Limits 

17.0 Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) ≤ 91days, calculated to the nearest whole day.  

[Maturity here refers to the final expected maturity or if relevant the first call option of the instrument; in 

the case of funds the maturity will be the redemption period; in the case of call or notice accounts, the 

notice period; in the case of RMBS investments maturity refers to the next interest reset, rather than 

either the legal maturity or expected final maturity.]   

18.0 Sub-portfolio (managed by an external manager) WAM ≤ 3years.   

Individual maturity limit, internally managed instruments: ≤ 2 years.   

[In the exceptional event of the internal team taking possession of repo collateral, e.g. gilts that exceed 

this limit, the expectation is that these will be sold at the earliest opportunity, subject to market 

conditions.]   

19.0 Individual maturity limit, externally managed instruments: ≤ 5 years.   

[Note – in the case of RMBS these limits apply to the date by which all principal is expected to be 

received, based on analysis of the underlying mortgage pool and indicated call dates – the legal maturity 

date, based on the longest dated mortgage in the relevant pool, is not limited given the extremely low 

probability of the bond failing to be repaid by that time;  

In the case of covered bonds, these limits apply to the expected maturity date, which may not include the 

exercise of the extension option.]   

20.0 Limit for total exposure >12months: ≤25% of total daily balance.   

21.0 Forward Dealing limit: aggregate value of outstanding forward deals ≤20% of daily balance.  See also 

42.0 for credit risk management of forward deals.   

[The GIS defines ‘forward’ as negotiated more than 4 banking days in advance of delivery.  The Manager 

may make exceptions to this limit where the counterparty is a GIS Participant and the forward period is 

less than 3 months.]   

22.0 Internally managed investments should only be made where GIS cash flow forecasts or best estimates 

suggest the instrument may be held to maturity.  Externally managed investments may be purchased 

with lower certainty subject to the provisions of 10.0. 

Counterparty Concentration Limits 

(Apply individually and cumulatively to groups) 

Page 100



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 9 

23.0 The total exposure to a group of companies (a parent company and any subsidiaries, i.e. companies of 

which it owns 20% or more of authorised share capital) shall not exceed the maximum individual 

exposure limit of the constituents of the group.   

24.0 Maximum unsecured exposure to company or group: ≤5% (subject to enhancements below).   

25.0 Enhanced limits apply for UK Government (including the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility, 

Local Authorities and bodies eligible for PWLB finance) and institutions covered by Link Asset Services’ 

Colour Banding Methodology:  

Cash Exposure  Limits – applied to individual counterparties 

Band Overnight > 1 day 

UK Sovereign 100% 100% 

Yellow 50% 25% 

Purple 50% 20% 

Orange 25% 15% 

Red 25% 10% 

Green 10% 5% 

No Colour 5% 5% 

 

26.0 The Bands above are calculated based on a range of credit ratings data, including published rating 

Watches and Outlooks.  Where the price of 5-year Credit Default Swaps for a given counterparty exceeds 

barrier levels proposed by Link Asset Services with regard to market history, the Band will normally be 

adjusted downwards. The Manager may postpone such adjustments in consultation with the Syndics, for 

instance, if it is felt that changes in CDS prices do not reflect an increase in the individual credit risk of a 

particular counterparty.   

27.0 Additionally, an enhanced overnight limit of 100% applies to the GLA banker, RBS.   

28.0 Local authority investments are evaluated using the qualifying questions set out in the PWLB lending 

arrangements (Circular 160). This primarily relates to a Local authority’s affordable borrowing limit and 

lawful use of funds. The Manager will also consider reputational risks to the participants that may arise 

from being creditors of an organisation in financial distress, even where this presents no material credit 

risk. 

Page 101



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 10 

29.0 If, in the judgement of the Manager, the structure of a bond associated with a local authority is such that 

the credit risk is not identical to a bilateral loan with that authority, the rating of the bond itself will be 

used and the 5% limit will apply.   

30.0 Maximum aggregate exposure including indirect or collateralised exposures:   

Security Type Cumulative Enhancement 

Non-specified Repo 2.5% 

Covered Bond 5% 

RMBS 7.5% 

Specified Repo  10% 

 

[These enhancements are cumulative so the maximum possible total enhancement is 10% above is 

the counterparty’s senior unsecured limit.]   

  

Page 102



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 11 

Geo-political risk limits  

31.0 The GIS will seek to reduce exposure to geo-political impact on credit risk by investing in companies that 

operate in stable economies.  In particular, the GIS recognises a particular linkage between countries’ 

national finances and their banking sectors, and considers sovereign credit ratings to be related to 

national financial stability.   

32.0 Maximum exposures to non-UK financial institutions apply by country, based on the relevant sovereign 

ratings outlined in the table below:  

Max. Aggregate  
Exposure (%) 

Fitch  

Sovereign Rating 

S&P  

Sovereign Rating 

Moody’s 

Sovereign Rating 

25 AAA AAA Aaa 

15 AA+ AA+ Aa1 

5 A A A 

 

33.0 Where more than one rating is available the lowest common denominator will be used, unless in the 

opinion of the Manager there is an overriding reason to favour or disregard a particular agency’s view.  

The use of this discretion will be reported in the following weekly report to the Syndics.   

34.0 For non-UK, non-financial institutions, or in circumstances such as an instrument being issued through a 

subsidiary domiciled in one country but guaranteed or otherwise secured by a parent in another, the risks 

and appropriate country limit (if any, in the case of multinational corporations) in which to aggregate the 

exposure will be considered on a case by case basis and determined by the Manager.  A written copy of 

the assessment of each such counterparty and/or instrument will be filed with the investment and shared 

with the Syndics at the next quarterly review meeting.   

35.0 The Manager may decline to place an investment and may indefinitely suspend any counterparty or 

group of counterparties on the basis of geo-political risk considerations, howsoever arising.  Such use of 

discretion will be reviewed at weekly team meetings and where restrictions are imposed or subsequently 

withdrawn, this will be shared with the Syndics as part of weekly reporting.   

Page 103



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 12 

Credit Risk Limits 

36.0 Permitted issuer credit ratings and equivalence mappings.   

Senior Unsecured Bond and/or Issuer Ratings 

Long term Short term 

Fitch Moody’s S&P Fitch Moody’s S&P 

AAA Aaa AAA    

AA+ Aa1 AA+    

AA Aa2 AA F1+ P-1 A-1+ 

AA- Aa3 AA-    

A+ A1 A+    

A A2 A F1 P-1 A-1 

A- A3 A-    

BBB+ Baa1 BBB+    

BBB Baa2 BBB F2 P-2 A-2 

Structured Finance Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s S&P 

AAAsf Aaa (sf) AAA (sf) 

AA+sf Aa1(sf) AA+ (sf) 

Money Market Fund Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s S&P 

AAAmmf Aaa-mf AAAm 

Other Permitted Fund Ratings 

Fitch Moody’s S&P 

AAAf Aaa-bf AAAf 

 

Page 104



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 13 

37.0 Where more than one rating is available the lowest common denominator will be used, unless in the 

opinion of the Manager there is an overriding reason to favour or disregard one particular agency’s view.  

The use of this discretion will be reported immediately to the Syndics.   

38.0 For internally managed investments Credit Factors will also be calculated individually and Portfolio Credit 

Factor (PCF) on a book value weighted average basis with reference to the following tables:  

Credit Factors based on Issuer Default Rating (Fitch and Fitch Equivalents) 

Use instrument rating or if not rated, rating of Issuer. 

Days AAA AA+ AA AA− A+ A A− BBB+ BBB 

O/N 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.07 0.10 

2-7 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.10 0.15 0.20 0.30 0.50 0.80 

8-30 0.10 0.15 0.25 0.40 0.60 0.75 1.30 2.10 3.50 

31-60 0.20 0.30 0.50 0.80 1.20 1.50 2.60 4.20 7.00 

61-90 0.25 0.50 0.75 1.25 1.50 2.50 5.00 7.50 10.00 

91-120 0.35 0.65 1.00 1.50 2.30 3.30 6.60 10.00 13.50 

121-150 0.40 0.80 1.25 2.10 2.90 4.20 8.30 12.50 16.50 

151-180 0.50 1.00 1.50 2.50 3.50 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 

181-210 0.60 1.20 1.75 3.00 4.00 5.80 11.70 17.50 23.50 

211-240 0.70 1.30 2.00 3.30 4.70 6.60 13.30 20.00 27.00 

241-270 0.75 1.50 2.25 3.75 5.25 7.50 15.00 22.50 30.00 

271-300 0.80 1.70 2.50 4.20 5.80 8.30 16.70 25.00 33.50 

301-330 0.90 1.85 2.75 4.60 6.50 9.20 18.50 27.50 37.00 

331-397 1.00 2.00 3.00 5.00 7.00 10.00 20.00 30.00 40.00 

398-730 2.70 5.30 8.00 13.00 19.00 27.00 43.00 69.00 106.00 

 

Page 105



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 14 

Other treatments 

UK Government (including the Debt 
Management Account Deposit Facility, Local 
Authorities and bodies eligible for PWLB 
finance) 

Treat as AAA above 

 

Except: 

 

If, in the judgement of the Manager, the structure 
of a bond associated with a local authority is such 
that the credit risk is not identical to a bilateral 
loan with that authority, the rating of the bond 
itself will be used  

Instruments explicitly guaranteed by IG 
entity or sovereign national government 
meeting acceptable sovereign ratings per 
32.031.0. 

Use Credit Factors appropriate to guarantor 
strictly for the period of the guarantee, reverting 
to rating of issuer thereafter 

Repo Use Credit Factors appropriate to repo 
counterparty, not collateral; 

Unrated or sub-BBB counterparty with >102% 
Gilt/T-bill collateralisation – treat as BBB 

Approved fund, e.g. AAAf or AAAmmf  Use Credit Factor of 1.5 

Covered Bonds or RMBS Use Credit Factor of 5 

 

39.0 Where a counterparty’s (or its country of domicile’s) 5-year CDS spreads exceed barrier levels from time 

to time agreed by the Syndics on the advice of Link Asset Services or the Manager, the Credit Factor 

used for the PCF calculation will be from the factor set of one or more notches below the issuer or 

security rating (e.g. If a AA+ counterparty’s CDS spread exceeds the first barrier level, AA factors will be 

used to calculate the PCF).   

40.0 The following limits apply at all times:  

 Maximum Credit Factor of any single security: 10.00  

 Maximum PCF: 5.00  

41.0 The PCF will be calculated and recorded daily.   

42.0 The total contractual exposure of any transaction with counterparty, i.e. in the case of a forward deal, 

the forward period PLUS the eventual length of the deal should be considered at the time of the 

Page 106



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 15 

transaction and compared to table 38.0 – the Credit Factor for the total exposure period at the 

counterparty’s credit rating at the time of the deal must not exceed 10.   

Deposit Facility of Last Resort 

43.0 In the circumstance of being unable to place funds with counterparties within approved limits, the 

Investment Manager will attempt to place the surplus funds with the Debt Management Account Deposit 

Facility (DMADF).  This facility may, of course, also be used in other circumstances if it offers rates 

above equivalent market levels, though in past experience this is unlikely.   

44.0 In the instance of technical failures or unexpected monies being received after the daily cut-off time 

(13:00) for settlement, the GLA will have no choice but to leave the funds with the GLA’s bankers, RBS.  

In such circumstances, the funds will remain in the GLA’s bank account until the following business day.   

Custody Arrangements 

45.0 Internally or externally managed securities may be held by a Custodian; in such circumstances:  

a. The Custodian or any Sub-Custodian employed by the Custodian (whichever actually holds the GIS 

securities) must be Fitch A- rated or equivalent; 

b. Any cash held by the Custodian or any Sub-Custodian pending transactions must be properly 

identified as an unsecured deposit and consolidated into the PCF calculation; 

c. The Custodian or any Sub-Custodian shall not be entitled to invest such cash in any money market 

fund or other product without the permission of the Manager. Any such investment must meet the 

criteria of 15.0. 

46.0 The above applies to any Custodian or Sub Custodian holding collateral on behalf of the GIS in respect of 

a Repo transaction. Note – ‘Held in Custody’ Repos where collateral is held at the borrower’s custodian 

in the borrower’s title are NOT permitted. 

Manager Discretions 

47.0 The Manager may restrict the use of any counterparty for any reason related to the management of risk, 

including reputational risk to any Participant.  Such restrictions may be overturned by any majority of 

Syndics.   

48.0 When postponing CDS-driven adjustments to exposure limits, the Manager will notify the Syndics of the 

decision immediately.  Syndics will have until 12pm to register concerns otherwise the decision will be 

implemented for that day. Any majority of Syndics may reverse the decision subsequently.  

 

Page 107



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 16 

Responsible Investment 

49.0 All investment will be made in accordance with the following policy with respect to fossil fuel companies: 

GLA Group Responsible Investment Statement on Climate Change 
The Greater London Authority is committed to a number of principles which guide their investment 

decisions.  The Greater London Authority will consider non-financial factors when investing, such as 

alignment of the activities of investment counterparties with Mayoral policy on environmental and social 

impact, providing no compromise of fiduciary duty arises from such considerations.   

Regarding climate change in particular, the Authority will not actively invest in companies or projects 

(“fossil fuel companies” and “fossil fuel projects”) that derive more than 10% of revenues from the 

extraction of fossil fuels, ignore the impact and risks associated with the use of fossil fuels, and are unable 

to demonstrate a commitment to achieving environmental benefits, in particular through a plan to limit 

climate change in line with the Paris Agreement:   

http://unfccc.int/paris_agreement/items/9485.php 

The Authority notes a distinction between Natural Gas, which will continue to play a valuable role out to 

2030, both for heating and for electricity generation, and other fossil fuels; nevertheless, the Authority 

would expect a demonstrable commitment to achieving environmental benefits from companies involved 

in gas extraction.   

In order to assess the level of commitment to achieving environmental benefits, the Authority will make 

use of the Transition Pathway Initiative, as adopted by a range of leading institutional investors:  

http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/tpi/about/ 

Where such investments are already in place, and opportunities for engagement and reform of the 

company or project do not exist, the Authority will make all reasonable efforts to divest provided that this 

will result in no material financial detriment (either through cost or increased investment risk).   

The Authority views divestment and avoidance of any long term financial exposure to such companies or 

projects as entirely consistent with its fiduciary duty to protect and obtain best value from public funds.  

This is also consistent with the Mayor of London’s climate change goals and commitment to ensuring that 

optimum low carbon investment decisions are taken, to help to maximise social and economic benefits.   

Page 108

http://unfccc.int/paris_agreement/items/9485.php
http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/tpi/about/


 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 17 

To explain these statements concisely the Authority makes the following definitions, with examples of 

application:  

“invest” – in this context, investment means the acquiring ownership of all or part of a fossil fuel company 

or otherwise providing financial support to such a company or any project which ignores the 

environmental impact and risks associated with Fossil Fuels;  

“actively” – means making a choice to invest based on a direct assessment of that company or project or 

to knowingly create a long term economic interest in such companies or projects;  

“environmental benefits” –  means reducing net carbon emissions over time;  

“opportunities for engagement” – means the ability to meaningfully influence the strategy or 

development of the company or project.  This might be through the exercise of voting rights, either 

individually or alongside like-minded investors or other routes;  

“ignoring the impact and risks associated with fossil fuels” – means continuing or developing new 

business activities contributing to climate change through fossil fuel emissions or environmental damage 

resulting from relevant fuel extraction without regard to development of new and sustainable alternatives 

or other transition planning towards a lower environmental impact;  

“long term financial exposure” – means exposure for more than 12 months, either through actual 

investment or commitments to invest (contingent or otherwise) where the length of the commitment plus 

the expected duration of the investment exceeds this period;  

Examples of application: 

 Making a loan to a fossil fuel company in order fund expansion of conventional extraction activities 

would meet the definition of investment for these purposes; making a loan to a fossil fuel company to 

develop an alternative technology would not.   

 Purchasing a fossil fuel company bond, from another bond holder would not meet the definition as it 

does not lead to ownership or engagement, nor provide new financial assistance to the company.  

Participating in the purchase of newly issued long term bonds may or may not classify as investment 

depending on the proposed use of proceeds.   

 Commercial Paper or other debt instruments with less than a year to maturity would not constitute 

investment in this context as there is no associated ownership or engagement, nor do the longer-term 

Page 109



 

 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 18 

risks associated with exposure to unsustainable industries (which this strategy seeks to mitigate) apply 

over the life of such instruments.   

 Directly purchasing equity in a fossil fuel company would constitute an active investment.   

 Buying units in an exchange-traded tracker fund, where the index is known to contain fossil fuel 

companies may or may not constitute an active investment.  It would be active if the intent was for the 

allocation to be a permanent part of the investment portfolio and the composition of the index was 

weighted more than 10% towards fossil fuel companies; it would not if the purchase was made to 

maintain broad market exposure, for instance during a transition between active portfolios.  In any 

circumstance, the Authority seeks to influence the composition of the market (reflected in passive 

investments) through its own active decisions and those of likeminded partners.   

 Circumstances involving conglomerates with a mixture of subsidiaries, some of which may meet the 

fossil fuels company definition (whereas others may, for example, be focused on renewable energy), 

would be considered on a case-by-case basis, with investment being possible if the overall corporate 

strategy appears to be environmentally sustainable and offset the financial risks this statement seeks to 

mitigate.   

 

Page 110



 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 19 

Explanatory Notes 

Background to the GIS Investment Strategy 

i. The GIS is a vehicle for investing pooled short-term cash balances for the GLA and 

partner organisations. 

ii. By pooling resources, the participants can achieve economies of scale through larger 

individual transactions; can exploit the greater stability of pooled cash flows to obtain 

better returns and can achieve greater levels of diversification.   

iii. A risk sharing agreement ensures risk and reward relating to each investment within the 

jointly controlled portfolio are shared in direct proportion to each participant’s daily 

investment.   

iv. The Manager operates the GIS cash balances in accordance with the GIS Investment 

Strategy.   

4.0  

i. Reporting thresholds are capped at £25m and £50m, these limits are conservative based 

on the expected scale of the GIS – based on the GIS composition as at 1 January 2020, 

the absolute exposure reporting thresholds for each participant would be:  

£m 25 50 

GLA  21.8 43.6 

LFC  0.8 1.6 

MOPAC 1.0 2.1 

LPFA  1.0 2.0 

LLDC  0.3 0.7 

 

15.0 

i. The concept of “Specified” and “Non–Specified” Investments is defined in the DCLG 

Guidance on Local Government Investments (revised 2010).   

Specified Investments 

ii. An investment is a Specified investment if all of the following apply:  

Page 111



  

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 20 

a) The investment is denominated in sterling and any payments or repayments in 

respect of the investment are payable only in sterling;  

b) The investment is not a long-term investment (i.e. due or required to be 

repaid within 12 months);  

c) The making of the investment is not defined as capital expenditure by virtue 

of regulation 25(1)(d) of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 

Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (SI 3146 as amended) (i.e. the 

investment is not share capital in a body corporate);  

d) The investment is made with a body or in an investment scheme of high credit 

quality (defined by the minimum credit ratings outlined in table15.0) or with 

one of the following public-sector bodies: 

 The United Kingdom Government 

 A local authority in England or Wales (as defined in section 23 of the 

2003 Local Government Act) or a similar body in Scotland or Northern 

Ireland 

 A parish council or community 

Non-Specified Investments  

iii. Non-Specified Investments are defined as investments assessed by the GIS 

Participants to be appropriate and prudent, but not meeting the Specified 

Investments criteria.   

iv. Reflecting increased market risk and difficulties in diversifying, this strategy includes 

the highly secure option of UK Residential Mortgage Backed Securities, which 

provides a genuine diversification away from institutional credit risk and additional 

options for secured lending, enabling limits to be increased with existing 

counterparties in exchange for security of some sort of asset in the event of the 

borrower becoming insolvent. 

v. RMBS 

 Only senior RMBS are permitted at this stage, i.e. the GIS has first priority over 

the cash flows from the underlying pools of thousands of diversified UK 

residential prime or buy-to-let mortgages.  These to date have always been 

Page 112



  

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 21 

AAA rated at inception with some isolated cases of downgrades to AA+ due to 

lower ratings of associated counterparties within the RMBS structure such as 

the bank servicing the mortgages, rather than the underlying mortgages, 

reflecting the increased risk of possible payment disruption should the 

servicing bank fail (though no increased risk of non-payment).  The strategy 

does not exclude these downgraded senior notes as the risk of loss is still very 

low but it should be noted that changes to RMBS structures since 2008 make 

this circumstance very unlikely in future.   

 The cash flows from RMBS are generated by both interest and principal 

repayments of the mortgages in the relevant pool. In particular, when 

homeowners refinance (or move house) the pool experiences principal inflows, 

which are then passed through to the RMBS bondholders (which the most 

senior tranches, proposed here, receive before all others).  Refinancing 

typically occurs much earlier than the final date of the mortgage, therefore it 

is not proposed to limit the legal maturity of RMBS, as these are set with 

reference to the longest dated mortgage in the pool and do not reflect the 

expected maturity date.  In addition, RMBS deals are structured with financial 

penalties for the issuer beyond the expected maturity date, to ensure that 

deals mature as expected.   

 The strong cash flow characteristics of senior RMBS mean that principal is 

repaid incrementally, therefore a proposed WAM limit of 3 years per security 

for the whole RMBS portfolio is proposed alongside a 5 year expected final 

maturity limit per security.   

vi. Covered Bonds 

 Covered bonds are also secured on mortgage assets, but do not depend on 

mortgages for the cash flows.  They are more like a normal bond issued by the 

relevant bank or building society except that should the issuer default, the 

covered bond holders will have security over the banks’ mortgage assets, 

which could be sold to another bank to meet the obligation.   

Page 113



  

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 22 

 Whilst the credit risk is clearly lower than unsecured lending to the issuer, the 

situation is different to RMBS and when the issuer is downgraded, covered 

bonds are typically downgraded too.  Accordingly, the strategy does not 

permit the use of covered bonds issued by counterparties who do not 

themselves meet approved investment criteria.   

 Another feature of covered bonds are extension clauses, typically of 2 years.  

For this reason, the strategy only permits the use of counterparties of A- 

rating or above to allow for downgrades over the extension period, should it 

be invoked.   

 Because they are lower risk than unsecured lending to a given counterparty, 

covered bond yields are generally lower.  Accordingly, the main circumstance 

in which they would be used in the current environment is to increase 

exposure to a strong and well understood counterparty already at its 

unsecured concentration limit.   

vii. Repurchase Agreements “Repos” 

 Repos are a form of secured lending whereby rather than lend directly to a 

counterparty, the GIS would buy from them a security e.g. a bond and agree 

to sell it back at an agreed (higher) price at a future date.  The profit on this 

transaction replaces interest in a normal lending agreement but there is the 

additional feature that if the borrower becomes insolvent, the GIS may keep 

the security, which is referred to as collateral.   

 For this reason, only securities that meet GIS criteria may be accepted as 

collateral, however the duration limits of 19.0and 18.0 do not apply since the 

expectation is that the collateral will be disposed of at the first opportunity 

and over-collateralisation provides mitigation for any price movement.   

 Furthermore, if such a default occurred, the GIS may need to sell the collateral 

for cash flow reasons so there may be some price risk between the default and 

the sale.  Therefore, minimum levels of collateral, expressed as a percentage of 

the market value of collateral relative to the purchase price, are proposed.   

Page 114



  

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 23 

 The strategy permits very limited repo exposure (2.5% and 10% in aggregate) 

to counterparties not meeting unsecured investment criteria.  In this case, 

minimum collateral is set at 102% (in line with minimum standards for repo 

use by AAA rated money market funds) and the provision is designed to 

enable transactions with pension funds engaged in liability hedging activities, 

to mutual advantage.   

 There are a number of ways to implement a repo.  This is delegated to officers 

and their advisors or external managers, however per 46.0, legal title to the 

collateral must be unequivocally obtained and safe custody arrangements be 

in place.   

 Repos will provide a further tool for balancing GIS risk and return: the risk is 

very much lower than unsecured lending to banks and others, although not as 

low as T-bills, however repo returns are slightly higher than T-Bills and there is 

more flexibility with maturity dates.   

18.0 

i. For the purposes of this limit, WAM is the sum of each expected nominal cashflow and 

its respective expected incidence in days from the calculation date, divided by the total 

nominal cashflows; the use of expectations rather than contractual maturities reflects 

the use of instruments like RMBS which are subject to uncertain repayments.  The 

Syndics place reliance on the systems and investment process of appointed managers to 

monitor and implement this limit.   

26.0 

i. Credit Default Swaps (CDS) are effectively insurance contracts against a given 

counterparty defaulting; their price (typically expressed as an additional interest cost 

or ‘spread’ in basis points – i.e. 100ths of one percent).  Higher prices may therefore 

reflect greater market perception of risk, although other supply and demand factors 

can distort this, including the activity of speculators.  For this reason, the Manager 

has discretion to propose postponements to the impact of CDS data on limits.   

Page 115



  

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 24 

ii. Although the GIS typically participates in short term investments, it refers to 5-year 

CDS prices as this market has higher volumes of trading and therefore more accurately 

reflects market sentiment.   

iii. The GIS’s advisor and data provider, Link Asset Services, proposes barrier levels 

dependent on market conditions as indicated by one of the main CDS indices, ITRAXX 

5-year senior financials. 

iv. When the ITRAXX is below 100 basis points, a counterparty’s limit band will be 

adjusted down one notch if their CDS price is between 100 and 150 or to ‘no colour’ 

if above 150.   

v. When the ITRAXX is above 100, a counterparty’s limit band will be adjusted down one 

notch if their CDS price is up to 50 basis points above the ITRAXX or to ‘no colour’ if 

more than 50 basis points above.   

38.0 

i. Book value weighted average here means the sum of the products of principal sums 

invested (plus any capitalised interest, less any impairments or partial repayments but 

excluding any accrued interest or unrealised gains or losses) and the respective Credit 

Factors at the date of calculation, divided by the sum of principal sums invested (plus 

any capitalised interest, less any impairments or partial repayments but excluding any 

accrued interest or unrealised gains or losses).   

Page 116



 

 

GIS Investment Strategy 2019-20 25 

Approved by Signatories: 

 

 

 

 ----------------------------------------------------   --------------------------------------------------------  

MARTIN CLARKE SUE BUDDEN 

Syndic, GLA Syndic, LFC  

Date:   .............................................  Date:   ..................................................  

 

 

 ----------------------------------------------------   --------------------------------------------------------  

GERRY MURPHY PETER LEWIS 

Syndic, LLDC Syndic, MOPAC 

Date:   .............................................  Date:   ..................................................  

 

 

 ----------------------------------------------------  

MORENIKE AJAYI 

Syndic, LPFA 

Date:   .............................................  

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

   
Subject: 2020/21 Budget Update 
Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board 
Report of: Richard Irish, Finance Director 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1. The LLDC 2020/21 draft budget submission covering the years 2020/21 to 
2023/24 was submitted to the GLA in November 2019, in accordance with the 
Mayor’s Budget Guidance. The full submission is available on LLDC’s website.1 

1.2. The Mayor published his draft 2020/21 consolidated budget for public 
consultation in December 2019. This was scrutinised by the London Assembly 
and approved by them on 24 February 2020.The Mayor subsequently confirmed 
LLDC’s capital spending plan on 27 February 2020. 

1.3. No changes to the submitted budget have arisen from the Mayoral review 
process. The final budget for LLDC will be submitted to LLDC’s Board for 
approval in May 2020 including year-end budget rollovers. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note the 2020/21 budget update set out in this report. 

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. LLDC’s budget forms part of the GLA budget. The GLA statutory budget process 
ensures there are sound financial plans to support Mayoral objectives and 
priorities within available resources. 

3.2. LLDC was also required, as for all members of the GLA Group, to produce a 
Capital Strategy. The purpose of the GLA Group Capital Strategy is to set out the 
Mayor’s capital investment ambition and funding thereof. The strategy 
demonstrates that the GLA Group’s capital expenditure and investment decisions 
are made in line with Mayoral priorities and properly take account of stewardship, 
value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability, and give due regard 
for risk and reward. LLDC’s submitted Capital Strategy 2020/21 covered the 
content required by the Mayor’s Budget Guidance. 

3.3. Following approval by the Board, the proposed budget was submitted to the GLA 
on 29 November 2019 and published on LLDC’s website. A draft consolidated 

                                                
1
 https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/-/media/qeop/test/lldc-2020-21-budget-

submission.ashx?la=en  

Page 119

Agenda Item 12

https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/-/media/qeop/test/lldc-2020-21-budget-submission.ashx?la=en
https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/-/media/qeop/test/lldc-2020-21-budget-submission.ashx?la=en
https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/-/media/qeop/test/lldc-2020-21-budget-submission.ashx?la=en


 

 

budget was then published by the GLA for consultation in December 2019. The 
draft consolidated budget was considered by the London Assembly in December, 
with a further review (and approval) of the final draft in February 2020. The final 
budget for LLDC will be submitted to LLDC’s Board for approval in May 2020 
including year-end budget rollovers. 

 

 
4. 2020/21 BUDGET SUBMISSION 

Capital Budget 

4.1. LLDC’s borrowing limit was capped in 2018/19 at £520m to reflect a more 
prudent level of borrowings. At that time, the GLA agreed to: 

(a) provide direct capital grant funding towards the East Bank project; 

(b) invest equity directly in the joint ventures to develop LLDC’s aforementioned 
three remaining sites (Stratford Waterfront, Pudding Mill Lane and Rick 
Roberts Way) and replace LLDC’s expected net proceeds from those sites 
with capital grant; and 

(c) as required, provide capital grant funding to ensure LLDC remains within its 
borrowing limit (of £520m) over the lifetime of the Long Term Model. 

4.2. The capital budget for the next four financial years (as included in the November 
2019 submission) is set out in the following table, alongside the forecast outturn 
for 2019/20 (as at 30 September 2019). LLDC’s net expenditure (after direct 
capital grant from the GLA) is funded by capital borrowings from the GLA, which 
are repaid from capital receipts over the long-term.  

 
 

4.3. As a reminder, key items included in the 2020/21 capital budget submission 
were: 

Income 

 Income from East Bank included contributions from University of the Arts 
London (UAL) towards the costs of constructing their building; note that 
part of UAL’s contributions is funded via a loan facility from LLDC, 

Capital Budget

2019/20

Forecast

£m

2020/21

Budget

£m

2021/22

Plan

£m

2022/23

Plan

£m

2023/24

Plan

£m

Total

Budget/Plan

£m

Income

Capital receipts 30.7 26.0 39.9 33.0 6.4 105.2

East Bank 35.8 73.8 46.5 14.8 13.0 148.0

GLA Grant 17.6 75.8 91.1 11.3 7.4 185.6

Other (incl Section 106/CIL) 0.3 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.1 1.0

Total Capital Income 84.4 176.3 177.5 59.2 26.8 439.8

Expenditure

East Bank (83.7) (195.3) (142.5) (13.5) (2.5) (353.7)

Development - Infrastructure (9.5) (4.9) (0.3) (24.8) (6.1) (36.1)

Development - other (16.6) (15.6) (17.3) (5.6) (6.2) (44.6)

Stadium - Capital (9.4) (11.2) (3.5) (2.9) (2.9) (20.6)

Stadium - Transformation (2.7) (3.3) - - - (3.3)

Park and Venues (5.7) (7.4) (2.7) (3.8) (1.9) (15.7)

Regeneration (0.3) (0.5) (0.4) (0.1) (0.2) (1.2)

FCCS (2.9) (1.8) (1.6) (1.5) (1.4) (6.4)

Contingency (5.7) (2.7) (2.3) (1.0) (0.9) (6.8)

Corporation Tax (1.5) (1.3) (0.6) (1.9) (2.6) (6.3)

Total Capital Expenditure (138.0) (244.0) (171.1) (55.1) (24.6) (494.8)

Net Capital Expenditure (53.6) (67.7) 6.4 4.0 2.3 (55.0)

Cash Adjustments for BBC/UAL Loan Funding - (35.0) (42.5) (2.1) 3.4 (76.2)

Cumulative borrowing 381.1 483.9 520.0 518.0 512.3

Page 120



 

 

repayments of which are expected to begin within the budget submission 
period (2023/24). 

 Also included were philanthropic funds to be raised by Foundation for 
FutureLondon and expected contributions from other East Bank partners 
and key stakeholders. 

 The GLA is providing capital grant funding across the budget submission 
period towards East Bank (including the additional cost of the overall East 
Bank increased budget), to ensure LLDC remains within its borrowing limit 
of £520m (required in 2021/22), and relating to the proceeds that LLDC 
would previously have received from the joint venture delivery of 
residential on Stratford Waterfront. 

Expenditure 
 

 Costs for East Bank reflected the forecast at 30 September 2019 for 
construction, an agreed contribution to the BBC’s Stamp Duty Land Tax 
and the Corporation’s Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy 
obligations arising from the planning approval secured in June 2019. This 
resulted in an overall year-on year increase of £32.8m to the East Bank 
budget, funded by additional GLA capital grant and estimated partner 
contributions to the overspend. 

 Development costs relate mainly to Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) 
Section 106 infrastructure works, including for East Wick and Sweetwater 
and Pudding Mill in anticipation of the residential developments to be 
delivered there. They also reflected the cost of planning obligations 
arising from the Stratford Waterfront planning permission secured during 
2019/20.  

 Also included were development strategy costs for masterplanning, 
design, planning submissions and joint venture/developer procurements 
on the Pudding Mill and Rick Roberts Way developments. 

 Capital costs for the Stadium relate to LLDC’s funding towards the 
Stadium’s capital investment for lifecycle and improvement projects, 
including improvements to the Stadium’s current seating system. Funding 
towards the Stadium’s working capital (i.e. operational) requirements are 
now included in LLDC’s revenue budget following discussions with the 
GLA. This is funded by additional GLA revenue grant and has reduced the 
grant required to maintain LLDC’s borrowing within the Corporation’s 
maximum borrowing limits.  

Revenue Budget 

4.4. The revenue income and expenditure budget (pre-financing costs), as included in 
the November 2019 submission, is shown in the following table. The profile 
shows increasing income from the Fixed Estate Charge2, driven largely by the 
Chobham Manor and East Wick and Sweetwater developments as they progress 
over the budget submission period. Income from trading operations remains 
steady due to the retention of 3 Mills Studios. 

4.5. Expenditure reduces from 2020/21 to 2021/22 (largely due to the assumed 
reduction in the Stadium working capital requirement) and then remains broadly 
flat until 2023/24. A large part of LLDC’s revenue expenditure is the relatively 
fixed costs required to operate its business. 

                                                
2
 In Park Operations and Venues (excl Trading) 

Page 121



 

 

4.6. The difference between income and expenditure is currently met by cumulative 
underspends against budget (held by the GLA on behalf of LLDC) and grant from 
the GLA (including specific revenue grant for the London Stadium working capital 
requirement). There are sufficient cumulative underspends and grant funding to 
meet LLDC’s requirements for 2019/20 and 2020/21. However, revenue gaps in 
the following three years will need to be addressed to reduce the funding 
requirement to the GLA’s ongoing allocation of £16.0m per year (excluding 
Stadium revenue grant).  

 

 
 

5. UPDATES TO THE BUDGET SUBMISSION 

5.1. In May 2020, the LLDC Board will be presented with an updated budget for 
2020/21, which will include year-end rollovers from 2019/20. To date, there are 
no other proposed variations to budgets that were submitted in November 2019. 
The proposals being brought forward on the Stratford Waterfront/Bridgewater 
delivery approach (expected to be presented to the Investment Committee in 
March) are likely to have a non-material impact on capital spend in the year. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 

 

List of Background Papers: 

Papers for the meeting of the Board 19 November 2019 

 

 

Revenue Budget

2019/20

Forecast

£m

2020/21

Budget

£m

2021/22

Plan

£m

2022/23

Plan

£m

2023/24

Plan

£m

Total

Budget/Plan

£m

Income

Development 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 1.3 3.1

Executive Office 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services 0.3 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.9

Park Operations and Venues (excl Trading) 3.5 3.9 4.3 6.2 7.2 21.7

Planning Policy and Decisions 2.5 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 5.1

Regeneration and Community Partnerships - 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3

Trading 7.6 9.0 9.8 9.6 9.4 37.8

Total Revenue Income 14.0 15.2 16.3 18.2 19.2 69.0

Expenditure

Communications, Marketing and Strategy (1.7) (1.9) (1.9) (2.0) (2.1) (7.9)

Development (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) (0.5)

Executive Office (2.4) (2.5) (2.5) (2.7) (2.7) (10.4)

Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services (6.1) (6.1) (6.0) (6.1) (6.2) (24.3)

Park Operations and Venues (excl Trading) (9.0) (9.6) (9.6) (10.1) (10.3) (39.5)

Planning Policy and Decisions (3.4) (3.1) (2.6) (2.3) (2.3) (10.3)

Regeneration and Community Partnerships (2.6) (2.4) (2.4) (2.4) (2.4) (9.6)

Stadium (17.5) (16.6) (11.3) (11.1) (10.8) (49.8)

Trading (9.0) (9.9) (9.8) (9.9) (10.5) (40.1)

Contingency (0.6) (0.6) (0.5) (0.5) (0.4) (1.9)

Total Revenue Expenditure (52.4) (52.7) (46.7) (47.1) (47.8) (194.3)

Net Revenue Expenditure (38.4) (37.5) (30.4) (28.9) (28.6) (125.3)

GLA Funding 16.8 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 64.0

GLA Funding for Stadium 17.5 16.6 11.3 11.1 10.8 49.8

Reserves 4.1 4.9 1.0 - - 5.9

Net Revenue After Funding - - (2.1) (1.8) (1.8) (5.7)

Trading

Trading Income 7.6 9.0 9.8 9.6 9.4 37.8

Trading Expenditure (9.0) (9.9) (9.8) (9.9) (10.5) (40.1)

Trading Net (1.4) (0.9) (0.0) (0.2) (1.1) (2.3)

Page 122



 

 

Report originator(s): Richard Irish 
Telephone: 020 3288 1792 
Email: richardirish@londonlegacy.co.uk  
 

Page 123

mailto:richardirish@londonlegacy.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 
Subject: East Bank – Stratford Waterfront construction contracts delegation  
Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board  
Report of: Colin Naish, Executive Director of Construction 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek a delegation for awarding a specified Stratford 
Waterfront construction construct in the coming months. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to delegate authority to award the specified Stratford 
Waterfront construction contract set out in the report in Part 2.  

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. The Stratford Waterfront procurement strategy which was approved by the 
Investment Committee in June 2018 and updated in February 2019 and November 
2019 and involves letting contracts for 36 work packages.  

3.2. Contract awards are approved following the completion of each procurement and 
evaluation, by different approving bodies or individuals in line with the LLDC’s 
scheme of delegations (CEO can approve spend within budget of up to £10m, the 
Investment Committee can approve between £10-20m and the Board can approve 
spend within budget over £20m). 

3.3. At its meeting in November 2018, the Board agreed changes to the LLDC scheme 
of delegations regarding East Bank contract awards in order to ensure that work 
packages are let to programme.  

3.4. These changes gave the CEO a delegation from the Investment Committee, when 
there was no scheduled Investment Committee meeting, to approve awarding the 
contract provided that it either within or no more than 1 per cent above budget. If 
the contract award fell outside these parameters, approval would be sought either 
at a scheduled meeting or by using the urgent action provision in the scheme of 
delegations to award the contract. 

3.5. One of the contracts within the Board’s delegation is due to be awarded in the 
coming months. In order to maintain programme, it is proposed that the Board 
delegates the award of this contract under specified circumstances as set out in 
the report in Part 2 (contains exempt information). 

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. There are no legal implications from this report. 

 

 Page 125

Agenda Item 13



 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS PAPER 

None 

 

List of Background Papers:  

Scheme of Delegations 
Papers for the meeting of the Board on 27 November 2018 and 19 November 2019 
Papers for the meeting of the Investment Committee 12 June 2018 
 

 

Report originator(s): Rachel Massey  
Telephone: 020 3288 1829 
Email: rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk 
  

 

Page 126

mailto:rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk


 

   
 
Subject: East Bank – Stratford Waterfront construction and procurement 

update 
Meeting date:  17 March 2020 
Report to: Board 
Report of: Gerry Murphy, Deputy Chief Executive  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This report provides an update on Stratford Waterfront construction and 
procurement. 

1.2. A report is included on Part 2 of the agenda, which contains exempt supplemental 
information. The information is exempt by virtue of part 1, paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A in that it contains information relating to the business affairs of the London 
Legacy Development Corporation. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Committee is asked to note this report. 

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. The Board last received an update on Stratford Waterfront procurement and 
construction delivery at its meeting in November 2019 and has been updated since 
that time through the Chief Executive’s report. The report in Part 2 sets out further 
exempt information related to procurement and construction delivery. 

 

4. FINANCIAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

4.1. These are set out in the Part 2 report. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS PAPER 

None 

 

List of Background Papers:  

Papers for the meeting of the Board 19 November 2019 (exempt information). 
 

 

Report originator(s): Rachel Massey  
Telephone: 020 3288 1829 
Email: rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk 
  

Page 127

Agenda Item 14

mailto:rachelmassey@londonlegacy.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Subject: E20 Stadium LLP Update 
Meeting date: 17 March 2020 
Report to: Board 
Report of:  Gerry Murphy, Deputy Chief Executive  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This paper and the report in Part 2 provide an update on E20 Stadium LLP legal 
matters.   

1.2. A report is included on Part 2 of the agenda, which contains exempt supplemental 
information. The information is exempt by virtue of part 1, paragraph 3 and 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of a person or authority and in respect of which a 
claim to legal professional privilege could be made. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Board is asked to note this report. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. The report in Part 2 provides an update on E20 Stadium LLP legal matters. 

 
4. FINANCIAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

4.1. These are addressed in the Part 2 report. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

None 

 

List of Background Papers: 

Papers for the meeting of the 19 March 2019 

 

 

Report originator:  Gerry Murphy 
Telephone: 020 3288 1800 
Email:  gerrymurphy@londonlegacy.co.uk  
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 15

mailto:gerrymurphy@londonlegacy.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 20



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 137

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 141

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 151

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 159

Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting held on 4 February 2020
	4 Matters arising and action list
	5 Chief Executive's Report
	Item 5b LLDC Q3 201920 corporate report

	6 Report of the meeting of the Investment Committee held on 25 February 2020
	7 Report of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 5 March 2020
	Item 7b - PUBLIC- Report of Audit Committee- Appendix 1

	8 Report of the meeting of the Chair's Committee held on 5 March 2020
	9 Report of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Security Committee held on 5 March 2020
	10 Report of the meeting of the Regeneration and Communities Committee held on 16 March 2020
	11 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
	Item 11a - PUBLIC - 2020-21 TMSS Appendices 1-4
	Item 11b - PUBLIC - 2020-21 TMSS Appendix 5 - GIS Investment Strategy 2020-21 Final

	12 2020/21 Budget Update
	13 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction delegations
	14 East Bank - Stratford Waterfront construction update
	15 E20 Stadium LLP update
	20 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 4 February 2020 that contain exempt information
	21 Matters arising and action list containing exempt information
	22 Chief Executive's Report - Exempt information relating to item on Part 1 - Appendix 2 and 3 - Commercial update, corporate dashboard
	Item 22a - PRIVATE - Annex A
	Item 22b - PRIVATE - Appendix 3 cover
	Item 22b - PRIVATE - Appendix 3

	25 E20 Stadium LLP - Exempt information relating to item on Part 1

